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An investment in CIG is an 
investment in Africa’s growth 
potential.

•  19% compound revenue growth at Conco over four years

•  Diversified geographically operating in 20 African countries 

•  Diversified sectorially in power, building materials and 
recently into the growing Oil & Gas industry with AES 
acquisition 

•  Well positioned to capitalise on African growth trajectory 

•  Established track record in South Africa in renewable 
energy 

•  Raised R1 030 million in capital in the past two years
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SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

CIG is an infrastructure-focused company listed on the JSE Main Board in the Electronic and 
Electrical Equipment sector. The company has three key strategic focus areas: growth of 
subsidiaries; transformative investments (acquisitions of infrastructure-related companies and 
investment in select projects); and formation of a pan-African growth engine, targeting specifically 
the ’Big 5+1’.  

Currently the Group operates in three core 
business segments, in terms of which it will 
report in future years. For the year under review 
CIG reported only in terms of the first two: 
•  Power (reported), comprising: Conco, 

Operations & Maintenance and Protection 
& Automation

•  Building Materials (reported), comprising: 
WECB and DSS

• Oil & Gas (not reported), comprising: AES

The Group focuses on the markets of Power 
– substations and high voltage electrification; 
renewable energy; domestic construction and 
Oil & Gas.

The Group’s split of South African vs Africa 
revenue is the following:

Excluding 
renewables

2013

As 
reported

2013

As 
reported

2012

South Africa 70% 79% 66%
Africa 30% 21% 34%

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated 
by Conco. Performance and non-financial 
information relating to WECB and DSS is 
not disclosed as it does not impact the 
completeness principle. 

In November 2012 CIG furthered its 
diversification strategy with the proposed 
acquisition of a 30,5% interest in AES, an Angola-
based company providing waste management 
services to the Oil & Gas sector. The acquisition 
became unconditional in all respects in early 
2014, although CIG has actively participated in 
the running of the business since December 
2012. Given the post year-end conclusion of 
the transaction through the transfer to CIG 
of the quota (shares), the results of AES were 
not included in the annual financial results for 
the year, nor in the non-financial information 
disclosed, and there was therefore no change 
in the scope of financial and non-financial 
reporting for the year under review. Pro forma 
numbers based on the inclusion of AES in 
the year under review are provided where 
appropriate. 

Content encompasses all divisions and 
subsidiaries of the company, as illustrated in 
the Group structure on pages 10 and 11, across 
all regions of operation. While we include 
discussion with regard to AES’s prospects 
and the potential it brings to our Group, the 
underlying information presented in this report 
does not incorporate information from AES. 

Over the past five years, the Group has not 
collected significant non-financial data with 
regard to its subsidiaries. This is a process 
in progress. As a result the majority of the 
non-financial information relates to Conco 
as it contributes the bulk of revenue and has 
more established reporting systems relating 
to non-financial information. In this integrated 
annual report where insufficient data exists to 
address various qualitative indicators of the 
GRI G3.1 Guidelines, the report focuses on 
relevant policies and practices that are in place, 
particularly as concerns regulatory compliance. 
The supply chain and outsourced functions 
have not been assessed for the purposes of this 
report. This will be considered in future reports.

There was no change to any measurement 
techniques nor were there any restatements 
of previously reported information. For more 
information see the annual financial statements. 

This, our third integrated annual report, 
presents the annual financial results and 
the economic, environmental, social and 
governance performance of the Group for the 
year 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2013, and 
follows our report published in February 2013. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION
In line with the requirements of King III, this 
integrated annual report provides a consolidated 
review of the Group’s financial, social, economic, 
governance and environmental performance for 
the year 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2013.  
The report is primarily targeted at current 
stakeholders and potential investors in the Group. 

The report focuses on issues that materially 
impact CIG’s ability to create and sustain value, 
and on which the company materially impacts in 
the course of business, and outlines how these 
issues have been integrated into its business 
strategy. 

The company has applied the majority of the 
principles in the King III Report. In respect of 
those which have not been applied, explanation 
is offered. 

The report was further prepared based on 
principles and guidance from the GRI (GRI G3.1 
Guidelines) and is compiled based on a self-
declared Application Level C.

The annual financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with IFRS, the SAICA 
Financial Reporting Guides as issued by 
the Accounting Practices Committee, the 
requirements of the Companies Act, and the 
Listings Requirements of the JSE. 

Key 
data
Consolidated Infrastructure 
Group Limited 
Incorporated in the Republic  
of South Africa

Registration number 
2007/004935/06

ISIN  
ZAE000148201

JSE Main Board sector 
Electronic and Electrical 
Equipment  

JSE share code  
CIL 

Listing date 
2007

Shares in issue  
133 999 448

Business segments  

See the limited assurance statement and the full GRI 
index can be found on www.ciglimited.co.za

Corporate 
information
The Group’s executive  
directors are Raoul Gamsu 
(Chief executive officer),  
Ivor Klitzner (Financial director) 
and Bernard Berelowitz 
(Chairman and founder of 
Conco). They can be contacted 
at the registered office of the 
company (see inside back cover) 

CIG’s integrated annual report 
2013 is available in hard copy 
from the company secretary, on 
request, and is also posted on 
the Group’s website: 

http://www.ciglimited.co.za
Tel: (011) 280 4040

Media and investor relations
Louise Brugman
louise@vestor.co.za

POWER

BUILDING 
MATERIALS

OIL & GAS
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ASSURANCE
The combined assurance model of the Group is built on three bases: 

MA  Management-based assurance

RA  Risk and legal-based assurance

IA   Independent assurance which includes external and internal audit, ISO certification and audits conducted by consulting engineers 
and other parties. 

Category Process of assurance

STRATEGIC

Board competency
MA IA

• Self-assessment, special project

Strategy and planning
MA RA

• Self-assessment, special project
• Risk management 

Sustainability and corporate responsibility
MA RA

• Self-assessment, special project
• Risk management 

Mergers and acquisitions
MA RA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management 

Corporate governance
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management 

Ethics
MA RA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management

Capital adequacy
MA IA

• Self-assessment, management review, special project 
• External audit (limited) 
• External assurer: Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.

OPERATIONAL

Corporate assets
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management 
• External and internal audit 
• External assurer: Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.

Tender management
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management, compliance
• External audit (limited) and internal audit

Financial
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management 
• External audit and internal audit
• External assurer: Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.

Information technology
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management
• External audit (limited) and internal audit
• External assurer: Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.

Human resources
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management, 
• External audit (limited) and internal audit

Procurement and supply chain management
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management, compliance
• External audit (limited) and internal audit

Project and risk management
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management, compliance
• Internal audit
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SCOPE AND BOUNDARY
continued

Category Process of assurance

OPERATIONAL continued

Production management
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management, compliance
• External audit (limited)

Due diligence
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management (limited)
• External audit (limited)

Quality assurance 
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management (limited)
• Health and safety 
• ISO certification 

Products and services
MA RA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management
• Consulting engineers 

Health, Safety and Environmental management
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management (limited)
• Health and safety 
• Compliance
• External audit (limited)
• ISO certification
• Consulting engineers
• External assurer: ISO:14001, OSHA:18001

Covenants
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management 
• External audit and internal audit
• External assurer: Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.

Treasury and funding
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management
• External audit (limited) and internal audit

SUSTAINABILITY

Environment
MA RA

• Self-assessment
• Risk management
• Health and safety 
• Compliance

Business continuity and disaster recovery
MA RA

• Self-assessment
• Risk management
• Compliance

Legal/statutory compliance
MA RA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management
• Compliance
• External audit (limited) and internal audit 

Integrated reporting
MA RA IA

• Self-assessment, management review 
• Risk management (limited)
• Compliance
• External audit

Environment, Health and Safety Standards performance
MA RA

• Self-assessment
• Risk management
• Health and safety 
• Compliance
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PROCESS FOR DEFINING REPORT 
CONTENT
CIG has considered and applied many of the 
recommendations contained in the Discussion 
Paper on the Framework for Integrated Reporting 
and the Integrated Report issued by the Integrated 
Reporting Committee of South Africa in January 
2011, and the draft International Integrated 
Reporting Framework issued in April 2013. The 
integrated report was further prepared based 
on the principles of the GRI.

In compiling this report, CIG’s Exco attended a 
workshop facilitated by an external consultant, 
at which the Group strategy, stakeholder 
engagement, material issues and business 
model (as well as other related matters) were 
interrogated and clarified. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This integrated annual report contains forward-
looking statements that, unless otherwise 
indicated, reflect the company’s expectations 
as at 31 August 2013. Actual results may differ 
materially from the company’s expectations if 
known and unknown risks or uncertainties affect 
its business, or if estimates or assumptions prove 
inaccurate. The company cannot guarantee that 
any forward-looking statement will materialise 
and, accordingly, readers are cautioned not 
to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements. The company disclaims 
any intention and assumes no obligation to 
update or revise any forward-looking statement 
even if new information becomes available as a 
result of future events or for any other reason, 
save as required to do so by legislation and/or 
regulation. The Group’s external auditors and/
or assurance providers have not assured these 
statements. 

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AND 
REVIEW
The audit and risk committee and the board 
acknowledge their responsibility to ensure the 
integrity of this integrated annual report. It has 
been reviewed by the audit and risk committee, 
the board, company secretary, sponsor and 
investor relations consultants. The annual 
financial statements included in this integrated 
annual report have been audited by the external 
auditors.

RD Gamsu
Chief executive officer

IM Klitzner
Financial director 

AD Dixon
Chairman audit and risk committee
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We are embarking on an ambitious growth trajectory 
capitalising on the Africa opportunity, leveraging our strong 
experienced management and a robust financial performance.

CIG AT A GLANCE
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Skills academy
Conco Skills Academy enrolled an  
additional eight interns and recruited  
16 candidates for 2014

Accreditation 
Conco achieved ISO:18001 (safety)
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HIGHLIGHTS

HEPS up

 19%
to 137,8 cents

Saudi 
Arabia

business executed  
its first project

EBITDA up

 24%
to R278 million

Conco achieved 

ISO:18001 
(safety)

accreditation

Conco won 

 R870 
million

of REIPPP work and 
successfully executed

R600 
million 

timeously, to standard  
and with no penalties  

to date (Round 1)

Acquisition of AES 
marked successful 

diversification
into

Oil &  
Gas

Order book up

 10%
to R2,2 billion

Building Materials  
division  

expanded 
through

acquisitions

Achieved a LTIFR of 

0,11
(12 months rolling  

average), below  
targeted LTIFR  

of 0,5

Revenue up

 31%
to R2 037 million

Gearing constant at

 30%
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R’
m

ill
io

n

R’
m

ill
io

n

R’
m

ill
io

n

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

2 
03

7

1 
55

3

1 
44

5

1 
22

9

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

27
8

22
5

18
7

15
2

Ce
nt

s

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

13
8

11
6

10
0

10
5

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

2 
20

0

2 
00

0

1 
45

0

1 
30

0



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 9

OUR TIMELINE

1986
Conco established  

as a family business

2002
Conco establishes 

Protection & Automation

2008
CIG acquires Conco

2010
CIG transfers to JSE Main Board 

 Electronic and Electrical Equipment sector’

Revenue:

R1,2 billion
2010    Establishes a renewable energy  

offering in Conco

2012
CIG announces intention to acquire 30,5%  

interest in AES

Establishes Operations & Maintenance in Conco to focus 
on long-term annuity contracts in renewable energy

Revenue:

R1,66 billion

1994
Conco secures first  

cross-border contract

2007
CIG lists on AltX  
as ‘Buildworks’,  
comprising the  

Building Materials  
division

2009
Revenue:

 R1 billion  

2011
Conco secures a 400kV overhead lines contract  

from Eskom valued at R200 million

Conco pre-selected for South Africa REIPPP bids

Revenue:

R1,46 billion

2013
Assisting in  

management of AES

Revenue:

R2,0 billion

Conco Skills 
Academy

enrolled an additional  
eight interns  

and recruited  
16 candidates  

for 2014 

Introduced a 

bursary 
scheme

for engineering  
graduates

Operation &  
Maintenance

progressed further in  
long-term service contracts 

with renewable energy  
projects and municipalities

Protection &  
Automation

is developing into  
standalone business  

with strong prospects for 
servicing major utilities and  

municipalities in Africa

CIDB
rating of 

nine
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GROUP SNAPSHOT

CIG is a diversified pan-African infrastructure 
group currently offering power, building 
materials and infrastructure services across 
Africa. 

The Group operates in three core business segments. 

It is operated on a decentralised basis, with each business segment headed by its 
own executives and management team.

CIG’s revenue is mainly generated by Conco within South Africa.

To date we have operated in 20 countries on the continent and target 50% 
of our revenue from outside South Africa. Current splits are skewed towards  
South Africa due to REIPPP contracts. We are embarking on an ambitious growth 
trajectory capitalising on the Africa opportunity, leveraging our strong experienced 
management and a robust financial performance.

Revenue by 
geographic sector

 South Africa

 International

2013

21%

79%

Revenue contribution

2013
R1,7

billion
85%

EBITDA contribution

2013
R213,8
million

78%

POWER
David van Zyl

Chief executive officer

Employees:

829

Name of business Services
Competitive 
differentiators Target market

CONSOLIDATED 
POWER PROJECTS 
(CONCO)

Provides turnkey solutions for 
high voltage substations and 
overhead power lines

Provides turnkey solutions 
for renewable energy to 
wind farms, solar parks 
municipalities and utilities

• A leading large-
scale high voltage 
construction 
company in  
South Africa

• Full in-house 
engineering 
capability 

Governments, 
utilities, 
municipalities, 
mining houses, 
industrial 
sector, finance 
houses 
and capital 
investment 
schemes

CONCO 
OPERATIONS & 
MAINTENANCE
Pius Gumbi
Divisional head

Provides long-term 
operations and maintenance 
services to renewable energy 
plant and substations

• Service offering for 
all turbines and 
other technologies

Renewable 
energy 
projects and 
municipalities

CONCO 
PROTECTION & 
AUTOMATION
Andreas Richelman
Divisional head

Provides protection and 
automation systems to 
reduce the occurrence and 
duration of power outages, 
including design, engineering 
and commissioning 
(integration)

• Ability to execute 
in difficult local 
environments

• Recruit, train 
and develop 
people across the 
continent

Utilities,  
municipalities 
and EPC 
contractors

Sub-Saharan Africa 
Africa 
Middle East
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Revenue contribution

2013
R309,9
million

15%

EBITDA contribution

2013
R61,9

million

22%

The Oil & Gas division is not incorporated in the 2013 year-end results.

OIL & GAS
Morten Eriksen
General manager

Employees:

366
Name of 
business Services

Competitive 
differentiators Target market

AES Provides specialised waste 
management services to Oil & Gas 
companies, including collection, 
recycling and disposal of oil-based 
waste created during the drilling 
process

• Largest and most 
experienced 
provider in Angola

• Highly competent 
management 
team with 
superior technical 
expertise

• Scalable platform 

Industrial, 
natural 
resources, and 
exploration 
sectors, 
specifically 
Oil & Gas 
companies

Based in Luanda, Angola

BUILDING  
MATERIALS

Jannie Hooman
Chief executive officer

Employees:

322
Name of 
business Services

Competitive 
differentiators Target market

WEST END 
CLAYBRICK

Supplies top-quality face, semi-
faced and plaster clay bricks and  
a range of concrete roof tiles

• State-of-the-
art, automated 
concrete roof tile 
plant

• Skilled operators 

Building 
sector: 
developers, 
contractors 
and 
wholesalers

DRIFT 
SUPERSAND

Supplies aggregates • Geologically 
favourable 
resource

• Skilled operators

Gauteng 
commercial 
and civil 
building 
contractors

Gauteng 
Free State 
North West Province 
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OUR VISION AND VALUES

Our vision is to enhance shareholder value 
by acquiring and operating the infrastructure 
assets and services shaping Africa’s future. 

CREATE AN ENVIRONMENT WHICH ENCOURAGES ENTREPRENEURSHIP, INGENUITY 
AND OWNERSHIP 
•  Operate on a decentralised basis with appropriate executive and management incentivisation on 

performance
• Develop, empower and enable our people through ongoing training and development (Conco Skills Academy)
• “Grow our own timber”
•  Provide work for newly qualified engineers through Engineer in Training Programme
•  Risk focussed apporach to projects, business and environment

CONTRIBUTE MEANINGFULLY TO THE COMMUNITIES IN WHICH WE WORK  
• Job creation
• Prioritise employment of locals 
• Strong CSI programme
•  Uplift skills in a skills-challenged industry (Conco Skills Academy)
• Ensure all sites are rehabilitated
• Develop power infrastructure in Africa for economic development 
• Provide bursaries for engineering students

PROVIDE EXCELLENT SERVICE, QUALITY AND ADVICE TO OUR CUSTOMERS 
•  Provide turnkey solutions at competitive prices
•  Proven track record
•  Conco measures performance against targets on an ongoing basis
•  ISO accreditation
•  Stringent quality control 

CONDUCT BUSINESS WITH INTEGRITY – BUILD A DIVERSE STAFF
•  Treat our employees with care, concern and respect 
•  Committed to environmental responsibility 
• Support the right to employees’ freedom of association
• Actively focus on prevention of corruption and anti-competitive behaviour
• Promote workplace diversity 
• Employee Wellness Programme
• Committed to promoting and maintaining respect for human rights 
• External assurance on financials
• Conco Skills Academy
• Recognition and appropriate incentives

Living our values
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OUR GEOGRAPHIC FOOTPRINT

Africa presents enormous growth opportunity. Seven of the ten fastest growing economies in the 
world are in Africa, namely Democratic Republic of the Congo, Ethiopia, Ghana, Mozambique, Nigeria, 
Tanzania and Zambia. 
Urbanisation is rapid. Between 2010 and 2050, African urban populations will triple to reach 1,2 billion people. This challenge is spurring 
high demand for power and other infrastructure. For instance, installed power is projected to grow from the current 125 gigawatt to  
700 gigawatt by 2040, almost a six-fold increase.

Certain inherent risks in Africa such as fluctuations in currency and resource prices and insufficient capacity may impact the roll-out 
of infrastructure projects. Other risks such as political instability and corruption are ameliorating, while procurement processes are 
reforming to become more transparent, albeit still delayed.

20% 
increase in number of projects 

Significant increase in number of projects over the 
past few years, signalling an increase in the number  
of tender submissions and the effort it takes to win.

42% 
increase in AES performance 

Angola seeks to produce two million barrels 
of oil per day by 2015.

31% 
increase in Group revenue 

Growth driven by renewable energy  
projects from Conco and volume  
increases in Building Materials.

Current projects
Power

Building Materials

Oil & Gas

GHANA

DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC  
OF CONGO

SUDAN

KENYA

UGANDA

TANZANIA

MADAGASCAR

LESOTHO

SOUTH AFRICA

SWAZILAND

MOZAMBIQUE

BOTSWANA
NAMIBIA

ZAMBIA

ANGOLA

Proudly African…

NIGERIA

Historic operations

ZIMBABWE

MAURITIUS

SOUTH SUDAN
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OUR INTEGRATED BUSINESS MODEL

MANUFACTURED

INTELLECTUAL

HUMAN

SOCIAL AND  
RELATIONSHIP

NATURAL

CIG INPUTS

CAPITAL RAISING CAPEX

ENGINEERING SKILLS

EMPLOYEES

WATER AND ELECTRICITY  
CONSUMPTION AGGREGATES CARBON FOOTPRINT

GOVERNMENT FUNDERS CUSTOMERS COMMUNITIES
INFRASTRUCTURE 

DEVELOPERS

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

MANAGEMENT  
EXPERTISE

OFFICES AND  
FACTORIES PLANT QUARRIES MATERIALS

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

w    Provides turnkey solutions for high voltage substations and overhead lines as 
well as renewable energy

w    Provides energy yield optimising operation and maintenance services to 
owners of power asset

w    Provides protection and automation services to reduce the occurrence and 
duration of power outages

w   Supplies building materials

w   Provides specialised waste management services to Oil & Gas companies

2

1
FINANCIAL
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OUTCOMES

SHAREHOLDER AND STAKEHOLDER VALUE 

DELIVER INFRASTRUCTURE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES IN DEVELOPING ECONOMIES

INNOVATION

TRANSFORMATION ECONOMIC UPLIFTMENT

QUARRY REHABILITATIONCARBON FOOTPRINT

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT IN  
LOCAL AREAS OF OPERATION JOB CREATION HIGHLY SKILLED WORKFORCE

OUTPUTS

w    High voltage substations

w   Overhead cabling

w    Electrical balance of plant for  
renewable energy farms

w    Protection and automation systems

w    Operation and maintenance services

w   Clay bricks

w   Concrete roof tiles

w   Aggregates

w    Specialist waste management  
services (Oil & Gas)

3

4
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Objective to 2017 Progress Focus  2014 Priorities 2014 Target 2017

Accelerate growth by applying strategic, operational 
and financial levers, specifically:
• Bolster the Group’s resilience 
• Strengthen our competitive advantages
• Increase market share in the ’Big 5+1’
• Successfully execute REIPPP projects with no 

penalties
• Expand product lines in the Building Materials 

division

• Divisions performing exceptionally well through 
market share gains 

CONCO
• Revenue up 35%
• EBITDA up 19%
• Promising progress on ’Big 5+1’ 
• Won R870 million in Round 1 REIPPP and 

successfully executed R600 million with no 
penalties

•  Project wins in Angola, Mozambique, Tanzania, 
Botswana, Ghana, Zambia and Kenya

•  Order book R2,2 billion

BUILDING MATERIALS
•  Revenue up 14% in a stagnant construction 

sector
• EBITDA constant

AES
• Established Oil & Gas business unit 
• Commenced assisting with management  

of AES

•  Continue to challenge and 
motivate divisional leadership to 
focus on growth, with appropriate 
incentives

• Conco regional strategy roll-out 
• Conco Protection & Automation growth
• Increase awards in Operations & 

Maintenance  
• Improve execution 
• Enhance margins across Group
• Align incentives with strategy 
• Close out Round 3 projects under 

REIPPP 

CONCO
• Organic growth
•  Geographic diversification
• Product and customer diversification 

(REIPPP, mining, transport)

BUILDING MATERIALS
• Diversify product range
•  Increase capacity by acquisition (Aggregates)

AES
• Geographic diversification
• Expansion of services platform  

(in Oil & Gas)

• Identify and acquire infrastructure-related 
companies or invest in projects which are  
value-enhancing  (strategically and financially)

• Significant deal pipeline being built  
• AES acquisition 
• Operations & Maintenance gaining traction 

• Leverage progress in 2013 to 
close on pipeline and target 
specific opportunities

• AES fully integrated
• AES to leverage growth in thriving sector
• Operations & Maintenance to generate  

annuity revenue
• Increase activity across infrastructure 

segments
•  Selective acquisitions  to strengthen 

Building Materials 

• Introduce annuity business
• Increase exposure within infrastructure 

segments

• Make ‘the whole greater than the sum of its parts’
• Corporatise new investments
• Create a Business Intelligence function at  

Group level
•  Optimise the Group’s corporate and capital 

structures
• Build a Group support structure for  

subsidiaries to:
 –  Extend reach
 –  Add management capacity to subsidiaries
 –  Harness their entrepreneurial spirit

• Reorganising Group structure 
• Implemented share scheme 
• Institutionalised knowledge/IP
• Recruited skills to strengthen corporate centre 
• Business development and IT dashboard 

adding value
• Launched Conco  Skills Academy (2012)

• Continue to build infrastructure 
which enhances reach and ROI

• Enhance support services strategic 
focus 

• Actively manage Group risks 
• Increase usage of technology 

• Effective Group structure 
• Well-developed corporate centre
• Leverage technology developments to 

enhance products
• Meaningful performance dashboard 
• Increased skills base 

OUR FIVE YEAR STRATEGY

STRATEGIC GROWTH 
OF DIVISIONS

TRANSFORMATIVE 
INVESTMENTS

PAN-AFRICAN 
GROWTH ENGINE
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Objective to 2017 Progress Focus  2014 Priorities 2014 Target 2017

Accelerate growth by applying strategic, operational 
and financial levers, specifically:
• Bolster the Group’s resilience 
• Strengthen our competitive advantages
• Increase market share in the ’Big 5+1’
• Successfully execute REIPPP projects with no 

penalties
• Expand product lines in the Building Materials 

division

• Divisions performing exceptionally well through 
market share gains 

CONCO
• Revenue up 35%
• EBITDA up 19%
• Promising progress on ’Big 5+1’ 
• Won R870 million in Round 1 REIPPP and 

successfully executed R600 million with no 
penalties

•  Project wins in Angola, Mozambique, Tanzania, 
Botswana, Ghana, Zambia and Kenya

•  Order book R2,2 billion

BUILDING MATERIALS
•  Revenue up 14% in a stagnant construction 

sector
• EBITDA constant

AES
• Established Oil & Gas business unit 
• Commenced assisting with management  

of AES

•  Continue to challenge and 
motivate divisional leadership to 
focus on growth, with appropriate 
incentives

• Conco regional strategy roll-out 
• Conco Protection & Automation growth
• Increase awards in Operations & 

Maintenance  
• Improve execution 
• Enhance margins across Group
• Align incentives with strategy 
• Close out Round 3 projects under 

REIPPP 

CONCO
• Organic growth
•  Geographic diversification
• Product and customer diversification 

(REIPPP, mining, transport)

BUILDING MATERIALS
• Diversify product range
•  Increase capacity by acquisition (Aggregates)

AES
• Geographic diversification
• Expansion of services platform  

(in Oil & Gas)

• Identify and acquire infrastructure-related 
companies or invest in projects which are  
value-enhancing  (strategically and financially)

• Significant deal pipeline being built  
• AES acquisition 
• Operations & Maintenance gaining traction 

• Leverage progress in 2013 to 
close on pipeline and target 
specific opportunities

• AES fully integrated
• AES to leverage growth in thriving sector
• Operations & Maintenance to generate  

annuity revenue
• Increase activity across infrastructure 

segments
•  Selective acquisitions  to strengthen 

Building Materials 

• Introduce annuity business
• Increase exposure within infrastructure 

segments

• Make ‘the whole greater than the sum of its parts’
• Corporatise new investments
• Create a Business Intelligence function at  

Group level
•  Optimise the Group’s corporate and capital 

structures
• Build a Group support structure for  

subsidiaries to:
 –  Extend reach
 –  Add management capacity to subsidiaries
 –  Harness their entrepreneurial spirit

• Reorganising Group structure 
• Implemented share scheme 
• Institutionalised knowledge/IP
• Recruited skills to strengthen corporate centre 
• Business development and IT dashboard 

adding value
• Launched Conco  Skills Academy (2012)

• Continue to build infrastructure 
which enhances reach and ROI

• Enhance support services strategic 
focus 

• Actively manage Group risks 
• Increase usage of technology 

• Effective Group structure 
• Well-developed corporate centre
• Leverage technology developments to 

enhance products
• Meaningful performance dashboard 
• Increased skills base 
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BUILDING THIS INTEGRATED REPORT

CIG began this process by conducting a materiality assessment, beginning with discussion at board level and by the senior 
management of the various divisions. The Exco then attended a workshop – facilitated by external consultant Envisage Investor 
Relations – to refine our integrated thinking model and inform our materiality assessment. In addition, an independent 
material issues assessment was undertaken by Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc. Our ongoing stakeholder engagement programmes 
and risk management process were also key contributors to the materiality assessment.

Once our key material issues had been defined, they were evaluated in terms of alignment with our three core strategic focus 
areas (see pages 16 and 17). 

Material issues and key risks
The issues identified as most material to CIG’s business, and the key risks faced in terms thereof, are set out below. (The risks indicated 
are not necessarily the only risks facing the Group, as other external factors not presently known to the Group and other general factors 
not presently deemed material, may become known and escalate with a consequent impact on the Group.  See page 54 for the risk 
report.)  The material issues, which are deemed to be issues or risks that could affect the Group’s ability to create value, are not ranked 
in any particular order of priority.  

Material issue Key risk Actions

• Skills shortage
•  Management skills
•  Staff attraction and 

retention
• Labour relations 
•  Succession planning
•  Skills development
•  IT business support

Insufficient stakeholder 
management
Managing employees, investors, 
customers, communities and 
partners to mitigate risks and 
maintain business continuity

• Conco Skills Academy established 

•  Prioritising local (in-country) recruitment with international 
recruitment to fill gaps

• Personnel development

• Mentorship and training

• Staying ahead of capacity needs

•  Maintaining open relationships with large investors to ensure 
alignment with management 

•  Objective governance processes to maintain appropriate 
relationships

•  Reducing the risk of anti-competitive/corrupt behaviour 
by educating employees and agents, securing their annual 
commitment, and ensuring appropriate contractual indemnification 

•  Assessing incentive schemes to ensure alignment to  
strategy, collaboration and results 

 

Injury to employees
Operations are relatively 
hazardous by nature as the 
company constructs and 
commissions high voltage 
substations and overhead lines

• ‘Zero Harm’ policy in place
• Fully comply with all relevant legislation
• Formal SHE plan in place

See page 40 for further detail

PEOPLE AND 
CAPABILITIES

HEALTH AND 
SAFETY
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Material issue Key risk Actions

Execution and operational 
risks
Ineffective business and 
investment strategy; inability to 
drive the strategies successfully 
due to flawed execution or 
supporting enablers

•  Vetting all strategies with management and board while  
ensuring access to sufficient capital

• Frequent co-ordination meetings
• Leveraging shareholder networks
•  Conducting thorough  due diligence on all opportunities and  

sponsors 
•  Implementing checks and controls to ensure sustainable  

margins are contracted for and maintained 
•  All REIPPP projects classified and treated as high-risk in light 

of severe penalties for late delivery and requirements for grid 
compliance in terms of Eskom codes

•  Employing experienced personnel to manage performance 
throughout the project lifecycle

• Appropriate IT platform
•  Spreading sectoral exposure to mitigate  

delays in project awards

•  Cost management
• Working capital
•  Shareholder value

Insufficient cash generation  
to fuel growth
Inability to generate the cash 
necessary to support CIG’s 
growth and satisfy shareholders 

Sluggish government spending

• Cash flow projections aligned with milestone payments
•  Reviewing working capital requirements to manage trade-offs 

(efficiency v flexibility to exploit opportunities)
• Linking incentives to cash flows and usage 
• Actively managing cash flow with projections before project 
• Focusing on ROI across Group 

Mismanaging overall growth
Unsuccessful in staying ahead of 
investment demands caused by 
growth trajectory and ensuring 
shareholders get maximum ROI 

• Reviewing corporate structure to ensure suitability
• Continuously re-evaluating dividend policy

Loss of BBBEE clients
The nature of the business 
exposes the Group to legislative 
requirements relating to BBBEE, 
social and labour plans, and 
compliance with mining licence 
ordinances. If these are not met 
the Group risks procurement loss

•  Implementing a formal compliance management function 
managed on an ongoing basis at subsidiary level

STRATEGY

CAPITAL  
ADEQUACY

TRANSFORMATION

INCOME AND 
GROWTH

TRANSFORMATIVE INVESTMENTS

PAN-AFRICAN GROWTH ENGINE

STRATEGIC GROWTH OF DIVISIONS
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OUR STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Responsibility for identifying our stakeholders lies with senior management, supported by the audit and risk committee, the Group’s 
external risk consultant, and at subsidiary level the relevant management teams. This process kicks off with a consideration of the 
principal risks and opportunities facing the Group, which are then reviewed in terms of the internal and external stakeholders who 
impact on, or would be impacted by, these. While a broad range of stakeholders are considered important to the Group in the daily 
activities of each of our businesses including in-country partners, government, local communities, and suppliers to name some 
examples, the stakeholders defined below are deemed to be material in terms of their impact on the Group’s strategic direction. 

Once stakeholders have been identified, as below, it is intended that an effective engagement process be established for each group 
where none currently exists. Presently the majority of feedback feeds through the CEO to the board on an informal basis. The formal 
engagement process will encompass agreed target outcomes and a process of reporting on progress against those.   

Stakeholder and 
relevant material issues What matters to them? Engagement Responsibility Feedback

GROUP

SHAREHOLDERS • Sustainability
• Profitability 
•  ROI (share price and 

dividends)
• ROCE
• Cash generation
•  Corporate 

governance and 
compliance

• Risk management
• Growth prospects
•  Reputation and 

trust

• Road shows
• 1:1 meetings
• SENS
•  Results 

presentations
• Website
• Media
• AGM

•  Chief executive  
officer

•  Feedback from 
results presentations 
and 1:1 meetings is 
relayed to and dealt 
with at board level

LENDERS/PROVIDERS 
OF CAPITAL

•  Capital 
management

• Sustainability
• Profitability 
•  ROI (share price and 

dividends)
• ROCE
•  Cash generation
•  Corporate 

governance and 
compliance

•  Risk management
•  Growth prospects

•  Contractually 
required 
information flow

•  Regular meetings

•  Chief executive 
officer

• Financial director

•  Feedback from  
1:1 meetings is 
relayed to and dealt 
with at board level

EMPLOYEES 
(representative bodies)

• Job security
• Sustainability
•  Personal growth 

and development
•  Skills development
•  Remuneration and 

incentives

•  Annual 
performance 
management 
process

• HR processes
•  Employer-employee 

committees

•  Chief executive 
officer of subsidiary

•  Feedback from 
workers forums 
provided to Exco

•  HR systems adapted 
according to 
feedback

CIG recognises that developing and nurturing dialogue with our key stakeholders, and actively addressing feedback and 
integrating it into strategy, is a driver of business sustainability. We believe that engaging with stakeholders enhances Group 
operations by accurately informing management of sentiment and perceptions and highlighting concerns. At the same time 
this dialogue informs and educates stakeholders to enhance the Group’s reputation. In this light CIG has identified insufficient 
stakeholder management as a significant risk (see material issues and key risks). 
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Stakeholder and 
relevant material issues What matters to them? Engagement Responsibility Feedback

CONCO

CUSTOMERS •  Project execution 
and delivery

• Quality
• Service 
• Value for money
• Security of supply

• Tender processes
•  Contractual 

engagement 
processes

•  Business 
development team  
and technical staff  
at each subsidiary

•  Customer satisfaction 
surveys

•  Regular customer 
interaction

EMPLOYEES 
(on site-in addition to 
Group engagement)

•  Working conditions 
•  Access to facilities 

covered by medical 
aid 

•  Access to anti-
retrovirals

• Safety
•  Support for families 

during absence 
onsite

• Site inspections
•  Employee Wellness 

Programme
•  Safety meetings 

such as daily 
Toolbox Talks 

•  HR director and  
HR business partner

• HR officer on site
• Hygiene officer
• SHEQ officer

•  The onsite HR officer 
is responsible for 
reporting back to the 
relevant HR business  
partner, who in turn 
reports to the  
HR director and 
through him, to the 
board

• Workers forums

COMMUNITIES • Job creation
•  Impact on the 

communities  and 
environment

•  Rehabilitation of site 
on completion

•  HR officer liaises 
with community

• HR officers 
• Environmental officer
•  Occupational health 

officer 

•  Addressing 
complaints

•  Employment drives 

BUILDING MATERIALS

CUSTOMERS • Quality
• Service 
• Value for money
• Security of supply

• Sales team •  One-on-one 
customer liaison

EMPLOYEES 
(on site-in addition to 
Group engagement)

•  Working conditions  
•  Wellness checks
• Safety

•  Employee Wellness 
Programme

•  HR director and  
HR business partner

• HR officer on site
• Hygiene officer

•  Union negotiations
•  Employee 

engagement

COMMUNITIES • Job creation
•  Impact on the 

communities  and 
environment

•  Rehabilitation of site 
on completion

•  HR officer liaises 
with community

• HR officers 
• Environmental officer
•  Occupational health 

officer 

•  Addressing 
complaints

INCOME AND GROWTH

HEALTH AND SAFETY

PEOPLE AND CAPABILITIES

TRANSFORMATIONSTRATEGY

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
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In FY2014 we intend to continue honing our pan-African 
growth strategy to deliver on our key strategic objectives.

LEADERSHIP
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Power
Investment in power in Africa  
continues unabated 

Building  
Materials
Trading conditions in the local civil  
construction sector are looking up

Oil & Gas 
Vigorous demand for services in the 
Oil & Gas sector in Angola and across 
the continent
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
RAOUL GAMSU (44) 
Chief executive officer
BAcc, CA(SA) 
Appointed: 2007

Raoul was responsible for leading the 
consortium which created and subsequently 
listed CIG. Prior to that Raoul worked in 
various corporate roles with Bidvest, Rebhold, 
Rebserve and Mvelaphanda culminating in his 
appointment as the chief operating officer at 
Rebserve and Mvelaphanda. 

IVOR KLITZNER (45) 
Financial director
BComm, CA(SA)
Appointed: 2007

Ivor was instrumental in assisting with the listing 
of CIG in 2007. He completed his articles with 
Ernst & Young in 1993 and became a financial 
director at Hallmark Hemdon Proprietary 
Limited, before leaving them in 2000 to join M&IC 
Distributors Proprietary Limited, a subsidiary of 
Brandcorp Holdings Limited. 

Ethical leadership
CIG has zero tolerance for the commissioning or concealment of fraudulent acts by employees, contractors or suppliers.  
The board ensures the Code of Conduct (the Code) is effected through Group strategy as well as in operational decisions.  
The Group’s disciplinary codes and procedures further ensure compliance with the Code. 

There were no incidents of contravention of the Code during the year. Senior executives in the Group remain obligated to verify the 
absence of any anti-competitive or colluding behaviour each year. Their annual declarations in this regard are overseen by the Group’s 
financial director. There were no incidents or legal actions relating to anti-competitive or collusive behaviour during the year. No fines 
were received for non-compliance with any laws or regulations.

A Code of Ethics has further been rolled out at Conco, and will be reviewed annually. Going forward this will be customised for the 
respective remaining operations in the Group and rolled out Group-wide in due course.

A formal, anonymous whistleblowing hotline is deemed to be ineffective for the Group at this stage. However, employees are informed 
of a reporting contact should they witness any contravention or potential contravention of the Codes.

MEMBERS  

EXECUTIVE
Raoul Gamsu (CEO) 
Ivor Klitzner (Financial director)
Bernard Berelowitz (Chairman, 
Consolidated Power Projects)

NON-EXECUTIVE
Kofi Bucknor

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE 
Frank Boner (Chairman)
Alex Darko
Anthony Dixon
Robert Horton
Judi Nwokedi

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMMITTEES  

AUDIT AND RISK REMUNERATION NOMINATIONS SOCIAL AND ETHICS

Anthony Dixon 
(Chairman)
Frank Boner 
Alex Darko  

By invitation 
Rob Horton
Ivor Klitzner

Alex Darko (Chairman) 
Frank Boner 
Anthony Dixon

By invitation 
Raoul Gamsu

Frank Boner (Chairman) 
Alex Darko 
Anthony Dixon

By invitation 
Raoul Gamsu

Alex Darko (Chairman) 
Ivor Klitzner 
Judi Nwokedi

Number of 
independent 
directors

3/3 3/3 3/3 2/3

Self-evaluation 
completed

Yes Informal, to be 
formalised going 
forward

Informal, to be 
formalised going 
forward

Informal, to be  
formalised going 
forward



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 25

BERNARD BERELOWITZ (62) 
Chairman, Consolidated Power Projects
NDip Elec Eng
Appointed: 2009

Bernard founded Conco in 1986. He started his 
career in 1973 at Hubert Davies Construction 
Proprietary Limited (later Cullinan Holdings 
Limited). In 1981 he was appointed as an 
executive and divisional manager, substations 
and helped grow the division from R1 million 
per annum to over R20 million per annum. 

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
KOFI BUCKNOR (59) (Ghanaian)
BSc (Bus Admin), MBA (Finance) 
Appointed: 2012

Kofi is the managing partner of private equity 
firm, Kingdom Africa Management, which evolved 
from Kingdom Zephyr Africa Management. He 
currently serves on the boards of Newmont 
Mining Corporation, ARM Nigeria and CNIA 
Assurances (Morocco). He is chairman of Ghana’s 
Investment Advisory Committee on the country’s 
oil revenues. He formerly served as a director 
of Ashanti Goldfields Corporation, Ecobank 
Transnational Corporation, Chirano Gold Mines 
(Ghana), National Investment Bank (Ghana) and is 
a former chairman of the Ghana Stock Exchange. 

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTORS
FRANK BONER (67) 
Chairman 
CA(SA)
Appointed: 2010

Frank joined Global Capital Proprietary Limited, a 
boutique investment banking and private equity 
firm, in 1998 and is today CEO and sits on the 
board of all investee companies. Prior to this he 
served as managing partner of the accounting 
firm now Horwath Leveton Boner. He was also 
formerly joint managing director of Reichmans 
Limited prior to its sale to Investec Bank, where he 
subsequently served as manager of the corporate 
asset-based finance division. Frank is also a non-
executive director of Mazor Group Limited where 
he sits on certain board committees.

ALEX DARKO (60)
FCCA, MSc (MIS)
Appointed: 2010

Alex is a seasoned business executive and 
management consultant with over 30 years’ 
experience in Europe, USA and Africa. He consults 
to organisations on business and cultural 
transformation, change management, executive 
coaching and mentoring and business strategy. 

He was previously the Group CIO at AngloGold 
Ashanti and CIO and financial controller of the 
Exploration and Group Projects divisions at 
Ashanti Goldfields (before the merger). Prior to 
this Alex worked for a number of organisations 

in the UK, including for 14 years at the global 
leader in business information services, Dun 
& Bradstreet Corporation. He is currently 
an independent non-executive director and 
chairman of the audit and risk and social and 
ethics committees at Mazor Group Limited. 
He is further an independent non-executive 
director of Safintra Proprietary Limited and 
Business Connexion Limited where he serves 
on a number of committees. 

ANTHONY DIXON (67)
CA(SA), FinstD
Appointed: 2007

During a 29-year career with Coopers & Lybrand 
(PricewaterhouseCoopers), Anthony Dixon 
became regional chairman, KwaZulu-Natal and a 
long-serving member of the National Executive 
and Governing Board. From 1995 to today 
Anthony has held a number of directorships on 
major company boards including one of South 
Africa’s largest short-term insurance companies – 
Guardian National Insurance Company (before its 
merger with Santam). Anthony was the executive 
director of the IoD from 2004 to 2007. He is an 
acknowledged expert in corporate governance 
and for a number of years provided the secretariat 
role to the King Committee, of which he remains 
a member. Anthony is presently an independent 
non-executive director of Allied Technologies 
Limited (Altech) and Santova Limited. 

ROBERT HORTON (42)
CA(SA), BComm (Accounting and Information 
Systems) (UCT)
Appointed: 2011

Robert worked in the Oil & Gas sector at 
Masefield in London where he was responsible 
for East African operations. In 1998 he moved 
back to South Africa and worked in corporate 
finance before joining a leading private equity 
firm. In 2010 he joined a pan-African private 
equity fund manager where he focused largely 
on West and North African opportunities. Since 
2012 Rob has been investing funds into high 
growth opportunities on the African continent. 
Rob has served as a director of private 
companies in the building supplies, consumer 
goods, distribution and technology sectors. 

JUDI NWOKEDI (55)
BSocSc
Appointed: 2012

Judi has a distinguished career in business and 
community development. She served as MD of 
the SABC from 2001 to 2005. Judi has worked 
at Motorola Sub-Saharan Africa and AREVA. She 
is also the vice chair of the largest pan-African 
film market, Sithengi. She serves on the board 
of the University of Witwatersrand – Institute for 
the Advancement of Journalism, is chairperson 
of African Spirit Proprietary Limited and is chief 
operating officer at Tourvest. 
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

CIG’s strategic objective of well-managed growth was again realised in FY2013, with the Group 
recording double digit increases in all key financial indicators. Revenue grew 31% to just over  
R2 billion, EBITDA rose 24% year-on-year to R278 million and HEPS increased 18% to 136 cents.  
Our EBITDA margin remained within our 12% – 14% target.  (Financial results are discussed in our 
CEO’s report and are detailed in the annual financial statements.) 

The Group’s robust performance remained 
driven by the Power division, which benefited 
from substantial growth in the local renewable 
energy sector. Conco successfully capitalised on 
Round I of the Department of Energy’s REIPPP 
programme, with 20% of its order book now in 
renewable energy. This in turn offset the decline 
in tendering activity in our traditional market of 
South African municipal power. The ongoing 
development of new electrical infrastructure 
in West and East Africa also boosted earnings. 
Conco’s 19 year track record in Africa sees the 
business set to benefit from the continent’s 
push for electrification.

In December 2012 CIG agreed to acquire 30,5% 
of AES, and immediately participated in the 
management of AES. The acquisition marked 
our foray into acquisitions in Africa and exposes 
CIG to the fast growing Oil & Gas industry. 
Finalisation of the acquisition is expected in 
early 2014 when CIG will take transfer of our 
quota (shares). 

WHY AFRICA? 
In the section ‘Proudly African’ on page 13, 
you will see CIG’s undaunted commitment 
to growth on the continent given its upbeat 

prospects. While adverse factors are a reality, 
economic growth remains healthy (especially 
relative to the rest of the world) and a number 
of African economies rank among the fastest 
growing globally. In addition signs of peaceful 
political transition are increasing; procurement 
practices are becoming more transparent; and 
global forecasts – for example that of the IMF – 
are reinforcing a positive outlook. 

Countries which had previously avoided Africa 
given its risk profile, such as the USA, are now 
demonstrating a growing appetite, and the 
capital presently available coupled with the 
shortage of competent operators makes a 
compelling case for CIG’s expansion. 

Rapid urbanisation and commodities demand 
will be two key drivers of the continent’s growth. 
These work to CIG’s advantage by spurring high 
demand for infrastructure, specifically power. 
The rising interest in renewable energy in Africa 
has been led by our own REIPPP programme, 
and Conco is ideally positioned to benefit given 
its established track record in South Africa. 

Fundamental to the sustainability of our Africa 
growth strategy is a focus on managing risk. 
CIG management continues to actively manage 

R278 
million

EBITDA up 24%

R2 
billion

Revenue up 31%
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risk at an operational and at a Group level. (See 
Material issues and key risks on page 18 and 
our Risk report on page 54.)

TRANSFORMATION
BBBEE scorecarding and transformation 
processes are handled at subsidiary level in line 
with our decentralised management structure, 
and we are pleased with the improvements at 
Conco during the year.

SUSTAINABILITY 
We do not take the risk profile of trading 
in Africa lightly, as reflected in our detailed 
assessment of key risks on page 18. Identified 
operating and financial risks are mitigated by 
deliberate planning. Managing working capital 
demands and investor expectations, as growth 
accelerates, is another risk priority. We ensure 
sufficient facilities are in place on an ongoing 
basis, and the current hybrid of debt and equity 
sees that the business is adequately capitalised. 

Health and safety remains a focus area and 
policies are in place to minimise risks to our 
employees and communities. In addition we 
are committed to ensuring we minimise or 
eliminate any negative impact our operations 
may have on the environment. (See pages 40 
and 44 for further details.)

As a responsible corporate citizen, CIG is fully 
committed to balancing economic benefit with 
wider social benefit.

LOOKING AHEAD
FY2013 was the first full year of our five year 
growth strategy (see page 16) and we delivered 
robust results while building significant 
capabilities and infrastructure. In FY2014 we 
intend to continue honing our pan-African 
growth strategy to deliver on our key strategic 
objectives. We will appropriately incentivise 
growth at our operations and focus on efficient 
project execution to improve margins. We 
will also bed down our new operations and 
investments and manage their performance 
for best returns. In addition we will focus on 
strengthening the quality of the deal pipeline 
and continue evaluating opportunities to 
extend our reach in our verticals. To ensure 
the formation of a pan-African growth engine 
we will aim to better leverage technology to 
manage our businesses and deliver appropriate 
support services internally. 

Conco’s refined international strategy and 
reorganisation has positioned the business for 
continued growth. This included: 
•  developing an independent growth strategy 

for Protection & Automation;
• developing deeper regional strategies;

•  increased focus on South African 
opportunities;

•  a focus on better integrating business 
development; and

• an enhanced use of analytics. 

Going forward Protection & Automation will be 
positioned to grow its customer base beyond 
its traditional sectors and introduce new, highly-
engineered products and services. 

Africa remains our hotspot. Locally labour 
relations and slow municipal spending are 
thwarting growth in the short term. However, 
the worsening backlog as a result should bring 
about longer-term benefit for the Group in 
South Africa.

We intend to continue pursuing acquisitions in 
South Africa and Africa in the wide infrastructure 
sector that fit with existing operations or could 
be transformative in nature. Alternatively 
we may elect to reinvest in our high growth 
businesses to maintain momentum. 

MY THANKS
I wish to thank our CEO Raoul, the executive 
directors, the management team and all CIG 
employees for their commitment and efforts. 
My thanks also to my colleagues on the board 
for their astute guidance during the year. 

Finally I thank our loyal stakeholders whose 
confidence in the Group and faith in management 
is a constant inspiration to succeed.

Frank Boner 
Chairman

27 February 2014
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CEO’S REPORT

Our robust growth was largely attributable to increasing renewable energy projects in Conco, 
supported by higher volumes in Building Materials. Conco successfully executed R600 million worth 
of Round I REIPPP projects, hurdling efficiency obstacles to deliver on these complex electrical 
projects on deadline and in line with contractual standards, incurring zero penalties to date.   
The Power division continued to account for the majority of revenue: 85% and earnings: 77%.

The Group’s rapid growth – fourfold increase in 
size in four years – has necessitated a review 
of the corporate structure and a change in 
corporate culture to position for sustainability. 
We are working hard on refining operations 
and processes to adapt to functioning as a 
larger group and return to our original levels of 
operational proficiency. We continue to address 
balancing our workforce with this growth. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Revenue was up 31% or R483 million to  
R2 037 million year-on-year with EBITDA up 
24% to R278 million. Net profit grew by 25% to  
R172 million (2012: R137 million), generating a 
19% growth in earnings per share to 138,3 cents 
(2012: 116,5 cents) and headline earnings per 
share to 137,8 cents (2012: 116,1 cents). 

The decline in EBITDA margin to 13,7% from 
14,5% in the previous year is attributable to 
the lower margins in South African renewable 
energy work, given the scale of the projects. In 
addition the specific intensive focus required 
to implement these projects resulted in our 
inability to fully exploit operational efficiencies 
in other areas of the business. 

As anticipated, during the year the Group 
utilised working capital to fund the R500 million  
of revenue growth. The Round 1 REIPPP 
projects are approaching completion (the first  
R600 million out of the R870 million awarded to 
CIG) and consequently should unlock additional 
cash flow over the next period. In addition we 
are focusing on improving efficiencies to ensure 
contracts are settled timeously, which will also 
reduce working capital demands and help fund 
the growth of the business. 

Subsequent to year-end management has begun 
to introduce controls to improve assessment 
of tenders prior to submission, which should 
ensure that projects deliver enhanced cash 
generation during the execution phase. Further 
the Group has identified the negotiation of 
payment milestones as a critical area to further 
alleviate working capital pressure and free up 
cash flow to fund growth.

We are satisfied that we have in place sufficient 
facilities and guarantee lines to deliver on the 
current order book and growth prospects in 
the foreseeable future, as secured through our 
bankers and other providers of capital.

R870 
million

of Round 1 REIPPP  
projects awarded  

to CIG

R172 
million

Net profit up 25%
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Our gearing remained constant at 30% despite 
an additional R130 million raised in August 2013 
through a medium-term note programme.  
A portion of the first R270 million raised 
to finance expenditure in the alternative 
energy sector was deployed during the year 
into renewable energy projects. The Group 
maintained a Moodys credit rating of Baa2.za as 
part of the programme.

At year-end we had R504 million cash on hand.

SEGMENTAL OVERVIEW
POWER 
Conco contributed 85,0% of Group revenue, or 
R1,73 billion, increasing its contribution year-
on-year by 35,0%. EBITDA improved 19,0% to 
R214 million (2012: R179 million). 

Although margins remained under pressure, 
they are still within our acceptable range. Conco 
met all key contractual milestones, proving 
it is a highly competent supplier and a major 
contender in the REIPPP. The significant increase 
in power projects over the past few years, with 
the proportionate increase in revenue value, 
has heralded an increase in tender activity and 
competition 

Going forward renewable energy will change 
the order book profile of the business 
significantly, given the size of the projects. 
Conco is accordingly revising strategy to secure 
these larger projects while alleviating the strain 
on personnel. 

Conco’s two year rolling win rate is at 35,0%, 
slightly improved in the year. This reflects 
better business intelligence and more selective 
tendering. In order to further improve the 
win rate without adding pressure on staff, 
management is taking a more strategic 
approach to pursuing tenders. 

Further, management is systematically 
addressing working capital constraints. To this 
end we are currently focusing on improving 
efficiencies in the following areas: 
•  Milestones and governance issues delaying 

payments; 
•  Management of working capital on a project 

basis;
•  A unique cash flow profile for renewable 

energy projects; 
•  Upskilling engineers to improve project 

efficiency to completion; and
• Pro-active management of collections. 

The finance team has prioritised debtors and 
improved engagement with them by Conco 
leadership to ensure regular follow-up. In 
addition, we have developed an internal tool 
to assist engineers to better manage project 

cash flows, margin and efficiency of spend, and 
trained them in improved negotiation skills. We 
have further made working capital a KPI for 
all our engineers. In addition we have in place 
trade facilities for equipment which has long 
lead times. Our experience gained in the REIPPP 
Round I has enabled us to better understand 
milestone risk and Conco has introduced 
increased monitoring in this regard by senior 
management.

High voltage substations and overhead lines
South African municipal work, historically our 
base in this sector, was disappointing in the year. 
Not only did tenders decline but certificates 
to commence large projects were delayed by 
technical and other issues. In contrast Africa 
progressed well, with good contract wins in 
Tanzania, Kenya, Uganda and Zambia. Angola 
and Ghana also continued to develop. Our 
Saudi operation kicked off with its first small 
project and has been selected for a new project 
worth R70 million which is currently still under 
adjudication.

Renewable energy
The remaining R270 million worth of REIPPP 
Round I projects is due for delivery by Conco 
in the next financial year. All REIPPP projects 
have been internally classified as high-risk in 
light of severe penalties for late delivery and 
requirements for grid compliance in terms of 
Eskom codes. To successfully complete the 
first seven projects in the year and now the 
remainder without penalty, Conco was forced 
to re-assign highly experienced personnel.  

Protection & Automation
Protection & Automation has been an internal 
support for the substation operations for 
over ten years. Recently it has established 
a reputation for supplying protection and 
automation systems to major utilities and 
municipalities on the African continent. These 
systems are critical for controlling delivery of 
power to ensure less frequent and shorter 
outages. 

Posting R136 million revenue for the year, we have 
deemed Protection & Automation as sufficiently 
material to the Group to become a standalone 
business, with its own strategy, key customers 
and growth prospects. We believe the potential 
for growth is high should we focus on positioning 
it as an independent business, although we will 
not forego support of our existing substation 
operations. Focus is now on refining the growth 
strategy, including introducing new, highly 
engineered products and services and adapting 
assembly systems and processes for a business 
of this nature. 
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CEO’S REPORT
continued

Operations & Maintenance
Operations & Maintenance is progressing 
well as construction of the Round 1 REIPPP 
projects nears completion. It has developed 
management capacity and undertaken training 
of its South African technicians by the Danish 
Wind Academy. Operation and maintenance 
remains mostly the responsibility of OEMs, 
rather than the project owners, and many OEMs 
are still refining their strategy in this regard. 
We are confident that further opportunities 
will materialise as economic development 
and localisation thresholds will be difficult for 
international OEMs to achieve without local 
assistance. Operations & Maintenance has 
three contracts currently in hand and has 
engaged with multiple stakeholders. We are 
currently negotiating terms with a subset of 
OEMs and project owners. 

BUILDING MATERIALS
Despite a still low growth environment, the 
division delivered an admirable performance 
with revenue up 14,0% to R310 million (2012: 
R273 million) and EBITDA up 7,0% to R62 million 
(2012: R58 million). 

The business continued to gain market 
share, particularly in the roof tile market and 
aggregates sector. However, due to price 
sensitivity it was unable to pass on the full 
extent of cost increases to customers. 

Certain positive developments indicate an 
uptick in local civil construction, including major 
developments such as Douw Steyn’s ‘Steyn City’ 
and a call from the Presidential Infrastructure 
Co-ordinating Commission to ‘up the pace of 
the infrastructure drive’. The value of building 
plans has also risen 18,0%. With evidence of 
a turnaround, two small acquisitions were 
concluded: the Laezonia quarry close to a high 
growth node in Northern Johannesburg and the 
Orkney roof tile operation. These acquisitions 
did not contribute to results and are expected 
to do so in the year ahead.

OIL & GAS
Our acquisition of a substantial minority stake 
in AES was announced on 3 December 2012 
and we have since participated in management. 
AES secured substantial new contracts with 
the international oil companies during the year 
and we are pleased with its performance as 
expected. Inclusion of AES for the eight months 
since acquisition would have boosted CIG’s 
HEPS by 13%.

We are upbeat about AES’s prospects in light 
of increased demand in the oil industry in 
Angola and the introduction of more stringent 

environmental standards in 2014. We helped 
AES to secure a USD30 million financing 
agreement with Standard Bank Angola, which 
will help fund the business’s growth with 
minimal additional shareholder assistance. 

We believe AES is the start of a Group Oil & 
Gas platform that will expand to include other 
support services in the future.

OUR PEOPLE 
We intend to ramp up our investment in people 
as we acknowledge that securing the right people 
will remain an ongoing challenge and a key risk. 

Critical to our five year growth strategy is 
boosting our workforce both locally and 
internationally to match requirements. To this 
end our recruitment drive continues. We have 
established a Conco Skills Academy, which 
is currently being rolled out to increase staff 
retention. Eight interns were recruited in the 
year and 16 further recruits are planned for the 
year ahead.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND  
ENVIRONMENT
We continually seek to assess and improve our 
policies relating to the health and safety of our 
employees.

In all our operations we also take cognisance 
of our impact on the environment and seek to 
minimise this wherever possible. See pages 40 
to 44 for further detail.

LOOKING AHEAD
The market is promising across all three 
verticals. Investment in power in Africa 
continues unabated. US President Obama 
recently announced a USD7 billion power 
initiative for Africa, Nigeria signed a  
USD1,1 billion deal with China and the Ghanaian 
power authority is to sell USD500 million debt 
to double capacity. Trading conditions in the 
local civil construction sector are looking up – 
the construction confidence index grew from 
45 to 51 reaching higher levels than between 
2010 – 2012. And there is vigorous demand for 
services in the Oil & Gas sector in Angola and 
across the continent. 

At Group level we are building a solid platform 
for sustainability. We have in place adequate 
facilities to manage growth requirements. We 
have also improved risk management and are 
effectively evaluating trends and anticipating 
opportunity for immediate investment. In this 
regard we have set up infrastructure in Mauritius 
to manage our international investments. We 
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are also in the process of refining IT to better 
monitor and connect operations across the 
Group for improved efficiency and performance. 

Conco still has one-third of the Round 1 REIPPP 
projects to complete. While negotiations on the 
award of Round 2 projects are ongoing, we have 
nonetheless secured orders of R290 million out 
of a potential R500 million. This is lower than 
optimal, as developers in this round divided 
the work between multiple contractors which 
negated our full turnkey capability that had 
proved our advantage in Round 1. We believe 
we remain well positioned for Round 3, as the 
market observes our high-quality output and 
ability to mitigate execution risks.

Protection & Automation is expected to secure 
significant contracts from utilities over the next 
12 months, which should materially impact the 
operation in 2015.

Recent investment in Operations & Maintenance 
is yielding positive results. The division has 
noted an increasing trend from municipalities 
to outsource maintenance on a longer-term 
contractual basis. This bodes well for future 
growth.

Africa remains a focus with the Group mitigating 
market volatility by operating in multiple 
economies across the continent. 

MY THANKS
We are on an exciting growth path at CIG, and 
this is due to the dedication of our exceptional 
team who remain integral in taking the Group to 
the next level. I thank you all.

I also thank our non-executive directors for 
their strong leadership and objective guidance. 

Raoul Gamsu 
Chief executive officer

27 February 2014

Our core business, Conco, has cemented a vertical growth trajectory with a strong order book 
and higher than expected levels of bidding and tenders awaiting adjudication. Opportunities for 
projects of much larger scale and scope than we have historically executed, are on the horizon. 
(We are feeling some downward pricing pressure from Iberian and Asian competitors in order to 
potentially secure these high value contracts.) 

Conco turnover by division 

 Substations
 Overhead lines
 Protection and automation
 Renewable energy

2012 2013
31%

5%

35%

64%
3%

15%

47%

Conco turnover by client type 

 Municipalities

 Supply authorities
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 Transport

 Renewable energy

2012 2013
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FINANCIAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT

This report is intended to provide additional insight into the financial performance of CIG for 
the year under review. It should be read in conjunction with the consolidated annual financial 
statements presented on pages 56 to 102 and the chairman’s and CEO’s reports on pages 26 and 28.

Through Conco, the power and electrification sector remains the core focus for CIG, with 85% 
of Group revenue and earnings and 77% of Group EBITDA directly attributed to this sector. 
Accordingly the primary focus of this report is directed towards Conco.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REVENUE
Group revenue grew by R483 million to  
R2 037 million, a 31% increase over the prior 
year. Of the increases, R447 million was 
attributable to Conco, which grew revenue 
revenue 35% to R1 727 million. Revenue for 
FY2014 should continue to grow given Conco’s 
secured 10% order book increase at year-
end, to R2,2 billion. Although there is always 
an element of uncertainty in the awarding of 
contracts, an 11,5% increase in the value of 
CIG tenders awaiting adjudication at year-end 
(R6,8 billion) provides comfort that a sufficient 
tender cushion is in place to enable the growth 
in revenue.

EBITDA
EBITDA grew by R53 million to R278 million, a 
24% increase over the prior year. The decline 
in EBITDA margin to 13,7% from 14,5% is partly 
attributable to the lower margin South African 
renewable energy work. While the scale and 
scope of the local renewable energy work 
demanded intense focus in the year, it also 
resulted in an inability to fully exploit other 
operational efficiencies across other areas 
of the business. EBITDA margin will always be 
dependent not only on the geographic mix 
of work undertaken, with margins obtained 
outside of South Africa tracking slightly higher 
than domestic margins, but as importantly, on 
our ability to extract operational efficiencies. 
Notwithstanding that the margin premium 
on ex-South Africa work has diminished over 
time, we expect to remain within our targeted 
EBITDA margin range of 12,5% to 14,5% in the 
foreseeable future.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation and amortisation increased by 
12,5% to R44,6 million. The Group invested 
R69 million in fixed assets during the year 
and has budgeted capital expenditure of  
R67 million for FY2014. Accordingly there should 
not be a significant increase in the depreciation 
and amortisation charge in the year ahead. 
Investments in property, plant and equipment 
are made to improve operational efficiencies 
and capacity through the replacement of plant 
and equipment that has become costly to 
maintain, or on the back of secured contracts 

where current equipment cannot meet the 
demand.

TAXATION
The tax charge to the income statement 
amounted to R46 million and translates to an 
effective tax rate of 21,1%, compared to a 27,2% 
effective tax rate in the prior year. The reduction 
in the rate is due to the application of capital 
gains tax to a portion of the other income 
accrued during the year, tax rate benefits 
achieved on certain foreign contracts, and a 
reversal of an over-provision of other foreign 
contracts (which have subsequently been 
assessed at a lower tax rate than previously 
provided for).

PROFIT AND EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year improved by 25% to  
R172 million (2012: R137 million).

Earnings per share of 138,3 cents (2012:  
116,5 cents) and headline earnings per share of 
137,8 cents (2012: 116,1 cents) each represent 
an increase of 19% over the previous year. 
Following the issue of shares for cash in May 
2013, there were 5,1% and 6,0% respective 
increases in the weighted average and diluted 
weighted average number of shares in issue 
during the year. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
The directors have tested the recoverability of our 
intangibles and goodwill. As at 31 August 2013, 
based on our projections and estimates as further 
disclosed in notes 4 and 5 to the annual financial 
statements, the directors are satisfied that no 
impairments are necessary.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT 
CUSTOMERS AND INVESTMENT IN WORKING 
CAPITAL
Due to the nature of the turnkey development 
work undertaken by Conco, the required 
investment in working capital will always fluctuate 
throughout the life cycle and according to the 
terms of each contract.

Amounts due from contract customers 
comprises the following three elements:
•  Amounts receivable and billed as soon as 

a contract milestone has been achieved.  

Group revenue

R2 037 
million
Group revenue grew by  
R483 million to R2 037 million, 
a 31% increase over the  
prior year 

Profit

R172 
million
Profit for the year improved  
by 25% to R172 million  
(2012: R137 million)  

EBITDA

R278 
million
EBITDA grew by R53 million to 
R278 million, a 24% increase 
over the prior year  
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A typical contract will have multiple contract 
milestones that will determine when a 
bill can be raised. These milestones will 
generally follow the project phases of 
design, procurement, installation and final 
commissioning. The percentage attributable 
to each milestone will vary per contract;

•  Retentions receivable from contracts that 
will be billed to our customers as soon as 
the retention period has passed. Retentions 
typically vary between 5,0% and 10,0% of 
contract value and are usually collectible 
within 12 months from conclusion of a 
project; and

•  Costs incurred plus recognised profits on 
each project. This is calculated subsequent 
to all billing and takes into account the 
current percentage of completion on each 
project by calculating actual costs incurred 
as a percentage of total project cost.

The amounts due from contract customers are 
therefore heavily influenced by not only contract 
milestones negotiated upfront per project, but 
also the lead times involved to procure the 
bulk of our material. In order to achieve more 
competitive pricing in the procurement process 
we have witnessed an increasing shift in spend 
to overseas suppliers, which has resulted in an 
increase in our required investment in working 
capital. Although we will always endeavour 
to negotiate favourable payment milestones 
to shorten the working capital investment 
required for each project, we also need to take 
into consideration the requirements of both 
our suppliers and our customers to ensure all 
parties are satisfied with the respective contract 
terms.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, FACILITIES AND 
COVENANTS
CIG has implemented a R500 million domestic 
medium-term note programme (MTN programme). 
To date, CIG has issued R400 million of notes 
under the MTN programme (as detailed in 
note 15 to the annual financial statements). 
The financial covenants applicable to the MTN 
programme are as follows:

Covenant 
description

Covenant 
limit

Actual 
covenant 

31 August
2013

EBITDA interest 
cover

> 4  
times

17,99 
times

Net debt: equity < 50% (1,3%)
Residual asset 
ratio

> 1,85 
times

3,99  
times

CIG remains comfortable that sufficient working 
capital facilities have been put in place to 
support the current order book, and to facilitate 

the Group’s short-term growth. In addition to 
the MTN programme, overdraft, trade finance 
and revolving credit facilities to the value of 
R515 million are in place with various banks and 
financial institutions.

Guarantee facilities are an integral part of all 
projects. Facilities have been secured through 
our banking partner, Standard Chartered, as 
well as through Lombard Insurance. Sufficient 
facilities totalling R1,3 billion are in place to 
meet current and future demand.

CIG is satisfied that it can comfortably service 
its current debt and is comfortable to maintain 
a gross debt:equity ratio of around 35,0% 
(currently 30,6% at year-end).

DIVIDEND
The dividend policy was reviewed by the 
board. After taking into account prevailing 
circumstances and future cash requirements 
all earnings generated by the Group will be 
utilised to fund the anticipated growth in the 
year ahead. Accordingly, no dividend has been 
recommended for the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group is exposed to a range of financial 
risks through its business activities, including 
risks relating to the markets, currency risks, 
interest rate risks, credit and liquidity risks. 
The Group’s exposure to and the policies for 
managing these risks are detailed in note 35 to 
the annual financial statements.

GOING CONCERN ASSERTION
The board has formally considered the going 
concern assertion for CIG and is of the opinion 
that it is appropriate for the forthcoming year.

CONCLUSION FOR THE YEAR AHEAD
The Group, with the assistance of our banking 
and insurance partners, has ensured that 
adequate financing and guarantee facilities 
are in place to meet our working capital and 
bonding requirements for the foreseeable 
future, and to support our growth strategy. We 
assess our requirements on a regular basis 
and continue to work closely with our financial 
partners to ensure the appropriate levels of 
facilities are in place at all times.

Ivor Klitzner
Financial director

27 February 2014
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We strive to minimise risks to the health and safety of our 
employees and our communities, and any negative impact 
on the environment. 

ADDING VALUE
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BBBEE
Conco is a Level 4 contributor

Training
1 183 employees (including LDC) received 
on average 16 hours of training

Workforce 
35% of Conco’s workforce is covered by 
collective agreements



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 201336

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORT

The committee’s responsibilities encompass monitoring and regulating the impact of the group on its stakeholders. Although 
management is tasked with overseeing the day-to-day operational sustainability of their respective areas of business, and reporting 
thereon to the social and ethics committee, the board remains ultimately responsible for group sustainability.

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

The committee is chaired by independent 
non-executive director Alex Darko and further 
comprises independent non-executive director 
Judi Nwokedi and financial director Ivor Klitzner. 
Details of attendance are on page 51). 

The purpose of the committee is to regularly 
monitor the Group’s activities, with regard to any 
relevant legislation, other legal requirements or 
prevailing codes of best practice, in respect of 
the following:
•  Social and economic development, including 

the Group’s standing in terms of the: 
 –  10 principles set out in the United Nations 

Global Compact Principles;
 –  OECD recommendations regarding 

corruption;
 – Employment Equity Act; and
 –  Broad-based Black Economic 

Empowerment Act;
•  Good corporate citizenship, including the 

Group’s:
 –   promotion of equality, prevention of 

unfair discrimination, and reduction of 
corruption;

 –   contribution to development of the 
communities in which our activities are 
predominantly conducted or within 
which our products or services are 
predominantly marketed; and

 –   record of sponsorship, donations and 
charitable giving;

•  Environment, health and public safety, 
including the impact of the Group’s activities 
and its services;

•  Consumer relationships, including the 
Group’s advertising, public relations and 
compliance with consumer protection laws; 
and

•  Labour and employment, including the 
Group’s:

 –   standing in terms of the International 
Labour Organisation Protocol on decent 
work and working conditions; and

 –   employment relationships, and our 
contribution towards the educational 
development of our employees.

Although still in its infancy the committee is 
satisfied with the progress we are making in 
terms of our objectives and compliance with 
our terms of reference.

Alex Darko
Social and ethics committee chairman

27 February 2014

Group economic value generated, distributed 
and retained

Group economic value distributed breakdown

 Direct economic value generated      Economic value distributed
 Economic value retained

 Operating costs      Employee wages and benefits
 Payments to providers of capital      Payments to government (by country)
 Community investments

2012
R1,462
million

2013
R1,962
million
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Zero
incidents of  

discriminatory  
behaviour

TRANSFORMATION

Conco is accredited as a Level 4 B-BBEE 
contributor. Within the Building Materials 
division, WECB is a Level 8 contributor, while 
DSS received a “Satisfactory” rating according to 
the Mining Industry Scorecard.  

We remain committed to improving our 
implementation of the B-BBEE Code across 
each operating division, and will continue our 
efforts to improve in aspects where we are 
currently lagging.

CIG views transformation in South Africa as a moral and business imperative and as essential to 
the sustainability of the Group. Broad based black economic empowerment is integral to the way 
we do business. The directors continually monitor progress against transformation objectives, 
supported by the social and ethics committee.

CIG has an effective BEE shareholding in excess of 35% (2012: 35%).  

OUR PEOPLE

Low
employee turnover

51%
increase in Conco  

training spend

No
incidents of  

labour unrest

We strive to attract and retain employees of the highest calibre to uphold performance and sustainability, 
and in parallel prioritise optimal working conditions and opportunities for development. 
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OUR PEOPLE
continued

As Conco is the major driver of Group results, 
focus on information in this section is primarily 
on this business.

At Conco the HR director, supported by the  
HR business partners, is responsible for employee 
relations. HR officers are the immediate on-site 
liaison and report to the HR business partners. 

In addition we employ limited duration contract 
(LDC) workers, reflecting the nature of an 
industry where work is project-driven and 
employment is subject to contract awards. LDC 
employees at Conco work for periods of six to 
nine months. Local employment is a priority 
and wherever possible we recruit from local 
communities in which our projects are located. 

Non-discriminatory employment practices 
prevail. No incidents of discrimination were 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY BY EMPLOYMENT LEVEL (GROUP)

2013

2013
Total

2012
Total

Male Female

A C I W F A C I W F

Top management 2 0 1 8 1 1 0 0 0 0 13 27*

Senior management 3 0 0 12 1 1 0 0 2 0 19
Professionally qualified 19 3 6 49 2 3 0 1 3 1 87 114†

Skilled technical 113 6 3 97 6 42 4 2 34 1 308 276#

Semi-skilled 385 5 0 3 6 23 5 1 8 0 436 278
Unskilled 231 13 0 0 13 40 3 0 1 0 301 168
Total permanent 753 27 10 169 29 110 12 4 48 2 1 164 863

A African C Coloured I Indian W White F Foreign

* Total represents top and senior management
† Total represents middle management 
# Total represents junior management and skilled 

reported during the year. Should such incidents 
be reported an investigation will be carried out 
and if substantiated, a disciplinary enquiry will 
be convened, the outcome of which may lead to 
termination of services. 

The Group has in place a Disciplinary and 
Grievance Code which is communicated to all 
employees on joining the company and is also 
available on the company intranet. The Code 
encapsulates the right of the employee to be 
represented by the union during disciplinary 
hearings.

During the year Conco implemented an electronic 
performance appraisal system for all permanent 
employees (39% of Conco’s workforce). 

The second phase will cover LDC employees, and 
is intended to be rolled out in the year ahead.

Engineer  
in Training 
Programme
introduced for newly qualified 
engineers Conco Skills Academy 
doubling intern intake year-
on-year

Conco
has 829 permanent employees. 
Our success in fostering an 
employee-focused environment 
is evident in our quarterly 
turnover rate of 4,39%

Conco
introduced Employee Wellness 
Programme

HR RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 
(CONCO)

HR OFFICER 
Responsibilities: Visiting sites regularly;  driving  HR and employee wellness on-site; establishing and maintaining contact with 
local hospitals and doctors contracted to our employees’ medical aid plan; implementing our HIV/AIDS and anti-retroviral 
programmes; liaising with surrounding communities to facilitate local recruitment and secure open engagement channels; 
ensuring conditions at employee facilities and on-site meet required hygiene standards including fresh drinking water; ensuring 
condom dispensers are replenished; arranging for counselling on request; supporting employees’ families when necessary.

HR DIRECTOR  
Responsibilities: Overall accountability for HR; reporting to Exco on HR issues; formulating and implementing strategy; designing and 
driving Conco ’s Employee Wellness Programme.

HR BUSINESS PARTNER 
Responsibilities: Addressing HR issues as quickly and effectively as possible; escalating problems to the HR director when necessary; 
planning and implementing strategy; overseeing disciplinary procedures; harnessing employee skills; ensuring policy is effectively 
implemented; supporting HR officers.
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LABOUR RELATIONS 
The Group believes that every employee has 
the right to belong to a union. Conco has 
a recognition agreement with UASA, which 
represents all wage-earning site employees 
(60% of Conco’s workforce). Excluding LDC 
employees, 35% of Conco’s workforce is covered 
by collective agreements. Site managers and 
supervisors are excluded. 

Quarterly meetings are held with UASA and 
shop stewards at the Workers’ Forum. UASA is 
also consulted with regard to the formulation of 
employment equity and workplace skills plans. 
Conco’s relationship with the union during the 
year was sound and there were no incidents of 
unrest. 

No significant financial assistance is received 
from government.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 
During the year Conco offered all our employees 
wellness testing for blood pressure, cholesterol 
and diabetes. In addition we implemented a 
formal programme to create awareness of 
healthy lifestyle choices. 

We further have a well-developed HIV/AIDS 
programme, which, in addition to voluntary 
testing and counselling, includes a programme 
to ensure that all employees and their families 
on anti-retroviral medication have easy access 
thereto wherever they are based. We are 
currently enhancing the programme to include 
an education component regarding the impact 
of lifestyle and nutrition on the disease. 

In line with our encouragement of fitness as a 
lifestyle choice, we are proud of Conco’s action 
cricket and netball teams who came second 
and third in their respective leagues. During 
the year a Conco Running/Walking team was 
also established and a group of Conco cyclists 
proudly rode the Momentum 94.7 cycle race in 
full Conco sponsored kit. 

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND  
TRAINING
At CIG we believe in ‘growing our own 
timber’, making training and education of our 
workforce a key priority. Skills development is 
conducted at subsidiary level. The Conco HR 
director, supported by the training manager, is  
responsible for skills development and training 
across Conco. 

Conco’s training spend for the year was  
R4,9 million. 

Employees at all levels are encouraged to 
participate in relevant technical and professional 
education programmes. 

A total of 1 183 employees received on average  
16 hours of training during the year, focused in 
the following areas:
• Risk assessment; 
• Safety;
• Skills training; 
• Administration;
• Project management; and
• Financial management.

An Engineer in Training Programme for newly 
qualified engineers was established during the 
year, with an initial intake of four engineers.  CIG 
also has an Intern Training Programme which 
provides electrical and civil engineering students 
with the opportunity to complete their year-long 
Work Integrated Learning phase at the Group. 

CONCO
The recruitment drive to increase the Group’s 
skills base has been ably aided by the Conco 
Skills Academy.  The Academy seeks to develop 
and educate engineers in line with Conco’s high 
standards, with the intention of retaining these 
graduates to facilitate the robust growth plans.

During the year an additional eight interns 
(2012: 13) were enrolled in the Academy. It has 
recruited 16 candidates for 2014 and introduced 
a bursary scheme for engineering graduates.

HUMAN RIGHTS 
CIG is committed to promoting and maintaining 
respect for human rights, as defined in the 
United Nations’ Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights, in all its activities and operating locations. 
The company does not tolerate any activities on 
the part of its employees or sub-contractors 
that might contravene the basic human rights 
of any individual. 

Community engagement, particularly in Conco, 
remains a key focus area, which translates into 
recruitment practices in relation to local labour. 
A code of conduct is in place setting standards 
and guidelines regarding interactions with local 
communities and local authorities. This includes 
measures to reduce the risks of hiring underage 
employees. CIG also actively engages with its 
suppliers in this and other areas. 

During the year under review, no human 
rights-related clauses were included in 
supplier agreements, but it is the intention of 
CIG’s management, and that of its operating 
divisions, to constantly monitor this aspect of its 
supplier relationships, and wherever necessary, 
to include such clauses in new agreements 
concluded with suppliers in the future. 

The Group received no fines or sanctions during 
the year. Management is not aware of any 
incidents relating to human rights violations on 
the part of any of its employees during the year.

Definition

UASA
A registered trade union 
which represents workers 
in the diamond, motor, 
manufacturing, transport, 
mining and engineering 
industries
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Achieved a LTIFR of 

0,11
(12 months rolling  

average)

SAFETY AT CONCO
We recognise that Conco’s operations are 
relatively hazardous by nature as the company 
constructs and commissions high voltage 
substations and overhead lines. We therefore 
have in place a formal SHE Plan designed to 
protect our people and mitigate the impact of 
our operations on the environment. In addition, 
we comply with the SHE requirements and 
frameworks of our clients. We take this so 
seriously that employees are incentivised to 
participate in achieving our SHE targets. This 
is reinforced by ongoing communication and 

Given the field in which we operate, health and safety is an operational imperative at CIG and 
a key deliverable for the relevant business executives. We strive to minimise risks to the health 
and safety of our employees and our communities, and any negative impact on the environment. 

We accordingly have in place a ‘Zero Harm’ policy indicating zero tolerance for any non-
conformance which threatens our people and the environment. We fully comply with the 
Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 and other relevant regulations and internationally 
recognised standards and guidelines, such as OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO 9001:2008. Conco also 
aligned all relevant documentation such as Procedures and Work Instructions according to the 
Integrated SHEQ Systems, which include alignment with the requirements of ISO 9001 (Quality), 
ISO 14001 (Environmental) and OHSAS 18001 (Health and Safety).

training programmes to increase individual 
awareness and accountability. 

Conco’s formal SHE Plan translates into an 
effective SHE Management System to manage 
hazards, risks and impacts on a daily basis. At 
the onset of projects a Baseline Risk Assessment 
is undertaken in terms of which SHE-related 
risks are identified, assessed and documented 
to enable pro-active measurement and 
analysis, with the aim of reducing, mitigating 
or where possible eliminating these risks. Risk 
management is applied and measured during 
all phases of projects.  

Definitions

LTIFR
Lost time injury frequency rate

SHE
Safety, health and environment

SHE Plan
Safety, Health and Environment 
Management Plan

SHERQ
Safety, health, environment,  
risk and quality

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (CONCO)

Actual 
Criteria Target 2013 2012 2011

Number of fatalities 0 0 1 0
Fatality frequency rate 0 0 0,05 0
LTIFR 0,5 0,11 0,08 0,46

Below 
target

LTIFR of

 0,5
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SHE RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 
(CONCO)

HR OFFICER 

SITE MANAGER 
Responsibilities: Development and implementation of a SHE Management Plan on-site; ensuring its continued relevance to progress 
of operations; providing adequate safety resources, services and facilities; overall responsibility for SHE performance.

SAFETY REPRESENTATIVE  
Responsibilities: Addressing safety related disputes on-site; advising and assisting with day-to-day safety during construction; 
reporting unsafe conditions; examining the cause/s of reported incidents; participating in consultations with inspectors. 

SAFETY OFFICER 
Responsibilities: Implementing and auditing the SHE Management Plan; establishing induction and training programmes to ensure 
employees are familiar with the Plan and Conco’s full safety programme; accident/incident and statistical data recording and 
reporting; tool box meetings and management liaison on SHE issues; co-ordinating site-specific safety incentive schemes and 
planned task observations and safe behaviour observations. (The remoteness of the sites means that, to an extent, the safety officer 
takes full responsibility for overseeing the safety and health function.) 

ENVIRONMENTAL OFFICER 
Responsibilities: Minimising environmental damage and preventing pollution; implementing on-site the environmental aspects of 
Conco’s SHE Management System; ensuring compliance with clients’ environmental requirements; record keeping of environmental 
incidents and registers (waste and oil spill) and corrective actions; providing environmental awareness training for all staff; advising 
the project team on remediation and rehabilitation work. 

CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISOR 
Responsibilities: Ensuring all site staff are familiar with the SHE Management Plan and it is executed in the day-to-day operations 
of a project. 

Employees are issued with a “Stop Card”, 
which has “5 Steps to Safety”. These give every 
employee the authority to red-card unsafe 
acts or conditions immediately, and assess 
the risk by reference to the “5 Steps to Safety”. 
The site manager, construction supervisor 
and safety officer coach employees in the 
application of the “Stop Card” system on a daily 
basis. We also have in place a programme to 
reward recognition of near-misses (which are 
addressed in SHEQ workshops).

Internal audits are conducted on-site every 
three months. An independent SHEQ audit 
and gap analysis is compiled. We achieved 
ISO 18001 (safety) accreditation in the year. In 
addition our clients conduct ad hoc site audits. 

Site safety officers do self-assessment audits 
on a monthly basis. The self-assessment audit 
reports are checked during second party audits, 
either by the client and/or by Conco SHEQ 
Department. These audits ensure compliance 
and conformance is monitored and that 
continual improvement is tracked throughout 
the duration of the project. 

Objectives and targets are drafted from gap 
analysis findings and monitored to ensure 
all deviations or observations are addressed 
prior to the actual certification audits. The gap 
analysis reviews and assesses Conco’s systems 
and application thereof. In line with international 
requirements an independent party audits the 
systems and conformance thereto. 

Conco’s
senior management are 
actively involved in Conco’s 
safety framework and 
demonstrate leadership 
through example. Toolbox 
talks are held on a daily 
basis at the beginning of 
each shift, with input from 
all site personnel. Employees 
who have not participated in 
these talks are not allowed to 
commence work. In addition 
daily safe task instruction 
meetings are held for every 
role to discuss and remedy 
potential hazards. Further, 
safety meetings are held once 
a month with all employees

FIRST AIDER 
Responsibilities: Assisting persons with a first aid injury; ensuring the appropriateness and adequacy of the first aid kit on an ongoing 
basis; helping and advising in the case of a serious injury. 

RISK ASSESSOR  
Responsibilities: Ensuring a risk assessment is concluded before commencement of work; identifying, analysing and evaluating all 
risks; ensuring that procedures are in place to mitigate, reduce or control the risks; monitoring and reviewing the SHE Management 
Plan; ensuring that hazards and related work are communicated to all the employees before the work commences. See diagram 
overleaf. 
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
continued
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TRAINING 
During the year our key objective was the 
further development of our safety officers.   
Conco’s dedicated Training and Development 
Department is responsible for identifying the 
training needs for each Conco employee within 
three categories:
•  Mandatory: Legal compliance training as 

determined by legislation and client-specific 
training interventions prior to deployment 
to site;

•  Core training: Job-specific skills training 
to perform duties and meet and exceed 
customer and engineering practices/
standards; and

• Developmental: Defined per individual. 

All site safety officers were required to enrol 
through Oxbridge Academy to obtain their 
diploma in SHE Management. This addresses 
the requirements of most of our clients and 
also enhances the skills level of our safety 
professionals on projects. 

All Conco and sub-contractor employees receive 
the client’s and Conco’s SHE induction training 
(including the client’s cardinal rules) as well as 
specific safety training on-site, conducted by the 
safety officer. Any transgression of SHE rules will 
result in disciplinary action.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 
In March 2012 Conco introduced an 
Occupational Hygiene Programme aimed at 
promoting awareness and addressing issues 
of exposure to occupational hazards in the 
workplace. It has two components:
• Occupational Health and Hygiene; and
• Medical Surveillance.

This is complemented by our Employee 
Wellness Programme discussed on page 39. 

Regular occupational hygiene surveys are 
conducted at Conco by our occupational hygienist 
and recommendations are communicated, 
implemented and enforced to all involved 
staff during the projects. During the year 
our occupational hygiene officer conducted 
workplace risk assessments, compiling a matrix 
of exposure per job category. This data facilitates 

the implementation of controls and monitoring of 
exposure and the spread of contamination, and 
will inform medical surveillance. 

The medical surveillance aspect of the 
programme, which will be implemented in the 
year ahead, will contribute to risk management. 
Medical surveillance will begin on placement 
of a new employee, continue throughout 
employment, and end with termination of 
the employment relationship. Ideally, where 
indicated by the risk, follow-up will continue 
beyond the workplace and into retirement.

During the year fatigue management was 
monitored and as a result Conco has introduced 
a fatigue management programme which 
enforces working hours. Extensive overtime will 
be phased out and from January 2014 overtime 
for projects may only be worked if included in 
a preplan from the client and pre-approved by 
the divisional director.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY 
CIG is committed to providing its clients with 
the highest quality products. Within Building 
Materials the products of both DSS and WECB 
are certified as complying with accepted 
industry standards. At DSS a South African 
National Accreditation System approved 
testing laboratory undertakes weekly tests 
on the company’s products. WECB’s products 
are approved by the South African Bureau of 
Standards (SABS), and its operational practices 
are in line with the ISO:9001 quality standard. 

Due to the nature of its business Conco does 
not have primary responsibility for compliance 
with various national and international 
standards related to safety, quality and 
operational efficiency as this generally lies 
with the equipment manufacturers. The 
company actively engages with its suppliers 
on an ongoing basis, and wherever possible 
enters into supplier agreements that allow it 
to actively monitor the quality of component 
manufacturing processes. 

The Group received no significant fines for 
non-compliance with laws and regulations 
concerning the provision and use of products 
and services.

Occupational 
hygiene 
stressors
We consider the following to be 
occupational hygiene stressors:
•  Noise from jack-hammers, 

concrete vibrators, 
compactors and 
compressors

•  Dust from excavations and 
dusty roads

•  Temperature extremes from 
working in the field

•  Ergonomics from awkward 
postures

•  Whole body vibration from 
driving through rough 
terrain on a daily basis

•  Hand-arm vibration from 
handling power tools

•  Biological hazards (bee 
stings; snake bites)

•  Hazardous chemical 
exposure (shutter oil; 
lubrication oils; greases  
and diesel)

Employees doing stressful work, 
such as working in confined 
spaces, working with impact 
tools such as jack-hammers, 
which causes excessive 
vibration, are monitored and 
frequent breaks are given in 
order to prevent continuous 
exposure to these hazards

PROJECT SPECIFIC TRAINING REQUIRED PER DISCIPLINE

Induction 
Conco

Induction 
client

Client 
cardinal

Legal 
liability HIRA Safety rep First aid

Working 
at heights

Basic 
rigging

Basic fire 
fighting Welding Electrician

SHE man-
agement 
diploma

Site manager
Safety officer
Supervisor
Foreman
Safety representative
First aider
Substation erector
Crane operator
Truck driver
Fire fighter
Welder
Electrician
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

Conco has a firm commitment to minimising the impact of its operations on the local environment 
and community, through the Environmental Management System (EMS). Environmental aspects 
of the activities, products and services that Conco can control and directly manage, and those 
it does not control or directly manage but can be expected to influence, are identified within 
the defined scope of the EMS. The identification of environmental aspects is undertaken and 
maintained through an Aspect and Impact Register while an Environmental Management Plan is 
developed to address significant environmental impacts.

The performance of the business operations against the identified environmental aspects and 
impacts are managed, monitored and reported in accordance with the requirements of the EMS. 

EMS 
requirements  
•  System monitoring and 

maintenance 
•  Environmental and social 

monitoring 
•  Inspections 
•  Non-conformance and 

corrective and preventative 
actions 

•  Incident management
•  Communication and 

consultation
•  Internal audits

Conco is 
committed 
to:
•  Continual improvement
•  Prevention of pollution, 

waste management and 
resource conservation

•  Meeting or exceeding 
relevant environmental 
legislation, regulations and 
other requirements

•  Regular performance 
reviews to ensure 
that environmental 
objectives, targets and 
the requirements of all 
interested parties are 
met. The major objectives 
and targets related to the 
businesses activities include

 –   Reduction of waste and 
waste separation 

 –   Proper handling of 
hazardous chemicals

 –   Minimise disturbance to 
flora, fauna and affected 
landowners

 –  Soil erosion control
 –   Rehabilitation of 

construction areas 
•  Provision of staff training on 

the EMS and environmental 
legal requirements and 
to ensure understanding, 
implementation and 
development of these 
principles throughout  
our business

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY  
MATRIX 

PROJECT MANAGER 
Responsibilities: Overall implementation of the Environmental Management Plan; ensuring adequate resources are provided for 
the implementation of the Plan; issuing site instructions to rectify any environmental non-compliance based on the environmental 
officer’s findings.

CONTRACTOR’S ENVIRONMENTAL OFFICER 
Responsibilities: Ensuring that the Environmental Management Plan is implemented and complied with on-site on a daily basis; 
maintaining environmental records and overseeing management of environmental emergency and preventive or corrective 
actions; delivering toolbox talks on environmental management to site staff; ensuring all rehabilitation measures are completed on 
handover of the site to clients.

CONTRACTOR’S SITE MANAGER 
Responsibilities: Day-to-day overview of site practices in relation to environmental management.

We are required to comply with our clients’ 
Environmental Management Plans, which address 
the protection and ongoing management of 
natural resources both on- and off-site, especially 
during the construction of overhead transmission 
lines. 

In addition Conco has its own SHE Management 
Plan in place which demonstrates our 
commitment to, and capability of undertaking 
construction work without causing environmental 
degradation. 

It further provides a statutory basis for managing, 
mitigating and monitoring our environmental 
impacts and describes the environmental 
management roles and responsibilities of the 
project team. 

Although Conco is not ISO:14001 compliant, our 
systems integrate into the standard to facilitate 
our clients’ compliance. 

Conco tracks key environmental performance 
indicators including oil spillage, damage to 
stream/wetland and archaelogical artefacts, fire 
incidents and any public complaints relating to 
environmental damage. No significant incidents 
occurred during the year (2012: no significant 
incidents).

CIG is not aware of any serious infringements 
on the part of its subsidiary companies of 
environmental regulations in South Africa 
or any other countries in which the Group 
operates. Similarly, no fines or sanctions have 
been imposed on the Group or its operating 
companies for contraventions of environmental 
regulations in any country in which it operates.

None of the Group’s activities had a significant 
impact on biodiversity in a protected area.
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COMMUNITY UPLIFTMENT

There is a famous Chinese proverb: “Give a man a fish and he will eat for a day, teach a man to fish 
and he will eat for the rest of his life”. Through Conco’s Corporate Social Investment programme 
we aim to create a foundation on which South Africa can grow, helping to transform the lives of 
the large percentage of the population that live in poverty. Conco’s strategy seeks to have a long 
lasting and sustainable impact on the communities by enabling them to address and overcome 
the multiple challenges they face.

During 2013, Conco initiated several exciting 
projects. Some of the projects we supported in 
2013:
•  Oliver’s House are actively involved in 

education, training, skills development, job 
creation and early childhood development. 
Their beneficiaries come from disadvantaged 
areas on the East Rand in which the social 
service infrastructure is stretched to the limit 
and their role is to bridge the divide.

•  Township Roots exists to improve education 
in Nyanga, Cape Town. Through their 
programmes they aim to help the young 
children of this community to stay out of 
crime and stay in school, all the way through 
primary and high school and into university.

•  RoundAbout Water Solutions’ vision is to 
bring life transforming relief to impoverished 
rural communities through the installation 
of the PlayPump water pumping system 
that produces a sustainable supply of free, 
clean, potable water on tap. This initiative 
virtually eliminates the incidence of water 
borne disease, particularly among children.

•  African Guide Dogs Association: Conco 
sponsored an orientation and mobility 
instructor as well as three guide dogs with 
the South African Guide Dogs Association. 
Guide dogs are trained solely to be mobility 
aids of the blind and visually disabled.

•  Conco sponsored material for the Joe Slovo 
High School as part of the Dorper Wind 
Farm Project social development initiative. 
The school, which is situated in Molteno, a 
small town in close proximity to the Dorper 
Wind Farm site camp, received, among 
other things, material such as paint, doors, 
ceilings, electric switches and plugs, grass 
cutting machines and hosepipes. 

In addition to the above, we support several 
orphanages; sanctuaries; care centres; sports 
clubs and teams. Through the various projects 
and programmes we supported and sponsored, 
we attempted to impact the lives of several 
groups of people, from the very young to elderly 
in need of care and affection.

Large
variety of projects  
and programmes 

supported

Impacting 

lives
or our community
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The board recognises that governance principles and practices 
evolve, so our approach to governance is continually reviewed 
to appropriately embrace best practice.

GOVERNANCE
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’AAA’ rating
Governance Assessment Instrument
IoD endorsed tool

Board charter
Reviewed (further improvements  
in line with King III)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board is committed to upholding the King III RAFT principles: responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency.  
At CIG, we add discipline, independence and social responsibility. The directors are cognisant that the key governance challenge 
lies in balancing financial growth with community, environmental and broader economic and social development interests.

The board recognises that governance principles and practices evolve, so our approach to governance is continually reviewed 
to appropriately embrace best practice. CIG’s financial director, with the assistance of the company’s external risk consultant, 
continued subjecting the company’s corporate governance regime to a full review using the IoD Governance Assessment 
Instrument. Overall the company achieved an ‘AAA’ rating which indicates “Highest application” of the principles and 
recommendations of King III. 

Chapter 2: Board of directors of the company’s King III compliance checklist is set out below. 

Principle Our comments

2.1 The board should act as 
the focal point for and 
custodian of corporate 
governance.

The board is the focal point and custodian of corporate governance at CIG. In accordance with 
the well-defined board charter the board is committed to the highest standards of corporate 
governance. The board has a well drafted charter and meets at least four times a year.

2.2 The board should 
appreciate that strategy, 
risk, performance 
and sustainability are 
inseparable.

The board is responsible for aligning the strategic objectives, vision and mission with performance 
and sustainability considerations. The board informs and approves strategy and strives to ensure 
that long-term planning will deliver sustainable outcomes taking account of people, planet, 
profit. The board ensures that the strategy is aligned with the purpose of the company, the 
value drivers of its business and the legitimate interests and expectations of its stakeholders. 
Strategy is translated into key performance and risk areas (including finance, ethics, compliance 
and sustainability) and the associated performance and risk measures are clearly identified. The 
board considers sustainability a business opportunity: long-term sustainability is linked to strategy 
and guides strategy. 

2.3 The board should provide 
effective leadership based 
on an ethical foundation.

The board provides effective leadership and is committed to the highest levels of corporate 
governance as a key driver of sustainability.

2.4 The board should ensure 
that the company is and is 
seen to be a responsible 
corporate citizen.

CIG’s social and ethics committee reflects and effects the company’s commitment to responsible 
corporate citizenship. In addition to compliance with King III, CIG has also adopted the principles 
of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).

2.5 The board should ensure 
that the company’s ethics 
are managed effectively.

The board has established a social and ethics committee, which is tasked with ensuring that the 
company’s ethics are managed effectively. The board ensures the code of conduct is effected 
through Group strategy as well as in operational decisions. In addition the board has introduced 
a code of ethics at Conco.

2.6 The board should ensure 
that the company has an 
effective and independent 
audit committee.

The audit and risk committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Anthony 
Dixon. It further consists of two independent non-executive directors. The board is satisfied with 
their levels of independence in accordance with directors’ mandatory quarterly disclosures. The 
board is satisfied that the audit and risk committee is effective.

2.7 The board should be 
responsible for the 
governance of risk.

The board’s audit and risk committee has conducted an evaluation of governance risk and is 
satisfied with the effective management of risk.

2.8 The board should 
be responsible for 
information technology 
(IT) governance.

The board’s audit and risk committee ensures that IT governance is an integral part of corporate 
governance. 

2.9 The board should ensure  
that the company 
complies with applicable 
laws and considers 
adherence to non-
binding rules, codes and 
standards.

The board ensures that the company complies with applicable laws in each country of operation and 
considers adherence to non-binding rules, codes and standards including the GRI, Organisation 
for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) and UN Global Compact principles. 

2.10 The board should ensure 
that there is an effective  
risk-based internal audit.

The board ensures that the internal audit function continues to report directly and effectively to 
the audit and risk committee. 

The full King III compliance checklist can 
be found on www.ciglimited.co.za
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Principle Our comments

2.11 The board should 
appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions 
affect the company’s 
reputation.

The board of CIG recognises the importance of developing and nurturing positive and stable 
relationships with key stakeholders as a key driver of business success. 

2.12 The board should ensure 
the integrity of the 
company’s integrated 
annual report.

The board continues to ensure that the integrated report endeavours to provide a true view of the 
Group’s commitment to ensuring that financial, social and environmental sustainability permeates 
the entire business.

2.13 The board should report 
on the effectiveness of 
the company’s system of 
internal controls. 

The board continuously ensures the soundness of the company’s system of internal controls.

2.14 The board and its 
directors should act in 
the best interests of the 
company.

The board acknowledges its role as a trustee on behalf of the shareholders. Directors are 
permitted to take independent advice in connection with their duties at company cost following 
a board approved procedure. Real or perceived conflicts of interest are disclosed to the board 
and managed appropriately. In addition to the Code of Conduct, the members of the board 
are governed by a formal policy in respect of dealing in CIG shares. The board has unrestricted 
access to all company information, records, documents and property subject to following a board 
approved process.

2.15 The board should 
consider business rescue 
proceeding or other 
turnaround mechanisms 
as soon as the company 
is financially distressed as 
defined in the Act.

The board continually monitors the Group’s financial position and whether it is financially 
distressed i.e if it appears reasonably unlikely that the company will be able to pay its debts as 
they fall due and payable within the ensuing six months or become insolvent within the ensuing 
six months.

2.16 The board should elect 
a chairman of the board 
who is an independent 
non-executive director. 
The CEO of the company 
should not also fulfil the 
role of chairman of the 
board.

The chairman, Frank Boner, is an independent non-executive chairman and the roles of CEO 
and chairman are clearly defined. The chairperson is elected by the board members annually 
and his ability to add value, and his performance is assessed every year. The chairman’s role and 
responsibility is formalised. Succession planning is in place for the chairperson. The chairperson 
of the board is not the chairperson of the remuneration committee.

2.17 The board should appoint 
the chief executive officer 
and establish a framework 
for the delegation of 
authority.

The board has appointed Raoul Gamsu as CEO and a delegation of authority framework is 
reviewed regularly. Further the board has input in other senior executive appointments. The 
board defines its own level of materiality and approves a delegation or authority framework. The 
role and function of the CEO is formalised and performance measures are in place to appraise 
his performance. The CEO is not a member of the remuneration, nomination or audit and risk 
committees.

2.18 The board should 
comprise a balance of 
power, with a majority of 
non-executive directors. 
The majority of non-
executive directors should 
be independent.

The board comprises a majority of non-executive directors, the majority of whom are independent. 
The board has a minimum of two executive directors – the CEO and the director responsible for 
finance. When determining the number of directors to serve on the board, the knowledge, skills 
and resources required as appropriate to the business of the company are considered. The board 
has considered whether its size, diversity and demographics make it effective. At least one third 
of non-executive directors rotates every year. The board, through the nomination committee, 
recommends eligibility for re-election of retiring non-executive directors, while considering past 
performance, contribution and the objectivity of business judgement call. Non-executive directors 
classified as ‘independent’ by the company are subjected to an annual informal evaluation of 
their independence by the chairperson and the board based on a formal annual declaration of 
interests to assess any changes.

Independent non-executive directors serving for longer than nine years are subjected to a 
rigorous review of their independence and performance by the board. The classification of 
directors as independent or otherwise is disclosed on the basis of the yearly assessment of their 
independence, in line with the JSE’s definition of independent.

There are procedures in place to assess the suitability of non-executive independent directors to 
continue on the board as such, for a period of nine years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
continued

Principle Our comments

2.19 Directors should be 
appointed through a 
formal process.

Procedures for appointments to the board are formal and transparent and are matters for the 
board as a whole, assisted by the nomination committee. Prior to their appointment, procedures 
are in place to investigate the candidates’ backgrounds in line with JSE listing requirements. An 
agreement is concluded with all non-executive directors which encompasses commitment to 
comply with the directors’ code of conduct, the contribution that is expected from the specific 
individual, the remuneration for holding office as director and the terms of directors and officers 
liability insurance to be provided. Details of director’s appointment procedure and composition of 
board are provided in the integrated report. The board makes full disclosure regarding individual 
directors to enable shareholders to make their own assessment of directors. Reasons for the 
removal, resignation or retirement of directors are provided. The number of meetings held each 
year by the board and each board committee and the details of attendance of each director (as 
applicable) at such meetings are disclosed.

2.20 The induction of and 
ongoing training and 
development of directors 
should be conducted 
through formal processes.

The board ensures that inexperienced directors are developed through mentorship programmes. 
The board ensures that continuing professional development programmes are implemented. 
Directors receive regular briefing on changes in risk, laws and the business environment and a 
formal induction programme is in place for new directors.

2.21 The board should be 
assisted by a competent, 
suitably qualified and 
experienced company 
secretary.

Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited is an independent company secretarial practice 
providing services to numerous JSE listed companies and was appointed in compliance with the 
Companies Act 2008, the JSE Listings Requirements and the recommendations of King III. The board 
deems them to be suitably qualified. The board is satisfied that Probity Business Services Proprietary 
Limited’s representative, Neville Toerien, is sufficiently qualified and skilled to act in accordance with 
the requirements of the law and the recommendations of the King III Report and maintains an 
arm’s length relationship with the board. The company secretary is appointed by the board and is 
empowered by the board to effectively perform his duties. The role and function of the company 
secretary is formalised.

2.22 The evaluation of the 
board, its committees and 
the individual directors 
should be performed 
every year.

The board determines its own role, functions, duties and performance criteria as well as that 
for the directors on the board and the board and board committees to serve as a benchmark 
for performance appraisal. Yearly evaluation of the board’s individual committees and individual 
directors’ performance are performed. The results of performance evaluation inform training needs.

2.23 The board should 
delegate certain functions 
to well-structured 
committees but without 
abdicating its own 
responsibilities.

The board delegates certain functions without abdicating its own responsibilities to the following 
committees: audit and risk committee, remuneration committee, nominations committee and 
social and ethics committee.
All the committees’ terms of reference outline composition, objectives, purpose and activities, 
as well as delegation of authorities – including the extent of the committee’s power to make 
decisions, tenure and reporting mechanism to the board.

2.24 A governance framework 
should be agreed 
between the group and its 
subsidiary boards.

A governance framework between the Group and its subsidiary boards is agreed and is in 
effect. Implementation and adoption of policies, processes or procedure of holding company 
are considered and approved by the subsidiary company. Consultation takes place between the 
board and the chairperson of subsidiary boards and nominations committees prior to nominating 
a shareholder representative. The integrated report provides details of the implementation and 
adoption of policies, process or procedure of the holding company by subsidiary companies.

2.25 Companies should 
remunerate directors 
and executives fairly and 
responsibly.

The remuneration philosophy reflects CIG’s commitment to best practice. The Group’s remuneration 
committee determines the remuneration policy on executive and senior remuneration in line 
with the Group’s remuneration philosophy and strategy. The total remuneration packages of the 
executive directors and senior management are subject to annual review and benchmarked against 
external market data taking into account the size of the company, its market sector and business 
complexity. A detailed remuneration report is contained in the integrated report on page 55. 

2.26 Companies should 
disclose the remuneration 
of each individual director 
and certain senior 
executives.

The remuneration of directors and prescribed officers is disclosed in the integrated report on 
pages 89 and 90.

2.27 Shareholders should 
approve the company’s 
remuneration policy.

Shareholders consider and endorse, by way of a non-binding advisory vote, the company’s 
remuneration policy at the annual general meeting. 

CIG’s board ensures sound corporate governance throughout the Group by communicating policies on corporate governance and 
ethics to subsidiary boards and their financial managers. The financial director and audit and risk committee review compliance at 
subsidiary level.
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THE BOARD
The board remains responsible and accountable 
for the performance of the Group and has full 
control over all the subsidiaries. The directors 
exercise sound judgement and leadership with 
integrity based on the King III RAFT principles, 
leading Group personnel by example.  The 
responsibilities of the chairman and CEO, and 
those of other non-executive and executive 
directors, are clearly separated to ensure a 
balance of power and prevent any one director 
from exercising unfettered powers of decision-
making. The chairman provides leadership to the 
board in all deliberations ensuring independent 
input, and oversees its efficient operation. The 
CEO is responsible for proposing, updating, 
implementing and maintaining the strategic 
direction of CIG as well as ensuring appropriately 
supervised and controlled daily operations. In 
this regard, the CEO is assisted by the financial 
director and other subsidiary directors. 

The non-executive director and the independent 
non-executive directors are high merit individuals 
who contribute a wide range of industry skills, 
knowledge and experience to the board’s 
decision-making process. These directors are 
not involved in the daily operations of the 
company. Currently an informal evaluation of the 
independence of these directors is undertaken 
each year based on a formal annual declaration 
of interests to assess any changes.

In the past evaluation, performed during the 
year, all six non-executive directors were found 
to be independent in line with King III (see share 
dealings and conflicts of interest overleaf). 

Access to the advice and services of the 
company secretary and to company records, 
information, documents and property is 

unrestricted. Non-executive directors also have 
unfettered access to the external auditors and 
to management at any time. All directors are 
entitled, at CIG’s expense, to seek independent 
professional advice on any matters concerning 
the affairs of the Group.

The Group’s memorandum of incorporation 
provides for one-third of the directors to retire 
by rotation after a three-year term of office. 
Accordingly, Robert Horton, Judi Nwokedi and 
Kofi Bucknor will retire at the upcoming annual 
general meeting and being eligible, will stand for 
re-election. 

The board meets at least four times a year with 
ad hoc meetings when necessary to review 
strategy, planning, financial performance, 
resources, operations, risk, capital expenditure, 
standards of conduct, transformation, diversity, 
employment equity, human resources and 
environmental management.

The purpose of the formal board charter is 
to regulate the parameters within which the 
board operates and to ensure the application 
of the principles of good corporate governance. 
The charter outlines the board’s primary 
function as determining the Group’s strategy, 
purpose, values and stakeholders relevant to 
its business, and further defines the roles and 
responsibilities of the directors in accordance 
with legislation and global best practice. 

The board acts as the focal point for and 
custodian of the Group’s corporate governance. 
In doing so it ensures the Group is a responsible 
corporate citizen, cognisant of the impact its 
operations may have on the environment and 
society in which it operates, while acting in 
accordance with its own code of conduct.  

Board
CIG’s unitary board comprises 
nine directors, six of whom 
are independent non-executive 
including board chairman 
Frank Boner

Details of directors’ attendance at board and board committee meetings are set out below:

Name Board

Audit  
and risk

committee

Remuneration 
and nominations 

committees

Social  
and ethics 
committee  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Raoul Gamsu (Chief executive officer) 5(5)   4(4)#

Ivor Klitzner (Financial director)   5(5)#   4(4)# 3(3)
Bernard Berelowitz 3(5)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Frank Boner (Chairman)* 3(5) 3(4) 4(4)
Kofi Bucknor 3(5)
Alex Darko > n 5(5) 4(4) 4(4) 3(3)
Anthony Dixon^ 5(5) 4(4) 4(4)
Robert Horton 5(5)   3(4)#

Judi Nwokedi 4(5) 3(3)
# By invitation  ^ Audit and risk committee chairman 
* Nominations committee chairman  > Social and ethics committee chairman
n Remuneration committee chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
continued

The charter takes into consideration 
recommendations for improvement as set out 
in the King III Report, JSE Listings Requirements 
and other relevant regulations.  The annual 
review of the charter during the year focused 
on incorporating improvements recommended 
by the King III Report. 

To ensure that CIG is managed ethically and 
within prudently determined risk parameters 
in conformity with South African accepted 
standards of best practice, the board undertakes 
a comprehensive annual self-evaluation 
exercise. The company secretary compiles the 
self-evaluation programme. 

SHARE DEALINGS AND CONFLICTS 
OF INTEREST
Directors are required to disclose their 
shareholdings, additional directorships and 
any potential conflicts of interest as well as any 
share dealings in the company’s securities to 
the chairman. The company secretary, together 
with the sponsor and financial director ensures 
publication of share dealings on SENS.

All directors, senior executives and prescribed 
officers with access to financial and any other 
price sensitive information are prohibited from 
dealing in CIG shares during “closed periods”, 
as defined by the JSE, or while the company is 
trading under cautionary. The company informs 
all directors and all other relevant employees 
by email when the company enters a “closed 
period”.

CIG assesses its directors’ interests in the 
Group, their external shareholdings and any 
other directorships that they hold, on an annual 
basis to determine the existence of any actual 
or potential conflicts of interest. A register 
containing the directors’ declarations of interest 
is maintained by the company secretary and is 
available for inspection by any of the directors 
at any time. In addition, the agenda at each 
scheduled board meeting allows the board to 
consider any conflicts arising from changes to 
the directors’ declarations of interests. 

The board has satisfied itself that no relationships 
currently exist which could adversely affect the 
classification of its independent non-executive 
directors, and accordingly that the classification 
of each such director is appropriate.

NEW APPOINTMENTS
The entire board participates in a formal and 
transparent process for the appointment of 
new board members, including that of the 
CEO. The nominations committee recommends 

suitable candidates, following a vetting process 
which takes into account a candidate’s skills 
offering and experience and other concerns 
such as diversity. 

In the case of new appointees, the chairman and 
company secretary are responsible for providing 
an orientation  and induction programme, 
including introductions to key senior 
management and site visits. New appointees 
also receive copies of the latest annual report, 
the latest interim announcements, recent 
circulars to stakeholders, board packs, details of 
the company’s structure and operations and an 
overview of the company’s accounting systems. 
The orientation and induction programme 
further sets out the new directors’ responsibilities 
and fiduciary duties, as well as advising on the 
relevant statutory and regulatory framework 
including the JSE Listings Requirements. 

The programme is also extended to new senior 
management to ensure maximum efficacy as 
early as possible after appointment. Further, 
ongoing training and development of the board 
is considered a priority.  

BOARD COMMITTEES
CIG has an established audit and risk committee, 
remuneration committee, nominations 
committee and social and ethics committee to 
assist the board in discharging its responsibility 
of corporate governance. The Exco further 
assists the board in this regard on a day-to-
day operational basis. All committees have 
satisfied their responsibilities during the year in 
compliance with their formal charters.  

There is transparency and full disclosure from 
board committees to the board in the form of 
verbal reports by committee chairmen at board 
meetings, and the minutes of committee meetings 
are available to the board at any time.  In addition, 
the chairmen of the committees or a nominated 
committee member attend the company’s annual 
general meeting to answer any questions from 
stakeholders pertaining to them. 

Committee effectiveness evaluations are  
conducted annually. Findings and recommen-
dations are presented to the board, which 
tables an action list to address any areas 
marked for improvement. 

Attendance at meetings is set out in the table 
on page 51.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
The committee met four times during the year. 

See page 61 for a detailed audit and risk 
committee report. 

Succession 
planning
The board has formalised a 
succession plan for the Group 
CEO and the heads of Conco 
and the Building Materials 
division. The nature of CIG’s 
operations, as well as the IT 
and information management 
systems, provides assurance 
that the board is confident of 
the Group’s ability to continue 
functioning smoothly even in 
the event of an inability on 
the part of any of these three 
executives to carry out their 
responsibilities
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration committee is chaired by 
independent non-executive director Alex Darko, 
and further comprises two independent 
non-executive directors. It is responsible for 
determining the remuneration, incentive 
arrangements, profit participation and benefits 
of the executive directors and executive 
management. 

Further, the committee is responsible for 
ensuring that levels of remuneration are sufficient 
to attract, retain and motivate executives of the 
calibre required for high-level management and 
key personnel positions. A global consulting firm 
is retained to ensure executives’ salaries are 
appropriately benchmarked against peers. It is 
also responsible for assisting in a performance 
assessment of the executive directors in regard 
of discharging their functions and responsibilities. 

KPIs have been set for the Group CEO and 
financial director and are measured on growth 
in revenue, split in revenue and integration of 
Group strategy. 

See page 55 for the remuneration report.

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The now separate committee is responsible for 
identifying and nominating suitable candidates 
for election to the Group’s board of directors.  
It is chaired by independent non-executive 
director Frank Boner and further comprises two 
independent non-executive directors.

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The social and ethics committee is chaired by 
independent non-executive director Alex Darko, 
and further comprises one independent non-
executive director and the financial director  
Ivor Klitzner. The role of the committee is 
to ensure that the Group’s activities are 
conducted in an ethical fashion, in accordance 
with accepted principles relating to social and 
environmental responsibility. To this end the  
committee monitors the Group’s activities 
with regard to any relevant legislation, legal 
requirements and prevailing codes of best 
practice including the principles of the United 
Nations Global Compact, broad-based black 
economic empowerment, employment equity 
and the Organisation for Economic Cooperation 
and Development’s (OECD) recommendations 
on corruption;

Further, the committee is charged with ensuring 
that the Group acts as a responsible corporate 
citizen particularly in the context of the 
economic, social and environmental challenges 

facing South Africa and the other countries in 
which the Group operates.

IT GOVERNANCE
It is not considered necessary that a Group 
CIO be appointed at this stage, given the 
decentralised management structure of the 
Group and the customisation of IT requirements 
to the different operations. The financial director 
currently fulfils this role, supported by the CIO 
of Conco (the Group’s largest contributor to 
revenue and profits). 

IT risk management is fully integrated with the 
overall Group risk management framework.  
(See page 54 for the risk report.) The Group’s 
IT internal control framework is mature, 
embedded in the risk and internal audit 
framework and associated databases/registers. 
Independent assurance is provided by a risk 
management specialist who is a qualified 
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) 
as well as by the Group’s internal and external 
auditors.  Senior management are presented 
with reports as and when required, and the 
audit and risk committee provides the board 
with appropriate feedback and reports. 

The CIO of Conco and the IT steering committee 
have developed an IT governance charter.  
During the year significant improvements were 
made with regard to sustainability of data 
integrity, availability and reliability using cloud-
based technology and embedded redundancy. 
Disaster recovery was also enhanced together 
with security of data sources and databases.

Independent
company 
secretary
The company secretary, Probity 
Business Services Proprietary 
Limited, is an independent 
company secretarial practice 
providing services to numerous 
JSE-listed companies. The 
board is comfortable that its 
representative, Neville Toerien,  
is sufficiently qualified and 
skilled to act in accordance 
with and update directors in 
terms of the recommendations 
of the King III Report and 
other relevant regulations 
and legislation and that he 
maintains an arm’s length 
relationship with the board as 
he is a third party independent 
individual.

The role and functions of the 
company secretary include:

•  Providing the directors, 
collectively and individually, 
with guidance in respect of 
their duties, responsibilities 
and powers

•  Providing information on 
laws, legislation, regulations 
and matters of ethics and 
good corporate governance 
relevant to the company

•  Making directors aware 
of any law or regulations 
relevant to the company

•  Properly recording the 
minutes of meetings, inter 
alia, meeting attendance 
registers, resolutions, 
director’s declarations of 
personal and financial 
interest/s and all notice 
and circulars issued by the 
company

•  Preparing the notice of 
annual general meeting

•  Assuming responsibility 
for filing the annual and 
other returns in terms of the 
Companies Act

•  Compiles and processes 
the board’s self-evaluation 
process
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RISK REPORT

Implementation of ’KnowRisk’
The financial director is supported by independent risk consultant, Graham Croock, in overseeing CIG’s risk management 
process.  They report into the audit and risk committee, which in its capacity as a board sub-committee is ultimately responsible 
for this process.

CIG’s approach to risk management was formerly bolstered by the retention of the specialist risk consultant and the 
implementation of the ‘KnowRisk’ application Group-wide. These have proved to be important advantages for the Group in the 
competition for capital, whether in attracting investment or securing new sources of finance. 

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 
A fully integrated risk management system is used 
for the development and maintenance of the 
Group risk management framework, knowledge 
base and integrated risk registers. The system 
developed by Corprofit Australia is based on the 
Australian/New Zealand standards 4360 and 
is ISO:31000 compliant. Detailed risk registers 
for each business unit in CIG are maintained on 
KnowRisk and this allows for aggregation of risk at 
holding company level. Audit planning has been 
incorporated into the risk registers and feedback 
from audit reports prepared by the various 
assurance providers is fed back into the system, 
automatically updating the levels of assessed 
risk to ensure accurate and timely reporting on a 
consistent basis.  Internal Audit plans are project 
managed using the integrated system. The recent 
initiatives to identify fraud related risks and “Key 
Controls” have enhanced the risk management 
process as has the integration of the insurance 
programme with KnowRisk and the recent 
development of a risk assessment matrix for 
large tenders and project management in Conco. 

This ‘KnowRisk’ system’s flexibility is of particular 
value to CIG, given the diverse nature of the 
activities undertaken by the business segments 
within the Group (albeit all within infrastructure). 
In terms of the system material risks are 
identified and categorised on an annual basis 
for each company and for the Group as a whole, 
according to both their likelihood of occurrence 
and the severity of their potential impact. 
Appropriate and feasible mitigation actions are 
then developed and implemented for each of 
the identified risks, with the result that these 
risks are terminated or eliminated, transferred 
outside the company in question or the Group 
as a whole, treated or mitigated to acceptable 
levels, or tolerated as being acceptable to the 
Group. Individual risks are not managed outside 
the system. 

This integrated approach to risk management 
ensures that an assessment of the indirect 
impacts of social, environmental or economic 
risks is performed regularly. Individual projects 
in Conco can also require address of these 
issues, which is then managed through the 
‘KnowRisk’ system.

The risk reports are generated from the live 
system as and when it is updated, and then 
reviewed by the CEO and financial director. 

The Group’s risk appetite and tolerance are set 
within the process and approved by the board. 
‘Risk appetite’ is defined as the amount and type 
of risk the company is willing to accept in the 
pursuit of its objectives. ‘Risk tolerance’ is the 
specific maximum risk the company is willing 
to take and is derived from translating the risk 
appetite into more measurable quantitative or 
qualitative terms.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The board and management make use of the 
process above to sustain a practical and effective 
internal control environment. These internal 
controls are designed to provide reasonable 
but not absolute assurance regarding the 
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of 
proper accounting records, the integrity and 
reliability of financial information, and the 
minimisation of significant fraud, potential 
liability, loss and material misstatement while 
complying with applicable laws and regulations. 
The systems are designed to manage rather than 
eliminate risk of failure and opportunity risk. 

This control environment enables the board 
to provide reasonable assurance of the 
Group’s achievement of strategic objectives 
and compliance with applicable laws and 
requirements. In addition the system of 
internal control enables the board to ensure 
business sustainability under normal and 
adverse operating conditions, and responsible 
behaviour towards all stakeholders. 

Nothing has come to the attention of the 
directors to indicate that a material breakdown 
in the internal controls within the Group has 
occurred during the year. 

IT GOVERNANCE
See corporate governance on page 53. 

’KnowRisk’ 
system
This integrated approach to 
risk management ensures 
that an assessment of the 
indirect impacts of social, 
environmental or economic 
risks is performed regularly
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REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration committee assists the board in ensuring that Group remuneration is aligned with overall business strategy, 
with the aim of enabling CIG to attract and retain personnel who will create long-term value for all stakeholders.  

The Group’s executives are remunerated in 
terms of a remuneration package and are 
further incentivised for performance. 

The remuneration committee ensures that the 
mix of fixed and variable pay, in cash, shares 
and other elements, meets the company’s 
needs and strategic objectives. The committee 
selects an appropriate comparative group when 
comparing remuneration levels.

The remuneration committee satisfies itself 
as to the accuracy of recorded performance 
measures that govern vesting of incentives. 
Participation in incentive schemes is limited to 
employees and executive directors and provides 
appropriate limits for individual participation. 
Incentives are based on targets, both financial 
and sustainability related, that are verifiable and 
relevant. 

Multiple performance measures are used to 
avoid manipulation of results or poor business 
decisions. If incentives are given for both long-
term and short-term goals, the performance 
drivers are not duplicated. 

Employment contracts do not commit the 
company to pay out on termination arising from 
an executive’s failure. There is no automatic 
entitlement to bonus or share-based payments 
on early termination of employment.

Employment contract notice of termination 
periods for senior executives vary from three 
to six months. Restraint of trade clauses in 
employment contracts vary from 12 months to 
three years.

Full time employees enjoy membership of a 
retirement fund and medical aid.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
The attendance fee structure for non-executive 
directors is set out in note 22 to the annual 
financial statements.
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The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and are 
based upon appropriate accounting policies.

FINANCIAL
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LEVEL OF ASSURANCE
These annual financial statements have been audited 
in compliance with the applicable requirements of the 
Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (as amended).

PREPARER
These annual financial statements have been prepared 
under the supervision of the Group financial director,  
Ivor Klitzner CA(SA).

Published 
27 February 2014
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The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (as amended) to maintain adequate accounting records and 
are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements and related  financial 
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements and Group annual financial 
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the Group and 
place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the 
board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include 
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation 
of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Group and all employees are required to 
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 
above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, 
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, 
any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 August 2014 and, in light of this review and the current 
financial position, are satisfied that the Group has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future.

The annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements have been examined by the Group’s external auditors and their 
report is presented on page 63.

The annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements set out on page 64, which have been prepared on the going 
concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on 27 February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

IM Klitzner RD Gamsu
Financial director Chief executive officer

For the year ended 31 August 2013, the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as 
are required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended, and all such returns are true, correct and up to 
date in respect of the financial year reported on.

Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited
Company secretary

27 February 2014

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

DECLARATION OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors submit their annual report, which forms part of the annual financial statements of the company and the Group for the year 
ended 31 August 2013.

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
MAIN BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
The Group is engaged in the establishment of electrical infrastructure in South Africa and the rest of Africa and the supply of heavy building 
materials to the construction industry. The operating results and state of affairs of the Group and company are fully set out in the attached 
annual financial statements and do not in our opinion require any further comment. Net profit of the Group was R171,6 million (2012: 
R136,9 million), after taxation of R46,1 million (2012: R51,1 million).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 3 December 2012 CIG announced the acquisition of a 30,5% interest in Angola Environmental Serviços Limitada (AES), an Angolan  
based company providing waste management services to the oil and gas sector.

The acquisition agreement entered into on 25 November 2012, as varied from time to time thereafter, has become unconditional in all 
respects on 30 January 2014, as a consequence of which CIG has now become the effective holder of a 30,5% shareholding in AES.

CIG’s effective 30,5% shareholding in AES is currently held by an Angolan incorporated company controlled by CIG. As soon as the requisite 
approval of the transaction has been granted by the Angolan authorities in terms of the Angola Private Investment Law, Law 20/11  
of 15 December 2011, as amended from time to time, CIG will transfer the whole of its shareholding in AES to a wholly owned subsidiary of 
CIG incorporated in Mauritius.

The directors are not aware of any other significant subsequent events.

AUTHORISED AND ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
The number of ordinary shares in issue at 31 August 2013 was 134,0 million (2012: 118,8 million). The number of shares issued but not 
listed at 31 August 2013 was 3 million (2012: 3 million).

The company converted all the ordinary shares with a par value of 0,01 cent each into ordinary shares of no par value in compliance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act.

The company’s authorised share capital of 150 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value was increased to 200 000 000 ordinary shares of 
no par value by the creation of an additional 50 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value during the current year.

During the year 15 million ordinary shares of no par value were issued to selected institutions.

The unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

BORROWING LIMITATIONS
In terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money, 
as they consider appropriate. Subject to the solvency and liquidity test the borrowing powers of the directors are unlimited.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends were declared or paid to shareholders during the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
RD Gamsu  Executive (chief executive officer)
IM Klitzner  Executive (financial director)
K Bucknor (Ghanaian) Non-executive
AD Dixon Independent non-executive
B Berelowitz  Executive
F Boner  Independent non-executive (chairman)
A Darko (Ghanaian)  Independent non-executive
R Horton  Independent non-executive
J Nwokedi  Independent non-executive

SECRETARY
The secretary of the company is Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
continued

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Name of subsidiary 

Net income/
(loss) after

 tax
R’000

West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited (3 157)
Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited 16 178
Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited 126 293
Consolidated Power Maintenance and Investments Proprietary Limited –
Consolidated Infrastructure Group International –

Details of the company’s investment in subsidiaries are set out in note 6.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
The following special resolutions were passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 April 2013 and registered by 
the Registrar of Companies during the reporting period:
• General authority for the company or its subsidiaries to acquire shares in the company;
• Authority to provide financial assistance to Group inter-related companies;
•  Authority to allot and issue shares in the company to directors, future directors, prescribed officers and future prescribed officers;
• Approval of non-executive directors’ remuneration for a period of two years;
• Conversion of shares as follows:
 –  The existing authorised ordinary share capital of the company of R15 000, divided into 150 000 000 ordinary shares with a par value 

of 0,01 cent each, be converted into 150 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value, without altering the substance of the specific 
rights and privileges associated with each such share and that the company’s existing memorandum of incorporation be amended 
accordingly; and

 –  The existing issued ordinary share capital of the company of R11 884, divided into 118 840 929 ordinary shares with a par value of 
0,01 cent each, be converted into 118 840 929 ordinary shares of no par value without altering the substance of the specific rights and 
privileges associated with each such share, on the basis that each ordinary share of no par value shall have the rights and privileges 
which are the same as or equivalent to the rights and privileges which attached to such ordinary shares immediately prior to such 
conversion;

•  Increase in the company’s authorised share capital from 150 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value to 200 000 000 ordinary shares 
of no par value;

• Adoption of a new memorandum of incorporation; and
• Specific authority to repurchase shares in terms of the odd-lot offer.

No special resolutions were passed by any of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year.

AUDITORS
Grant Thornton will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The audit and risk committee met four times during the year and the internal and external auditors presented formal reports to the 
committee and attended meetings by invitation. In accordance with the Companies Act 2008, as amended, the committee reports as 
follows:
• The scope, independence and objectivity of the external auditors was reviewed;
•  The audit firm Grant Thornton and audit partner S Kock, are, in the committee’s opinion, independent of the company, and have been 

proposed to the shareholders for approval to be the Group’s auditor for the 2014 financial year;
• On an ongoing basis, the committee reviews and approves the fees proposed by the external auditors;
•  The appointment of the external auditor complies with the Companies Act 2008, as amended, and with all other legislation relating to 

the appointment of external auditors;
•  The nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors has been reviewed to ensure that the fees for such 

services do not become so significant as to call into question their independence;
• The nature and extent of future non-audit services have been defined and pre-approved; and
•  As at the date of this report, no complaints have been received relating to accounting practices and internal audit of the company or to 

the content or auditing of the company’s financial statements, or to any related matter.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 August 2013.

COMPOSITION AND MEETING ATTENDANCE
The committee is chaired by independent non-executive director Tony Dixon, an experienced leader in corporate governance and 
a participant to the drafting of King III, and further consists of two independent non-executive directors, Frank Boner and Alex Darko.  
A short curriculum vitae for each of these directors has been set out on pages 24 and 25 demonstrating their suitable skills and experience. 

It meets at least three times a year as per its terms of reference. The financial director, internal auditor, external auditor, sponsor and other 
assurance providers attend meetings by invitation only.

During the year four meetings were held. Details of attendance are set out on page 51. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The committee has adopted formal terms of reference approved by the board. The committee has conducted its affairs in compliance with 
its terms of reference and has discharged its responsibilities contained therein. 

STATUTORY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
EXTERNAL AUDIT
The audit and risk committee satisfied itself that Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc. and Ms Soné Kock, the designated auditor, are independent of 
the company, which review included consideration of previous appointments of the auditor, the extent of other work undertaken by the 
auditor for the company, and compliance with criteria relating to independence or conflicts of interest as prescribed by the Independent 
Regulatory Board for Auditors. Requisite assurance was sought and provided by the auditor that internal governance processes within the 
audit firm support and demonstrate its claim to independence. The committee ensured that the appointment of the auditor complied with 
all legislation relating to the appointment of auditors. 

The committee, in consultation with executive management, agreed to the engagement letter, terms, audit plan and budgeted audit fees 
for the 2013 year. 

There is a formal procedure that governs the process whereby the auditor is considered for non-audit services: the committee approves the 
terms of a master service agreement for the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor and the nature and extent of non-audit 
services that the external auditor may provide in terms of the agreed pre-approval policy. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The committee has reviewed the accounting policies and the financial statements of the Group and company and is satisfied that they are 
appropriate and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

A committee process has been established to receive and deal appropriately with any concerns and complaints relating to the reporting 
practices of the company. No matters of significance were raised in the year under review.

The audit and risk committee recommended the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2013, for approval to the board. 
The board has subsequently approved the annual financial statements which will be open for discussion at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The committee has overseen a process by which internal audit performed a written assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s 
system of internal control and risk management, including internal financial controls. This written assessment by internal audit formed the 
basis for the committee’s recommendation in this regard to the board, in order for the board to report thereon. No weaknesses in financial 
control (design, implementation or execution), that are considered material and that have resulted in actual material financial loss, fraud or 
material errors have been identified.

DELEGATED ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
INTEGRATED REPORTING AND COMBINED ASSURANCE 
The committee fulfils an oversight role regarding the company’s integrated report and the reporting process. The committee considered 
the company’s sustainability information as disclosed in the integrated report and assessed its consistency with operational and other 
information known to committee members and with the annual financial statements. The committee also discussed the sustainability 
information with management and the chairman of the social and ethics committee. It is satisfied that the sustainability information is 
reliable and consistent with the financial results. 

The committee is satisfied that the Group and company have optimised the assurance coverage obtained from management, internal and 
external assurance providers in accordance with an appropriate combined assurance model. 

GOING CONCERN 
The committee has reviewed a documented assessment, including key assumptions prepared by management, of the going concern status 
of the company and has accordingly made recommendation to the board. The board’s statement on the going concern status of the Group 
and company, as supported by the committee, is set out on page 33 of the integrated annual report. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
continued

RISK
The audit and risk committee determines the key risk areas facing the Group and recommends mitigation measures. It is the responsibility 
of the committee to advise and update the board on issues ranging from accounting standards through published financial information to 
the implications of major transactions. The audit and risk committee is satisfied that the appropriate risk management processes, including 
the role of the outsourced risk specialist, the risk management software application and the methodology adopted are appropriate, effective 
and sustainable. 

INTERNAL AUDIT
The committee is responsible for ensuring that the company’s internal audit function is independent and has the necessary resources, 
standing and authority to enable it to discharge its duties. Further, the committee oversees co-operation between the internal and external 
auditors, and serves as a link between the board and these functions.

The committee considered and recommended the internal audit charter for approval by the board. The internal audit function has been 
outsourced to Grant Thornton. The internal audit function’s annual audit plan was approved by the committee. The internal audit function 
reports centrally with responsibility for reviewing and providing assurance on the adequacy of the internal control environment across all 
of the Group’s operations. 

Grant Thornton is responsible for reporting the findings of the internal audit work against the agreed internal audit plan to the committee 
on a regular basis. Grant Thornton has direct access to the committee, primarily through its chairman. 

The committee is also responsible for the assessment of the performance of the internal audit function. The committee is satisfied with 
the high quality and effectiveness of the service provided by Grant Thornton. During the year, the committee met with both the external 
auditors and internal auditors without management being present. To the best of the committee’s knowledge the Group has complied with 
all relevant and material legal, regulatory or other responsibilities. 

EVALUATION
The committee members were all satisfied with the functioning of the audit and risk committee and that it has complied with all laws 
and regulations. The board was satisfied that the committee members collectively have sufficient academic qualifications or experience 
in economics, law, corporate governance, finance, accounting, commerce, industry, public affairs and human resource management as 
required by the JSE Listings Requirements. In terms of the Companies Act, the audit and risk committee has considered and satisfied itself 
of the appropriateness of the expertise and experience of the financial director, Ivor Klitzner and the finance function.

AD Dixon 
Chairman
CA(SA), Finst D 

27 February 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the annual financial statements of Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited, set out on pages 64 to 102, which comprise 
the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 August 2013, and the consolidated and separate statements of 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, including the analysis of shareholders on pages 103 to 105.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of 
Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited as at 31 August 2013, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
South Africa.

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES ACT
As part of our audit of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2013, we have read the directors’ report, the audit and 
risk committee’s report, the declaration of the company secretary for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on 
reading these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. However, 
we have not audited these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports.

Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors

Registration number: 1994/001166/21

Johannesburg
27 February 2014

Per: SJ Kock
Director
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 August 2013

GROUP COMPANY

Notes
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  364 368 313 704 776 91
Goodwill 4 462 220 462 220 – –
Intangible assets 5 28 342 31 825 – –
Investments in subsidiaries 6 – – 549 427 549 427
Financial assets 7 6 472 3 152 – –
Deferred tax  8 6 316 8 250 – –

867 718 819 151 550 203 549 518

Current assets
Inventories 9 93 156 65 972  – –
Loans to Group companies 10 – – 380 841 209 925
Current tax receivable 1 402 368 1 248 479
Amounts due from contract customers 11 1 216 896  635 412 – –
Trade and other receivables 12 94 786 57 086 13 068 4 048
Cash and cash equivalents 13 504 331 404 389 481 172 288 424

1 910 571 1 163 227 876 329 502 876
Total assets 2 778 289 1 982 378 1 426 532 1 052 394

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent
Share capital 14 982 585 726 908 981 896 726 908
Foreign currency translation reserve (1 960) (3 074) – –
Share-based payment reserve 16 336 11 545 13 803 11 545
Accumulated income 581 944 411 112 17 007 15 481

1 578 905 1 146 491  1 012 706 753 934
Non-controlling interest 1 086 12 – –

1 579 991  1 146 503 1 012 706 753 934

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15 428 774 328 787 400 000 290 000
Instalment sale liabilities 16  27 552 13 799 – –
Deferred tax 8 32 100 45 402 – –
Provisions 17  8 232 8 065  – –

496 658 396 053 400 000  290 000

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15 10 256 17 711  – –
Current tax payable 38 808 36 048 1 302 –
Instalment sale liabilities 16 16 985 9 975 – –
Trade and other payables 18 499 467 232 569 12 524 8 460
Amounts received in advance 22 755 34 589 – –
Amounts due to contract customers 11 113 369 108 930  – –

701 640 439 822 13 826  8 460
Total liabilities 1 198 298 835 875 413 826 298 460
Total equity and liabilities 2 778 289 1 982 378 1 426 532 1 052 394
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 August 2013

GROUP COMPANY

Notes
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Revenue 20 2 037 402 1 553 522 – –
Cost of sales  (1 528 347)  (1 116 409) – –

Gross profit 509 055 437 113 – –
Other income 22 360 1 690 7 000 5 600
Operating expenses (335 005)  (281 414) (8 784) (14 537)
Foreign exchange gain 37 211 27 990 – –

Operating profit/(loss)  21 233 621 185 379 (1 784) (8 937)
Investment revenue 23 17 641 18 457  26 468 10 610
Gain on settlement of the instalment sale liabilities 219 – – –
Finance costs 24 (33 758)  (15 786)  (22 600) (5 630)

Profit/(loss) before taxation  217 723 188 050 2 084  (3 957)
Taxation 25  (46 097) (51 146) (558) 422

Profit/(loss) for the year 171 626 136 904 1 526  (3 535)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 1 394 851  – –
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 173 020 137 755 1 526 (3 535)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 171 946 137 743 1 526 (3 535)
Non-controlling interest 1 074  12  – –
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 173 020 137 755 1 526  (3 535)

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 170 832  136 892  1 526 (3 535)
Non-controlling interest 794 12 – –
Profit/(loss) for the year 171 626 136 904  1 526 (3 535)

Earnings per share (cents) 27
Basic 138,29 116,46
Diluted 136,87 116,21
Headline 137,84  116,11
Diluted headline 136,43  115,86



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 201366

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 August 2013

Share
 capital

R’000

Share
 premium

R’000

Total 
share

 capital
R’000

Foreign
currency

 trans-
lation

 reserve
R’000

Share-
based

 payment
 reserve

R’000

Total 
reserves

R’000

Accu-
mulated
 income

R’000

Total
 attri-

butable 
to equity
 holders 

of the 
parent/

company
R’000

Non-
con-

trolling
 interest

R’000

Total
 equity

R’000

GROUP
Balance at 1 September 2011 11 676 004 676 015 (3 925) – (3 925) 274 220 946 310 – 946 310
Total comprehensive income  
for the year
Profit for the year – – – – – – 136 892 136 892 12 136 904
Other comprehensive income – – – 851 – 851 – 851 – 851
Total comprehensive income  
for the year – – – 851 – 851 136 892 137 743 12 137 755

Issue of shares – 50 893 50 893 – – – – 50 893 – 50 893
Transfer from trade and other 
payables – – – – 5 421 5 421 – 5 421 – 5 421
Share-based payments – – – – 6 124 6 124 – 6 124 – 6 124

Balance at 1 September 2012 11 726 897 726 908 (3 074) 11 545 8 471 411 112 1 146 491 12 1 146 503
Total comprehensive income for  
the year
Profit for the year – – – – – – 170 832 170 832 794 171 626
Other comprehensive income – – – 1 114 – 1 114 – 1 114 280 1 394
Total comprehensive income  
for the year – – – 1 114 – 1 114 170 832 171 946 1 074 173 020

Issue of shares 2 258 854 258 856 – – – – 258 856 – 258 856
Share issue expenses – (3 868) (3 868) – – – – (3 868) – (3 868)
Transfer of share premium from  
share-based payment reserve – 689 689 – (689) (689) – – – –
Share-based payments – – – – 5 480 5 480 – 5 480 – 5 480
Balance at 31 August 2013 13 982 572 982 585 (1 960) 16 336 14 376 581 944 1 578 905 1 086 1 579 991

COMPANY
Balance at 1 September 2011 11 676 004 676 015 – – – 19 016 695 031 – 695 031
Total comprehensive income  
for the year
Loss for the year – – – – – – (3 535) (3 535) – (3 535)
Other comprehensive income – – – – – – – – – –
Total comprehensive income  
for the year – – – – – – (3 535) (3 535) – (3 535)

Issue of shares – 50 893 50 893 – – – – 50 893 – 50 893
Transfer from trade and other 
payables – – – – 5 421 5 421 – 5 421 – 5 421
Share-based payments – – – – 6 124 6 124 – 6 124 – 6 124

Balance at 1 September 2012 11 726 897 726 908 – 11 545 11 545 15 481 753 934 – 753 934
Total comprehensive income  
for the year
Profit for the year – – – – – – 1 526 1 526 – 1 526
Other comprehensive income – – – – – – – – – –
Total comprehensive income  
for the year – – – – – – 1 526 1 526 – 1 526

Issue of shares 2 258 854 258 856 – – – – 258 856 – 258 856
Share issue expenses – (3 868) (3 868) – – – – (3 868) – (3 868)
Share-based payments – – – – 2 258 2 258 – 2 258 – 2 258
Balance at 31 August 2013 13 981 883 981 896 – 13 803 13 803 17 007 1 012 706 – 1 012 706
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 August 2013

GROUP COMPANY

Notes
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 29 (113 154) (311) (15 142) 614
Interest income 17 641 18 457 26 468 10 610
Finance costs (31 100) (14 020) (22 600) (5 630)
Tax (paid)/refunded 30 (55 764) (13 845) (25) 230
Net cash flows from operating activities (182 377) (9 719) (11 299) 5 824

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 3 (39 950) (45 500) (903) (20)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 2 123 3 613 10 –
Business combinations 31 (20 000) – – –
Repayment of loans receivable from Group companies – – – 4 400
Repayment of loans payable to Group companies – – (170 916) (52 604)
Acquisition of financial assets (3 101) (902) – –
Dividends received – – – –
Net cash flows from investing activities (60 928) (42 789) (171 809) (48 224)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue 14 258 856 50 893 258 856 50 893
Increase in financial liabilities 99 532 266 000 117 000 270 000
Movement in instalment sale liabilities (15 131) 3 977 – –
Net cash flows from financing activities 343 257 320 870 375 856 320 893

Total cash and cash equivalents movement for the year 99 952 268 362 192 748 278 493
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 404 389 136 035 288 424 9 931
Effect of foreign currency translation reserve movement  
on cash balances (10) (8) – –
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 504 331 404 389 481 172 288 424
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
  The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (as amended), the JSE Listings Requirements and the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued 
by the Accounting Practices Board. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise 
stated in the policies, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.

  The accounting policies are consistent with the prior year other than the adoption of the amendment to IAS 1 that was effective  
1 July 2012.

 1.1  SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS
   In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

  Property, plant and equipment
   Judgement is required in determining the residual value and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. The 

estimation is done at each reporting date and revised accordingly.

  Trade receivables
   The Group assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment 

loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is 
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

   The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and 
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the 
portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.

  Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
   An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value is made at each reporting date. 

Management has made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is 
included in the operating profit note.

  Share options
   Management used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the value of the options at issue date. Additional 

details regarding the estimates are included in note 40 – Share-based payments.

   Impairment testing 
    The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value- 

in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is 
reasonably possible that the future cash flows may be different from the current projections which may then impact our 
estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill, tangible and intangible assets.

   The Group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is tested on an annual basis for impairment. Assets are grouped at the 
lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are 
indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. 
Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible and intangible assets are inherently 
uncertain and could materially change over time. Additional disclosure of impairments is included in note 4 – Goodwill.

  Provisions
   Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 

these estimates of provisions is included in note 17 – Provisions.

  Taxation
   Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many 

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The 
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where 
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact 
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.1  SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS continued
  Taxation continued
   The Group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the 

deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax 
assets requires the Group to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future 
taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. 
To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realise 
the net deferred tax assets recorded at the reporting date could be impacted.

 1.2  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
	 	 • it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
	 	 • the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

   Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

   The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

  Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

   Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value.

  The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life

Land Indefinite
Buildings 20 years
Leasehold property Lease period
Plant and machinery
–  Earthmoving equipment 6 years
–  Plant and equipment 4 – 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 – 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 – 5 years
Office equipment 3 – 5 years
IT equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Leasehold improvements 2 years

   The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

   Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

   The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.

   The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

 1.3  GOODWILL
   Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the company’s interest of 

the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

  Subsequently goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment.

   The excess of the company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the 
cost of the business combination is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

  Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.4  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
  An intangible asset is recognised when:
	 	 • it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
	 	 • the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

  Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

  Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

  An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
	 	 • it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
	 	 • there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;
	 	 • there is an ability to use or sell it;
	 	 • it will generate probable future economic benefits;
	 	 • there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and
	 	 • the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

  Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

   An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these 
intangible assets. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

  The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at every period-end. 

   Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life.

   Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets.

   Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life

Mining rights 20 years
Brand names 10 years

 1.5  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
  Group annual financial statements
   The Group annual financial statements include those of the holding company and its subsidiaries. The results of the subsidiaries 

are included from the effective date of acquisition. Subsidiaries are de-consolidated on the date that the Group ceases to control.

   The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is the sum of:
	 	 • the consideration transferred measured in accordance with IFRS 3;
	 	 • the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance with IFRS 3; and
	 	 •  in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest 

in the acquiree.

  All acquisition related costs are expensed when incurred.

   On acquisition the Group recognises the subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at fair value, except 
for assets classified as held-for-sale, which are recognised at fair value less costs to sell.

   Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on 
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.

   The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity holders of the 
Group. Disposals to non-controlling interests that do not result in the loss of control result in gains and losses for the Group 
that are recorded directly in the statement of changes in equity. The difference between any consideration paid and the 
relevant share of the net asset value acquired from non-controlling interests are recorded directly in equity.

   In the company’s separate annual financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated 
impairment. 

   The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or 
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the company. An adjustment to the cost of a business combination contingent on 
future events is included in the cost of the combination if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
  Initial recognition and measurement
   Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial instruments are derecognised when the Group ceases the control or obligation relating to the financial instrument.

   The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the 
Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

  The Group derecognises a financial liability when the obligations expire or are discharged or cancelled.

   Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

   The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability 
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

   Where the carrying value of short-term financial instruments measured at amortised cost approximates their amortised cost 
values, discounting is not applied as the effects thereof are considered immaterial.

  Impairment of financial assets
   At each statement of financial position date the Group assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit 

or loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

   For amounts due to the Group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy 
and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

   Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset 
at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment 
not been recognised.

  Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

   Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or 
loss within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

  Loans to/(from) Group companies
  These include loans to and from subsidiaries, and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

   Loans to Group companies are classified as loans and receivables which are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method.

   Loans from Group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method.

  Environmental Rehabilitation Trust Fund
   These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method.

  Trade and other receivables
   Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 
(more than 90 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

   The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncorrectable, it is written 
off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

  Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
  Trade and other payables
   Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 

using the effective interest rate method.

   Cash and cash equivalents
   Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially 
recorded at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective rate method. Amortised 
cost approximates fair value.

  Bank overdraft and borrowings
   Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, including transaction costs, and are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s 
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

 1.7  TAX
  Current tax assets and liabilities
   Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect 

of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

   Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) 
the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities
   A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability 

arises from:
	 	 • the initial recognition of goodwill; or
	 	 • the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which:
   – is not a business combination; and
   – at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

   A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except to 
the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied:

	 	 • The parent, investor or venturer is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and
	 	 • It is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

   A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised, unless the deferred tax asset arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that:

	 	 • is not a business combination; and
	 	 • at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

   A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, to the 
extent that it is probable that:

	 	 • the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
	 	 • taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

   A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused STC credits can be utilised.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  Tax expenses
   Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the 

extent that the tax arises from:
	 	 • a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity; or
	 	 • a business combination.

   Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are 
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

   Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, 
in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 August 2013
continued



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 73

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.8  LEASES
   A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. 

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
to the lessee.

  Operating leases – lessee
   Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 

the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments is recognised as an operating lease asset or liability 
which is not discounted.

  Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

 1.9  INSTALMENT SALE LIABILITIES
   Instalment sale liabilities are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the 

fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to 
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as an instalment sale liability. The assets are depreciated over the 
shorter of their useful lives and the term of the instalment sale liability.

   The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum instalment sale payments is the interest rate implicit 
in the agreement.

   The instalment sale payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the term of the agreement so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

 1.10  INVENTORIES
  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

   Inventories are disclosed net of any allowances for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventories. The allowance is based on 
estimates made by management of the net realisable value of certain inventory items.

   Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

   The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition.

 1.11  AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT CUSTOMERS
   Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised by 

reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date, as measured by the proportion that contract 
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

   Amounts due from contract customers are measured at initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

   Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the 
customer.

   When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent that 
contract costs incurred are recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

   When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense 
immediately.

   Advance payments received are assessed on initial recognition to determine whether it is probable that it will be repaid in cash 
or another financial asset. In this instance, the advance payment is classified as a non-trading financial liability that is carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. If it is probable that the advance payment will be repaid with goods or 
services, the liability is carried at historic cost.

 1.12  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
   The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

  Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Group also:
	 	 •  tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annually by 

comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the annual period 
and at the same time every period; and

	 	 • tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.12  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS continued
   If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not 

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs is determined.

   The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

   An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.

   Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or 
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

   An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount 
of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the following order:

	 	 • First, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and
	 	 • Then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

   An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods 
for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amounts of those assets are estimated.

   The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

   A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 1.13 SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY
   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

 1.14  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
   The costs of goods or services received in a share-based payment transaction are recognised as the goods or services are received.

   A corresponding increase in equity is recognised if the goods or services were received in an equity-settled share-based 
payment transaction or a liability if the goods or services were acquired in a cash-settled share-based payment transaction.

   For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the goods or services received are measured, as well as the corresponding 
increase in equity, at the fair value of the goods or services received unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably.

   If the fair value of the goods or services cannot be estimated reliably, their value and the corresponding increase in equity are 
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

   For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the fair value of the equity instruments granted is measured at grant 
date and is not subsequently remeasured. At each reporting date, up to and including vesting date, an estimate of the number 
of options expected to vest is carried out at each reporting date. Any adjustments are made through the statement of 
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

   If the share-based payments granted do not vest until the counterparty completes a specified period of service, the company 
accounts for those services as they are rendered by the counterparty during the vesting period, or on a straight-line basis over 
the vesting period.

 1.15  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
  Short-term employee benefits
   The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 

leave and sick leave and bonuses) are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

   The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

   The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.15  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS continued
  Defined contribution plans
  Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

   Payments made to industry-managed (or State plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the Group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 
The Group has no further obligation once the payments due have been settled.

 1.16  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
  Provisions are recognised when:
	 	 • the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
	 	 • it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
	 	 • a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

   The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. The 
discount rate used is in line with the length of the particular mining operation. Discounting is only performed when the effects 
of time value of money are considered to be material.

   Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity 
settles the obligation.

   The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the 
amount of the provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

   After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised separately are 
subsequently measured at the higher of:

	 	 • the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
	 	 • the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

 1.17  REVENUE
  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
	 	 • The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
	 	 •  The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 

control over the goods sold;
	 	 • The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
	 	 • It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and
	 	 • The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

   Revenue associated with construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the construction contract 
at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

	 	 • The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
	 	 • It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group;
	 	 • The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
	 	 • The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

   Stage of completion is determined by the proportion costs incurred to date compared to the total estimated costs of the 
construction contract.

   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for 
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

  Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

 1.18  COST OF SALES
   When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the 

related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories 
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write down of 
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised 
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write down of inventories is limited 
to the original carrying amount had no write down been recognised.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 1.19  BORROWING COSTS
   Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 

as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible 
for capitalisation is determined as follows:

	 	 •  Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary 
investment of those borrowings; or

	 	 •  Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining 
a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

  The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
	 	 • expenditures for the asset have occurred;
	 	 • borrowing costs have been incurred; and
	 	 • activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

  Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

   Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale 
are complete.

  All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 1.20  TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES
  Foreign currency transactions
   A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot 

exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

  At each statement of financial position date:
	 	 • foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate; and
	 	 •  non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rate at the date of the transaction.

   Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

   Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

  Foreign operations
   The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that 

have a functional currency different from the Group’s presentation are translated into the functional currency as follows:
	 	 •  Assets and liabilities for each reporting period presented are translated at the closing rate ruling at the financial year-end 

date; and
	 	 •  Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income item are translated at average exchange rates for the 

year to the extent that such average rates approximate rates ruling at the date of transactions.

   Exchanged differences arising on the translation are recognised directly in a separate component of other comprehensive 
income (foreign currency translation reserve). When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified in 
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

 1.21  EARNINGS PER SHARE
   Earnings per share is based on the attributable profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

in issue during the year. Diluted earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive 
effect on earnings per share.

 1.22  HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE
   Headline earnings per share is based on the same calculation as in earnings per share above except that attributable profit 

specifically excludes items as set out in Circular 03/2012 ‘Headline Earnings’ issued by the South African Institute for Chartered 
Accountants. Fully diluted headline earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a 
dilutive effect on headline earnings per share.
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2.  NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
 2.1  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
   At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing 

standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

   Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period 
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations 
that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and 
interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standard Details of amendment 
Effective date – annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 1 January 2013
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment 1 July 2014
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2013
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 July 2014
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments To be announced
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 January 2013
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IAS 28 Investment in Associates 1 January 2013
IAS 38 Intangible Assets 1 July 2014
IAS 40 Investment Property 1 July 2014
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in Surface Mine Production 1 January 2013
IFRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014

   All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those standards and interpretations that 
are not applicable to the entity).

   The aggregate impact of the initial application of the statements and interpretations on the Group’s annual financial statements 
has not yet been assessed by the directors.
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2013 2012

Cost
R’000

Accumulated
 depreciation

R’000

Carrying 
value
R’000

Cost
R’000

Accumulated 
depreciation

R’000

Carrying 
value
R’000

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT
GROUP
Land and buildings 133 159 (6 191) 126 968 130 883 (4 593) 126 290
Plant and machinery 252 780 (81 723) 171 057 211 303 (66 448)  144 855
Furniture and fixtures 4 842 (2 431)  2 411 3 597  (1 915) 1 682
Motor vehicles 78 118 (39 188)  38 930 51 381 (29 031) 22 350
Office equipment 3 938 (1 647) 2 291  2 775  (1 174) 1 601
IT equipment 19 574 (13 187) 6 387 16 722 (9 675) 7 047
Computer software 23 453 (7 619) 15 834 13 347 (3 468) 9 879
Leasehold improvements 612 (122) 490 88 (88) –
Total 516 476 (152 108) 364 368 430 096  (116 392) 313 704

COMPANY 
Furniture and fixtures 381 (105) 276 196  (128) 68
Office equipment 20 (20) – 20 (17) 3
IT equipment 182 (172) 10 182  (162) 20
Leasehold improvements 612 (122) 490 88 (88) –
Total 1 195 (419) 776  486 (395) 91

Opening
balance

R’000
Additions

R’000

Additions 
through 

business
 combinations

R’000
Disposals

R’000
Depreciation

R’000

Closing 
balance

R’000

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GROUP
2013
Land and buildings 126 290 2 243 33 – (1 598) 126 968
Plant and machinery 144 855 23 301 23 120 (1 148) (19 071) 171 057
Furniture and fixtures 1 682 1 351 – (20) (602) 2 411
Motor vehicles 22 350 27 756  –  (3) (11 173) 38 930
Office equipment 1 601 1 152  12  – (474)  2 291
IT equipment 7 047 3 147 199 (42)  (3 964) 6 387
Computer software  9 879  10 263 – (150)  (4 158) 15 834
Leasehold improvements – 612 – – (122) 490

313 704 69 825 23 364 (1 363) (41 162) 364 368

2012
Land and buildings 122 090 5 709 – – (1 509) 126 290
Plant and machinery 156 942 9 958 – (1 437) (20 608) 144 855
Furniture and fixtures 1 156 1 051 –  (17) (508) 1 682
Motor vehicles 20 016 12 169 –  (1 661)  (8 174) 22 350
Office equipment 460 1 408 – –  (267)  1 601
IT equipment 4 208 5 743 – (11) (2 893) 7 047
Computer software 2 656 9 462 – –  (2 239) 9 879

307 528  45 500 –  (3 126) (36 198) 313 704
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Opening
balance

R’000
Additions

R’000

Additions 
through 

business
 combinations

R’000
Disposals

R’000
Depreciation

R’000

Closing 
balance

R’000

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT continued
RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
COMPANY
2013
Furniture and fixtures 68  290 – (20) (62) 276
Office equipment 3 – – –  (3) –
IT equipment 20 – – – (10) 10
Leasehold improvements – 613 – – (123) 490

91 903 – (20) (198) 776

2012
Furniture and fixtures 99 – – –  (31) 68
Office equipment 7 – – – (4) 3
IT equipment 8 20 – – (8) 20

114  20 – –  (43)  91

 ASSETS SUBJECT TO INSTALMENT SALE LIABILITIES (NET CARRYING AMOUNT)

GROUP
2013
R’000 

2012
R’000 

Plant and machinery 34 480 2 684 
Motor vehicles 10 015 16 366
Office equipment 2 865 3 971

47 360 23 021

 Refer to notes 15 and 16 for details of property, plant and equipment given as security to the Group’s lenders.

 OPTION ON CERTAIN LAND AND BUILDINGS
  Elderberry Proprietary Limited has an option in place to acquire the land and buildings held by Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited for 

an amount of R68.4 million. The current carrying value of the land and buildings is R69,1 million (2012: R69,1 million). Should the option 
be exercised, Elderberry has an obligation to lease the land and buildings back to Drift Supersand, if Drift Supersand so requires. If the 
lease comes into effect following Elderberry exercising its option to acquire the land and buildings, Drift Supersand has the option to 
renew the lease up to 30 September 2022. Certain directors of Drift Supersand are shareholders of Elderberry.
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GROUP
2013 2012

Cost
R’000 

Accumulated
 impairment

R’000

Carrying 
value 
R’000

Cost
R’000 

Accumulated
 impairment

R’000

Carrying 
value
R’000

4. GOODWILL
Goodwill 500 361  (38 141) 462 220 500 361 (38 141) 462 220

 IMPAIRMENT TESTING
  The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units (CGUs) have been determined based on value in use calculations. The 

assumptions applied for each of the variables are conservative and match those applied in the preparation of Group budgets 
and forecasts. Assumptions are supported by past experience. Future cash flows were discounted at a rate of 15% to 20% over a  
10-year period and assuming a growth rate of 8,5%. A period of 10 years was used as it is in line with the minimum investment period 
envisaged at the acquisitions date. The value of goodwill determined on this basis significantly exceeds the carrying value at year-end 
for Drift Supersand, West End Claybrick and Conco.

 ALLOCATION OF GOODWILL

2013
R’000 

2012
R’000

Drift Supersand 22 717 22 717
West End Claybrick 41 565 41 565
Conco 397 938 397 938
Total 462 220 462 220

GROUP
 2013 2012

Cost 
R’000

Accumulated
 amortisation

R’000

Carrying 
value 
R’000

Cost 
R’000

Accumulated
 amortisation

R’000

Carrying 
value
R’000

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Mining rights 21 743 (6 523) 15 220  21 743  (5 436) 16 307
Brand names 23 959 (10 837) 13 122 23 959 (8 441) 15 518
Total 45 702 (17 360) 28 342 48 702 (13 877) 31 825

 RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GROUP
 2013 2012

Cost 
R’000

Amortisation
R’000

Closing 
balance 

R’000
Cost 

R’000
Amortisation

R’000

Closing 
balance 

R’000

Mining rights 16 307 (1 087) 15 220 17 394 (1 087) 16 307
Brand names 15 518 (2 396) 13 122 17 914 (2 396) 15 518

31 825 (3 483) 28 342 35 308 (3 483) 31 825

 REMAINING USEFUL LIVES OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2013
Years

2012
Years

Mining rights 14 15
Brand names 5 6
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued
 SYNOPSIS OF MINING RIGHTS

Drift Supersand Mining West End Claybrick Regal Brick Regal Brick

Reference number ML06/1998 ML07/2003 MR78/2007 MR68/2007
Mineral Sand, gravel and  

igneous rock 
Clay Sand occurring in the 

slimes dam 
Clay

Properties Portion 116, a portion of 
portion 79 of Roodekrans 
No. 183, District 
Krugersdorp, Gauteng 
measuring 26,8480 
hectares in extent

Portion 80 of Roodekrans 
No. 183, District 
Krugersdorp, Gauteng 
measuring 38,86 
hectares in extent

Portion 79 of Roodekrans 
No. 183, District 
Krugersdorp, Gauteng 
measuring 26,84 
hectares in extent

Remaining portion 1 of 
the farm Waterspan 292 
– IO Westonaria

Mine residue deposit 
RMT 273/77 located on 
portion 3 of the farm 
Witpoortjie 245 –  
IQ Mogale City District, 
measuring 18,1590 
hectares in extent

Remaining portion of 
portion 1 and a portion 
of portion 32 of the  
farm Waterspan 292 –  
IQ Westonaria, 
measuring 49,9934 
hectares in extent

Issue date 24 February 2012 18 May 2010 6 March 2007 6 March 2007
Expiration date 26 April 2038 17 May 2040 5 March 2017 5 March 2037
Status New order mining  

right approved
New order mining  
right approved

New order mining  
right approved

New order mining  
right approved

  No land is owned, leased or is adjacent to any protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas. 

 As at year-end no impairment indicators existed.

Percentage holding Cost
2013

%
2012

%
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NAME OF COMPANY
Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited 100 100 28 841 28 841
West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited 100 100 61 558 61 558
Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited 100 100 459 027 459 027
Consolidated Power Maintenance and Investments  
Proprietary Limited 100 100  1  1
Consolidated Infrastructure Group International* 100 –  –  –

549 427 549 427

 * All subsidiaries are incorporated in South Africa, except for Consolidated Infrastructure Group International which is incorporated in Mauritius.

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST 

Environmental Rehabilitation Trust Fund  6 472 3 152  – –

  The carrying value of the financial assets approximate their amortised cost.
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS continued

Non-current assets

At amortised cost 6 472 3 152  – –

8. DEFERRED TAX
DEFERRED TAX BREAKDOWN
Property, plant and equipment (26 761) (25 318)  – –
Deferred taxation on intangible assets (21 080) (17 155) – –
Debtors and income received in advance (24 840) (38 273)  – –
Tax losses available for set off against future taxable income 46 268 41 672 – –
Other provisions 1 183 1 177  – –
Temporary differences arising on property, plant and equipment (8 786) (8 382) – –
Provision for doubtful debts 1 376 1 424 – –
Accrual for leave pay and bonus 6 856 7 703 –  –

(25 784) (37 152)  –  –

RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED TAX
At the beginning of the year (37 152) (32 920) –  (20)
Originating temporary difference on property, plant and 
equipment (1 443) (722)  – 20
Originating temporary difference on intangible assets (3 925) (8 461) –  –
Reversing/(originating) temporary difference on debtors and 
income received in advance 13 433  (4 744) – –
Increase in tax losses available for set off against future  
taxable income 4 596 8 501  – –
Reversing temporary difference on other provisions 6 269  – –
Originating temporary differences arising on property, plant  
and equipment (404) (540)  –  –
Originating temporary difference on provision for doubtful debts (48) (279) – –
(Originating)/reversing temporary difference on accrual for leave 
pay and bonus (847) 1 744  –  –

(25 784) (37 152)  – –

DISCLOSURE ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Deferred tax asset 6 316 8 250  – –
Deferred tax liability (32 100) (45 402)  – –

(25 784) (37 152)  – –

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSET
A deferred tax asset of R46,3 million (2012: R41,7 million) was 
raised based on tax losses available for set off against future 
taxable income. The projected future taxable income is in excess 
of the tax losses.

9. INVENTORIES
Raw materials, components 53 139 33 488  – –
Work in progress 16 383 13 475 – –
Finished goods 23 634 19 009 –  –

93 156 65 972 – –

  Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. There were no write downs of inventory during the current financial year.

 INVENTORY PLEDGED AS SECURITY
  R51,2 million (2012: R38,4 million) of inventory in West End Claybrick was pledged as security for overdraft facilities in the form of a 

notarial bond. At year-end the overdraft amounted to Rnil (2012: Rnil).
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

10. LOANS TO GROUP COMPANIES
SUBSIDIARIES
Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime interest rate plus 
0,5% and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group has subordinated R20 million (2012: R20 million) 
in favour of the subsidiary’s bankers, Nedbank Limited, in 
accordance with the terms of the loan granted.

– – 64 024 59 456

West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime interest rate and 
has no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group has subordinated the loan in favour of the subsidiary’s 
bankers.

– – 139 390 139 390

Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime interest rate and 
has no fixed terms of repayment.

– – 177 427 11 079

– – 380 841 209 925

The carrying value of the loans to Group companies approximate 
their amortised cost value. Discounting is only performed when 
the effects of the time value of money are considered material.

11. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT  
CUSTOMERS
Cost incurred plus recognised profits/(less recognised losses)  
on contracts in progress at year-end 620 261 166 945 –  –
Amounts receivable on contracts (net of impairments) 486 912 324 585 – –

1 107 173 491 530  – –
Advances received in excess of work completed (113 369)  (108 930)  – –

Amounts receivable/(payable) from contracts 993 804 382 600 – –
Retentions receivable (net of impairments) 109 723  143 882 – –

1 103 527 526 482 –  –

Amounts due from contract customers 1 216 896 635 412 – –
Amounts due to contract customers (113 369) (108 930) – –

1 103 527  526 482 –  –

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS PAST  
DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED
Amounts due from contract customers which are less  
than 90 days past due are not considered to be impaired.  
At 31 August 2013, R217,9 million (2012: R53,8 million) were  
past due but not impaired.

A provision of R28,4 million (2012: R30,4 million) was raised for 
past due amounts receivable from contract customers.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
31 – 60 days 45 040 – – –
61 – 90 days 51 820 53 765 – –
91 – 120 days 121 057 – – –

217 917 53 765 – –
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

11. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT  
CUSTOMERS continued
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of amounts due 
from contract customers
Opening balance 30 438 31 438 – –
Movement in provision (2 000) (1 000) – –

28 438 30 438 – –

R1 216,9 million (2012: R635,4 million) amounts due from contract 
customers in Conco have been ceded to the bank as security for 
facilities granted.

 The carrying value of amounts due from contract customers 
approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of 
these instruments. Discounting is only performed when the effects 
of the time value of money are considered material.

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 44 597 40 869 – –
Prepayments 2 550 3 940 768 3 561
Deposits 635 784 – 430
VAT 25 822 2 002 – 29
Professional indemnity fund 4 541  4 404 – –
Other 16 641 5 087 12 300 28

94 786 57 086 13 068 4 048

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES PLEDGED AS SECURITY
R20,8 million (2012: R18,2 million) trade receivables in West End 
Claybrick Proprietary Limited have been ceded to the bank as 
security for facilities granted.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES PAST DUE BUT NOT 
IMPAIRED
Trade and other receivables which are less than 90 days past due 
are not considered to be impaired.

At 31 August 2013, R8,4 million (2012: R1,2 million) was past due 
but not impaired.

A provision of R2,6 million (2012: R2,3 million) was raised for past 
due trade and other receivables.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
31 – 60 days 5 093 981 – –
61 – 90 days 1 161 205 – –
91 – 120 days 2 096  – – –

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF  
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Opening balance 2 332 1 700 791 791
Movement in provision 264 632 – –

2 596 2 332 791 791

  The carrying value of the trade and other receivables approximates their amortised cost value due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments. Discounting is only performed when the effects of the time value of money are considered material.
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 5 576 5 726 – –
Bank balances 498 749 398 663 481 172 288 424
Short-term deposits 6 – – –

504 331 404 389 481 172 288 424

The carrying value of the cash and cash equivalents approximates 
their amortised cost value due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments. Discounting is only performed when the effects of 
the time value of money are considered material.

Certain inventory (refer note 9), certain amounts due from 
contract customers (refer note 11), certain trade and other 
receivables (refer note 12) and an R8,0 million (2012: R8,0 million) 
surety by Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited were pledged 
as security for unutilised overdraft facilities.

14. SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
200 million no par value shares (2012: 150 million ordinary shares 
of R0,0001 each) 20 15 20 15

The company’s authorised share capital of 150 000 000 ordinary 
shares of no par value was increased to 200 000 000 ordinary 
shares of no par value by the creation of an additional 50 000 000 
ordinary shares of no par value during the current year.

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at 1 September 118 841  113 641  118 841 113 641
Issue of shares – ordinary shares – 5 200 – 5 200
Issue of shares – no par value shares 15 158 –  15 158 –
Closing balance as at 31 August 133 999 118 841  133 999 118 841

On 9 May 2013, 15 million no par value shares were issued for 
cash to selected institutions. A further 66,0 million unissued no 
par value shares (2012: 31,2 million unissued ordinary shares) are 
under the control of the directors. This authority remains in force 
until the next annual general meeting.

ISSUED
Ordinary –  11 – 11
No par value shares 982 585 – 981 896 –
Share premium – 726 897 – 726 897

982 585  726 908 981 896  726 908

  The company converted all the ordinary shares with a par value of 0,01 cent each from ordinary shares with a par value of 0,01 cent 
each into ordinary shares of no par value in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act.
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GROUP
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
HELD AT AMORTISED COST
15.1 Bank loan 738 8 525 

The loan is secured over land and buildings held by Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited 
valued at R68 million, bears interest at prime less 1,5% and was repayable in  
60 instalments of R0,7 million. At year-end one instalment remains outstanding.

15.2 IDC suspensive sale agreement
The loan is secured by a first mortgage bond over all land and buildings and by a general 
notarial bond over all moveable assets held by West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited.

The loan required interest payments in arrears compounded monthly until 30 May 2012. 
Thereafter capital and interest repayments became payable on 1 June 2012.

The loan was repayable in 71 monthly instalments of R357 650 with a final instalment of  
R356 850. At year-end 57 instalments remain outstanding.

Interest charged is at prime less 3% compounded monthly in arrears from drawing date to 
29 February 2016, thereafter at the variable rate of 0,4% below prime until repaid in full.

20 146  24 601 

15.3 IDC portion A of working capital loan 7 917  9 584

 
 

 The loan is secured by a first mortgage bond over all land and buildings and by a general 
notarial bond over all moveable assets held by West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited.

 The loan required interest payments in arrears compounded monthly until 30 May 2012. 
Thereafter capital and interest repayments became payable on 1 June 2012.

 The loan was repayable in 47 monthly instalments of R208 350 with a final instalment of 
R207 550. At year-end 33 instalments remain outstanding.

 Interest at the rate of 3% below prime from drawing date until 29 February 2016. 
Thereafter at the variable rate of 0,4% below prime until repaid in full.

15.4 IDC portion B of working capital loan 6 875 9 375
 The loan is secured by a first mortgage bond over all land and buildings and by a general 
notarial bond over all moveable assets held by West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited.

 The loan required interest payments in arrears compounded monthly until 30 May 2012. 
Thereafter capital and interest repayments became payable on 1 June 2012.

 The loan was repayable in 71 monthly instalments of R138 900 with a final instalment of 
R138 100. At year-end 33 instalments remain outstanding.

 Interest charged at fixed rate of 6,3% compounded monthly in arrears from drawing date 
to 31 March 2015, thereafter at the normal rate of 0,7% below prime until repaid in full.

15.5 Bank loans – other – 20 000 
 The loan was interest free and was payable over an extended period based on the free 
cash flow generated by West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited. The loan was settled during 
the current year.

15.6 Mortgage loan 3 354  4 413
 The mortgage loan is secured over certain land and buildings held by Lugbell Investments 
Proprietary Limited, a subsidiary of Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited. 
The loan bears interest at the prime overdraft rate and was repayable in 60 monthly 
instalments of R90 000. At year-end 38 instalments remain outstanding.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 August 2013
continued



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 87

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES continued
HELD AT AMORTISED COST
15.7 Senior unsecured floating rate notes 400 000 270 000 400 000 270 000

The authorised programme size of the notes is  
R500 million. As at 31 August 2013 the total notes issued 
amounted to R400 million (2012: R270 million).

For the first tranche of R270 million, interest charged 
is three month JIBAR plus 3,25% and is paid quarterly 
commencing on 6 June 2012.

The maturity date of the notes is 6 June 2015 at which time 
the full capital amount will be repaid.

For the second tranche of R130 million, interest charged 
is three month JIBAR plus 2,75% and is paid quarterly 
commencing on 30 August 2013.

The maturity date of the notes is 30 August 2016 at which 
time the full capital amount will be repaid.

Certain financial covenants are in place, all of which have 
been met at year-end.

439 030 346 498  400 000 290 000

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost 428 774 328 787 400 000 290 000
Current liabilities
At amortised cost 10 256  17 711  -  -

439 030 346 498 400 000 290 000

16. INSTALMENT SALE LIABILITIES
MINIMUM PAYMENTS DUE
–  within one year 18 994 11 484 – –
–  in second to fifth year inclusive 29 806 14 977 –

48 800 26 461 – –
Less: Future finance charges (4 263) (2 687) – –
Present value of minimum payments  44 537  23 774 –  –

PRESENT VALUE OF MINIMUM PAYMENTS DUE
–  within one year  16 985  9 975 – –
–  in second to fifth year inclusive 27 552 13 799 – –

44 537  23 774  –  –

Non-current liabilities 27 552 13 799 –  –
Current liabilities 16 985  9 975 – –

44 537 23 774  – –

 It is Group policy to acquire certain plant and machinery, motor vehicles and office equipment under instalment sale liabilities.

 The average term was three to five years and the average effective borrowing rate was 9% (2012: 9%).

  Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All instalment sales have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been 
entered into for contingent rent.

  The Group’s obligations under instalment sale agreements are secured by the lessor’s charge over the assets subject to instalment 
sales. Refer note 3.
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Opening
 balance

R’000
Additions

R’000 
Total
R’000

17. PROVISIONS
RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS
Environmental rehabilitation – Group – 2013 8 065 167 8 232
Environmental rehabilitation – Group – 2012 7 881 184 8 065

  The provision has been raised due to the Group’s obligation to rectify environmental damage on the mine situated at remaining 
portion 1 of the farm Waterpan 292 – IQ Westonaria and the Drift Supersand quarry situated at Muldersdrift.

  In accordance with legislation, the land contaminated by the company must be restored to a condition as prescribed by the 
Department of Minerals (DMR), when mining activities come to an end. During the current year the company provided for this 
purpose. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the biggest uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be 
incurred. In particular, the company has assumed that the site will be restored using technology and materials that are available 
currently. Estimated costs are based on current tariffs and guidelines. It is forecast that, due to continuing operations, the land will 
not have to be rehabilitated within the next 25 years, but portions of land are rehabilitated as part of ongoing operations from time 
to time.

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 326 982 148 411 – –
VAT 2 739 1 400 1 435 –
Accrued leave pay  12 560 10 510 – –
Accrued bonus 11 383 16 670 – 880
Accrued audit fees  2 653 2 196 410 410
Accrued expenses 142 583 53 183 10 679 7 170
Other payables 567 199 – –

499 467 232 569 12 524  8 460

The carrying value of the trade and other payables approximates 
their amortised cost value due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments. Discounting is only performed when the effects of 
the time value of money are considered material.

19. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
It is the policy of the Group to provide retirement benefits to all its 
employees. A defined contribution provident fund, which is subject 
to the Pensions Fund Act, exists for this purpose.

The Group is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

The total Group contribution to such schemes 15 086 12 459 – –

20. REVENUE
Sale of goods 309 923 272 898 – –
Construction contracts 1 727 479 1 280 624 – –

2 037 402 1 553 522 – –
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

21. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Operating profit/(loss) for the year is stated after accounting for 
the following:
Operating lease charges
–  Premises  9 398 7 269  707 342
–  Equipment 240 173  – –

9 638 7 442 707 342

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (760) (487) 10 –
Profit on settlement of financial liabilities (7 000) – (7 000)  –
Profit on exchange differences (37 211) (27 990)  – –
Employee costs 194 506 170 434 12 731  9 540

Salary
R’000 

Bonus and
performance

 related
 payments

R’000

Retirement
 contri-
butions

R’000

Medical aid 
contri-

butions
R’000

Subsistence
 and travel 
allowance

R’000

Share-
based 

payment
R’000

Total
R’000

22. DIRECTORS’  
EMOLUMENTS
EXECUTIVE
2013
Paid by the company
RD Gamsu 3 080 2 880 – – 120 3 815 9 895
IM Klitzner 1 916 1 800 – – 84 1 171 4 971

Paid by subsidiaries
B Berelowitz 1 824 156 372 111  512 – 2 975

6 820 4 836 372 111  716 4 986 17 841

  485 623 and 151 757 performance based share options were awarded to the CEO and FD respectively at the commencement of 
the current financial year, at a strike price of R12,52. Based on the fair value of the options that vested at the reporting date, the cost 
of the share-based payment to the directors for those options that vested in the current financial year are included in the directors’ 
emoluments table above. No share options, awarded during the current year and prior years, were exercised by the directors during 
the year. 2 447 921 share options have vested in terms of the performance criteria as per note 40, but remain unexercised at year end.

Salary
R’000 

Bonus and
performance

 related
 payments

R’000

Retirement
 contri-
butions

R’000

Medical aid 
contri-

butions
R’000

Subsistence
 and travel 
allowance

R’000

Share-
based 

payment
R’000

Total
R’000

EXECUTIVE
2012
Paid by the company
RD Gamsu 2 830 2 650 – – 120 3 315 8 915
IM Klitzner 1 751 1 650 – – 84 1 014 4 499

Paid by subsidiaries
B Berelowitz 2 630 500 535 108 512  –  4 285

7 211 4 800 535 108 716 4 329 17 699

  686 845 and 213 620 performance based share options were awarded to the CEO and FD respectively at the commencement of 
the current financial year, at a strike price of R8,59. Based on the fair value of the options that vested at the reporting date, the cost 
of the share-based payment to the directors for those options that vested in the current financial year are included in the directors’ 
emoluments table above. No share options, awarded during the current year and prior years, were exercised by the directors during 
the year. 1 495 419 share options have vested in terms of the performance criteria as per note 40, but remain unexercised at year-end.
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Board fees 
R’000 

Total 
R’000

22. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS continued
NON-EXECUTIVE
2013
Paid by the company
F Boner 340 340
K Bucknor 135 135
AD Dixon 365 365
A Darko 365 365
R Horton 245 245
J Nwokedi 180 180

1 630 1 630

2012
Paid by the company
AD Dixon 235 235
N Mintah 164 164
F Boner 193 193
A Darko 219 219
R Horton  132 132

943 943

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

23. INVESTMENT REVENUE
INTEREST REVENUE
Bank 17 575 15 069 14 941 5 209
Other 66 3 388 –  –
Loans to subsidiaries  – – 11 527 5 401

17 641  18 457 26 468 10 610

24. FINANCE COSTS
Financial liabilities 3 077 4 061 – –
Instalment sale liabilities 2 776 1 766 – –
Bank and other 27 905 9 959 22 600  5 630

33 758  15 786 22 600  5 630

25. TAXATION
MAJOR COMPONENTS OF THE TAX EXPENSE
Current
Local income tax – current period 64 585 47 208 (744) (402)
Prior period under provision  (8 422) 215 – –
CGT 1 302 – 1 302 –

57 465 47 423 558  (402)

Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences (11 368)  3 723  – (20)

46 097 51 146 558 (422)
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

25. TAXATION continued
RECONCILIATION OF THE TAX EXPENSE
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense

Accounting profit 217 723 188 050 2 084 (3 957)

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% 60 962 52 654 584 (1 108)

TAX EFFECT OF ADJUSTMENTS ON TAXABLE INCOME
Non-deductible expenditure 1 863 101  632 686
Deferred tax under provision prior periods – (1 835) – –
Prior period under provision (8 422) 215 – –
Tax losses carried forward (5 858) 11  (1 960) –
CGT 1 302 – 1 302 –
Exempt income (3 750) –  – –

46 097  51 146 558 (422)

The estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable 
income is R161,9 million (2012: R158,1 million).

26. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
External audit fees (local and foreign operations) 2 933 1 651 440 440
Internal audit fees 733 917  32 59
Consulting, taxation and secretarial fees 1 265 766 800 256

4 931 3 334 1 272  755

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 170 832  136 892 – –

Shares in issue at year-end (‘000)  133 999 118 841  – –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose  
of basic earnings per share (‘000) 123 533 117 548 –  –
Basic earnings per share (cents) 138,29 116,46  –  –

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 170 832 136 892 – –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 
basic earnings per share (‘000) 123 533  117 548  – –
Dilutive options – share schemes 1 282 252 –  –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 
diluted earnings per share (‘000) 124 815 117 800  – –
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 136,87 116,21  –  –

HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 170 832 136 892 – –
Less: IAS 16 profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (547) (407)  – –

Headline earnings for the year attributable to equity holders of 
the parent 170 285  136 485 –  –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 
headline earnings per share (‘000) (refer basic earnings per share) 123 533  117 548 – –
Headline earnings per share (cents) 137,84  116,11  –  –
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE continued
DILUTED HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 170 832 136 892 –  –
Less: IAS 16 profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (547) (407) – –

Headline earnings for the year attributable to equity holders of 
the parent 170 285  136 485  –  –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 
headline earnings per share (’000) (refer basic earnings per share) 123 533  117 548  – –
Dilutive options – share schemes 1 282 252 – –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 
diluted headline earnings per share (’000) 124 815 117 800 – –
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 136,43 115,86 –  –

GROUP

Gross
R’000 

Tax 
R’000

Net 
before non-

controlling
 interest

R’000

Non-
controlling

interest
R’000

Net
R’000

28. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME  
2013
Exchange differences on translating foreign 
operations
Exchange differences arising during the year 1 394 – 1 394 (279) 1 115

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

29. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) before taxation 217 723 188 050 2 084 (3 957)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 44 645 39 681 198 43
Profit on sale of assets (7 760)  (487)  (6 990) –
Interest received  (17 641)  (18 457)  (26 468)  (10 610)
Finance costs 33 758 15 786 22 600 5 630
Gain on settlement of instalment sale liabilities (219) – – –
Movements in provisions 167  184 – –

Changes in working capital:
Inventories (27 184)  (25 744) – –
Trade and other receivables (43 611) (2 996) (9 020) 1 948
Amounts due from contract customers (581 484) (65 788)  – –
Amounts due to contract customers 4 439 (61 921) – –
Trade and other payables 275 847 (57 325) 2 454 7 560
Amounts received in advance (11 834) (11 294) – –

(113 154)  (311)  (15 142) 614
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GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

30. TAX (PAID)/REFUNDED
Balance at the beginning of the year (35 680) (2 103) 479 307
Current tax for the year recognised in statement of 
comprehensive income (57 465)  (47 423) (558) 402
Effect of foreign currency translation reserve movement tax 
balance (25) 1  – –
Balance at the end of the year 37 406 35 680  54  (479)

(55 764)  (13 845) (25) 230

31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
AGGREGATED BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Property, plant and equipment 20 000  – – –

CONSIDERATION PAID
Cash  (20 000) – – –

NET CASH OUTFLOW ON ACQUISITION
Cash consideration paid (20 000) –  – –

QUARRY CATS
On 14 May 2013 the assets of Quarry Cats Proprietary Limited 
(Quarry Cats) were bought from Group Five Limited for the value 
of R20 000 000. The value of the assets acquired is provisional 
and all the employees were transferred over.

32. COMMITMENTS
AUTHORISED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Not yet contracted for and authorised by directors
Existing operations 55 322 17 452 – –
Renewable energy (new business) – 10 000 – –
Motor vehicles* 7 295 33 262 – –

*  In 2012 a decision was taken to move from hiring motor vehicles to purchasing 
the motor vehicles. There would therefore be a corresponding decline in the 
operating lease charge expense in future periods.

OPERATING LEASES – AS LESSEE (EXPENSE)
Minimum lease payments due
–  within one year 15 668 6 762 – –
–  in second to fifth year inclusive 29 531 27 453 – –

45 199 34 215 – –

 No contingent rent is payable.

33.  CONTINGENCIES
 The Group has procured the following performance bonds:
 • Lombards Insurance: R444,9 million (2012: R204,1 million) for 138 bonds (2012: 99 bonds);
 • Standard Bank: R90,9 million (2012: R191,5 million) for 15 bonds (2012: 42 bonds)#;
 • Standard Chartered Bank: R68,0 million (2012: Rnil) for 25 bonds (2012: nil bonds)#; and
 • Construction Guarantee: R3,8 million (2012: R3,8 million) for one bond (2012: one bond).

 The Group has issued letters of intent to the value of R9,9 million (2012: R36,2 million).

 #  During the current year Standard Chartered issued a back to back guarantee to Standard Bank to cover all the guarantees issued by Standard Bank.
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34.  RELATED PARTIES
 RELATIONSHIPS
 Subsidiaries  Refer to note 6

 Company controlled by director of subsidiary  Consolidated Power Properties Proprietary Limited

 Members of key management  RD Gamsu IM Klitzner
  J Hooman IM Hambridge
  F Aveling B Reynecke
  W Rossouw T Ferreira
  H Thomas B Berelowitz
  S Gesha D van Zyl
  L Heymans A Richelman
  M Mulligan R de Villiers
  A Clacher M Farmer
  M Prasti R Dijkstra
  L Bushney M Grobler
  S Zondi M Mabaso
  C Pillay P Gumbi
  V Bahlekazi R Bekker
  B Kimmel A de Bruyn
  I van der Merwe

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Related party balances (refer note 10)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Interest paid to/(received from) related parties
Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited – –  (5 135) (5 401)
Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited – –  (6 393)  –
West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited – – (17 500) (16 996)
The amount receivable has been impaired by Consolidated 
Infrastructure Group Limited.

Rent paid to related party
Consolidated Power Properties Proprietary Limited 4 642  4 053  – –

Management fees paid to/(received from) related parties
West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited  –  – (600) (540)
Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited – – (13 743)  (14 127)
Drift Supersand Proprietary Limited –  – (600) (600)

Compensation to directors and other key management
Emoluments 60 684 50 141 14 866 13 414

  Remuneration and benefits received by each director or prescribed officer directly employed by the Group have been disclosed in 
note 22.

  Remuneration paid across multiple Group companies is sensitive in nature in terms of managing both internal and external relationships 
with multiple stakeholders. It has therefore been decided to list one remuneration figure for all key management to avoid any potential 
conflicts that may arise.
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35.  RISK MANAGEMENT
 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
  The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

  The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 10, 15 and 16, cash and cash 
equivalents disclosed in note 13, and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

  Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt: equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as net 
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in 
the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is represented in the statement of financial position.

 There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

  There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed capital 
requirements from the previous year.

 The debt: equity ratio at 2013 and 2012 respectively was as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Notes
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

TOTAL BORROWINGS
Instalment sale liabilities 16 44 537 23 774 – –
Financial liabilities 15 439 030 346 498 400 000 290 000

483 567 370 272 400 000 290 000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 13 504 331 404 389 481 172 288 424

Net (cash)/debt (20 764)  (34 117) (81 172) 1 576
Total equity 1 579 991 1 146 503  1 012 706  753 934
Total capital 1 559 227 1 112 386 931 534  755 510

Debt:equity ratio (%) (1)  (3) (9) –

 LIQUIDITY RISK
  The Group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Group manages liquidity risk through 

an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

  The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

GROUP COMPANY

 

Within 
one year

R’000 

Second to 
fifth year
 inclusive

R’000

Over 
five years

R’000

Within 
one year

R’000

Second to 
fifth year
 inclusive

R’000

Over 
five years

R’000

At 31 August 2013
Financial liabilities 10 256 428 774 – – 400 000 –
Instalment sale liabilities 18 994 29 806  – – – –
Trade and other payables 496 728 – – 11 089 – –

At 31 August 2012
Financial liabilities 17 711 328 787 – – 290 000 –
Instalment sale liabilities 11 484 14 977 – – – –
Trade and other payables 231 169 – – 8 460 – –

 INTEREST RATE RISK
  The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration 

refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the 
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift.

  At 31 August 2013, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held 
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R0,2 million (2012: R0,2 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower 
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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35.  RISK MANAGEMENT continued
 CREDIT RISK
  Credit risk consists mainly of loans to Group companies, financial assets, amounts due from contract customers, cash deposits, cash 

equivalents and trade debtors. The Group only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure 
to any one counterparty.

  Amounts due from contract customers and trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit 
risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no 
independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience 
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The 
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit 
guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate. Other receivables are evaluated on a portfolio basis. 

 Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year-end were as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 
Loans to Group companies – – 380 841 209 925
Financial assets  6 472 3 152 – –
Amounts due from contract customers 1 216 896 635 412 – –
Trade and other receivables 65 779 50 360 12 300 28
Cash and cash equivalents 504 331 404 389 481 172 288 424

 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
  The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily 

with respect to the US Dollar, Euro, Botswana Pula, Cedi and Uganda Shilling. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial 
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

 Foreign currency exposure to financial instruments is as follows:

GROUP

 Total Rand US Dollar Euro 
Botswana

 Pula
Uganda
 Shilling Cedi Other

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
2013
Amounts due from contract 
customers 1 216 896  856 346 157 385 14 322  16 989 16 475 10 279 145 100
Other receivables 94 786 89 697 34  – 4 342 – 339 374
Cash and cash equivalents 504 331 440 536  50 051  526  2 565 11 1 595 9 047
Trade and other payables (499 467) (446 871) (7 408) (9 116)  654 891  (1 134)  (36 483)
Amounts due to contract 
customers (113 369)  (92 726) (6 998)  – – – (4 099)  (9 546)
Net exposure 1 203 177 846 982 193 064 5 732 24 550  17 377  6 980 108 492

2012
Amounts due from contract 
customers 635 412 416 552 162 064  22 033 15 463 18 753 – 547
Other receivables 57 086 52 488 – – 4 514 – – 84
Cash and cash equivalents 404 389 363 598 29 697  2 463 4 141 158 – 4 332
Trade and other payables (232 569) (213 519) (13 283) (138) (2 129) (1 806) – (1 694)
Amounts due to contract 
customers (108 930) (99 065) (8 308)  – (392)  (1 165) –  –
Net exposure  755 388 520 054 170 170 24 358 21 597 15 940 – 3 269

 The Group does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

  The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency 
exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed primarily through the earnings in the relevant 
foreign currencies.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35.  RISK MANAGEMENT continued
 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK continued
  At 31 August 2013, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant, 

post-tax profit for the year would have been R1,9 million (2012: R1,2 million) higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains 
or losses on translation of US Dollar denominated amounts due from contract customers, other receivables, and cash and cash 
equivalents and foreign exchange losses or gains on translation of US Dollar denominated trade and other payables and amounts 
due to contract customers.

  At 31 August 2013, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the Euro with all other variables held constant, post-tax 
profit for the year would have been R0,1 million (2012: R0,2 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on 
translation of Euro denominated amounts due from contract customers, other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents and foreign 
exchange losses/gains on translation of Euro denominated trade and other payables and amounts due to contract customers.

  At 31 August 2013, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the Botswana Pula with all other variables held 
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R0,2 million (2012: R0,2 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign 
exchange gains/losses on translation of Botswana Pula denominated amounts due from contract customers, other receivables, 
and cash and cash equivalents and foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Botswana Pula denominated trade and other 
payables and amounts due to contract customers.

  At 31 August 2013, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the Uganda Shilling with all other variables held 
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R0,2 million (2012: R0,1 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign 
exchange gains/losses on translation of Uganda Shilling denominated amounts due from contract customers, other receivables, 
and cash and cash equivalents and foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Uganda Shilling denominated trade and other 
payables and amounts due to contract customers.

  At 31 August 2013, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the Cedi with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been R0,1 million (2012: Rnil) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses 
on translation of Cedi denominated amounts due from contract customers, other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents and 
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Cedi denominated trade and other payables and amounts due to contract customers.

 Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:

GROUP
2013
R’000

2012 
R’000

US Dollar 10,275 8,430
Euro 13,555 11,570
Botswana Pula 1,175 1,084
Uganda Shilling 0,0040  0,0034
Cedi 4,7517 –

GROUP

Loans and
 receivables

R’000

Held to
 maturity

R’000

Available 
for sale

R’000

Non-financial
 assets

R’000
Total
R’000

36. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY
The accounting policies for financial instruments 
have been applied to the line items below:
2013
Property, plant and equipment – – – 364 368 364 368
Goodwill  –  –  – 462 220 462 220
Intangible assets – – – 28 342 28 342
Financial assets  6 472 – –  – 6 472
Deferred tax – –  –  6 316 6 316
Inventories – – – 93 156 93 156
Current tax receivable – – – 1 402 1 402
Amounts due from contract customers 1 216 896  – – – 1 216 896
Trade and other receivables 65 779 –  – 29 007 94 786
Cash and cash equivalents 504 331 – – – 504 331

1 793 478  – – 984 811 2 778 289
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GROUP

Loans and
 receivables

R’000

Held to
 maturity

R’000

Available 
for sale

R’000

Non-financial
 assets

R’000
Total
R’000

36. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY  
continued
2012
Property, plant and equipment – – – 313 704 313 704
Goodwill – – – 462 220 462 220
Intangible assets  –  – – 31 825  31 825
Financial assets 3 152 – – – 3 152
Deferred tax – – – 8 250 8 250
Inventories – – – 65 972 65 972
Current tax receivable – –  –  368 368
Amounts due from contract customers 635 412 – – – 635 412
Trade and other receivables 50 360 – – 6 726 57 086
Cash and cash equivalents 404 389 – – – 404 389

1 093 313  – – 889 065 1 982 378

COMPANY

Loans and
 receivables

R’000

Held to
 maturity

R’000

Available 
for sale

R’000

Non-financial
 assets

R’000
Total
R’000

2013
Property, plant and equipment – –  – 776 776
Investments in subsidiaries –  – – 549 427 549 427
Loans to Group companies  380 841 – – – 380 841
Current tax receivable – –  – 1 248 1 248
Trade and other receivables 12 300 – – 768 13 068
Cash and cash equivalents 481 172 –  – – 481 172

874 313  – – 552 219 1 426 532

2012
Property, plant and equipment  – – – 91 91
Investments in subsidiaries –  – – 549 427 549 427
Loans to Group companies 209 925 – – – 209 925
Current tax receivable – – – 479 479
Trade and other receivables 28 – – 4 020 4 048
Cash and cash equivalents 288 424 –  – – 288 424

498 377  – – 554 017 1 052 394
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continued
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GROUP

 

Financial 
liabilities at
 amortised

 cost
R’000

Non-financial 
liabilities

R’000
Total
R’000

37. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line 
items below:
2013
Financial liabilities 439 030 – 439 030
Instalment sale liabilities  44 537  – 44 537
Deferred tax – 32 100 32 100
Provisions – 8 232 8 232
Current tax payable – 38 808 38 808
Trade and other payables  496 728  2 739 499 467
Amounts received in advance  – 22 755 22 755
Amounts due to contract customers –  113 369 113 369

980 295  218 003 1 198 298

2012
Financial liabilities 346 498 – 346 498
Instalment sale liabilities 23 774 – 23 774
Deferred tax  – 45 402 45 402
Provisions  –  8 065 8 065
Current tax payable – 36 048 36 048
Trade and other payables 231 169 1 400 232 569
Amounts received in advance – 34 589  34 589
Amounts due to contract customers – 108 930 108 930

601 441 234 434  835 875

COMPANY

 

Financial 
liabilities at
 amortised

 cost
R’000

Non-financial 
liabilities

R’000
Total
R’000

2013
Financial liabilities 400 000 – 400 000
Current tax payable – 1 302 1 302
Trade and other payables 8 460 4 064  12 524

408 460  5 366 413 826

2012
Financial liabilities 290 000 – 290 000
Trade and other payables 8 460 – 8 460

298 460 – 298 460
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38.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
  On 3 December 2012 CIG announced the acquisition of a 30,5% interest in Angola Environmental Serviços Limitada (AES),  

an Angolan based company providing waste management services to the oil and gas sector.

  The acquisition agreement entered into on 25 November 2012, as varied from time to time thereafter, has become unconditional in 
all respects on 30 January 2014, as a consequence of which CIG has now become the effective holder of a 30,5% shareholding in AES.

  CIG’s effective 30,5% shareholding in AES is currently held by an Angolan incorporated company controlled by CIG. As soon as the 
requisite approval of the transaction has been granted by the Angolan authorities in terms of the Angola Private Investment Law, Law 
20/11 of 15 December 2011, as amended from time to time, CIG will transfer the whole of its shareholding in AES to a wholly owned 
subsidiary of CIG incorporated in Mauritius.

 The directors are not aware of any other significant subsequent events.

GROUP
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

39. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
OPERATING SEGMENTS
Revenue
Heavy building materials 309 923 272 898
Power 1 727 479  1 280 624
Power – local operations 1 303 182 746 604
Power – foreign operations 424 297 534 020

Total 2 037 402 1 553 522

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Heavy building materials 17 610  17 765
Power 23 354 18 390
Corporate 3 681 3 526
Total 44 645 39 681

EBITDA
Heavy building materials 61 865 57 840
Power  213 765 179 264
Corporate 2 866 (12 044)
Total 278 496 225 060

Reconciliation of EBITDA to profit before tax
EBITDA 278 496 225 060
Depreciation and amortisation (44 645) (39 681)
Net interest (paid)/received (16 128) 2 671
Profit before tax 217 723 188 050

Assets acquired
Heavy building materials 21 357 3 007
Power 47 565 42 473
Corporate 903 20
Total 69 825 45 500

Total assets
Heavy building materials 486 636 448 705
Power 1 259 482 868 846
Corporate 1 814 808 1 442 983
Total assets including Group loan accounts 3 560 926 2 760 534
Inter-group elimination (782 637) (778 156)
Total 2 778 289 1 982 378

Liabilities
Heavy building materials 385 357 363 029
Power 676 214 419 397
Corporate 422 400 316 426
Inter-group elimination (285 673) (262 977)
Total 1 198 298 835 875

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 August 2013
continued
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40.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
 DIRECTOR SHARE OPTION SCHEME

First grant Second grant Third grant

Grant date 10 December 2010 1 September 2011 1 September 2012
Number of options granted 2 563 158 900 465 637 380
Vesting period 4 years 4 years 4 years
Vesting conditions 16% real growth in earnings 

to be achieved for 100% of 
options to vest

16% real growth in earnings 
to be achieved for 100% of 
options to vest

16% real growth in earnings 
to be achieved for 100% of 
options to vest

Expiry date 10 years 10 years 10 years

The fair value of the options 
was calculated using the Black 
Scholes Option Model and was 
based on the following inputs:
Weighted average share 
price at
–  issue date R8,34 – –
–  reporting date – R13,15 R19,40
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30%
Exercise price R5,38 R8,59 R12,52
Expected dividends Nil Nil Nil
Risk-fee interest rate 5% 5% 5%
Remaining vesting period 1 year 2 years 3 years

 Expected volatility was based to a large extent on historical volatility.

 NON-DIRECTOR SHARE OPTION SCHEME

First grant Second grant Third grant

Grant date 11 April 2011
Number of options granted 1 050 000
Vesting period 4 years
Vesting conditions Continued employment 

required during vesting period
Expiry date 10 years

The fair value of the options 
was calculated using the Black 
Scholes Option Model and was 
based on the following inputs:
Weighted average share price 
at issue/reporting date R8,34
Expected volatility 30%
Exercise price R7,00
Expected dividends Nil
Risk-fee interest rate 5%
Remaining vesting period 1 year

 Expected volatility was based to a large extent on historical volatility.
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40.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
 CONCO EMPLOYEE OPTION SCHEME

First grant Second grant Third grant

Grant date 11 April 2011
Number of options granted 1 010 000
Vesting period 4 years
Vesting conditions 15% real growth in Conco 

EBITDA to be achieved for 
100% of options to vest

Expiry date 10 years

The fair value of the options 
was calculated using the Black 
Scholes Option Model and was 
based on the following inputs:
Weighted average share price 
at issue/reporting date R8,34
Expected volatility 30%
Exercise price R8,00
Expected dividends Nil
Risk-fee interest rate 5%
Remaining vesting period 1 year

 Expected volatility was based to a large extent on historical volatility.

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE OPTIONS
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5 523 622 4 623 157 3 463 622 2 563 157
Granted during the year 637 380 900 465 637 800 900 465
Exercised during the year (127 500) – – –
Outstanding at the end of the year 6 033 502 5 523 622 4 101 422 3 463 622

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Equity-settled share option recognised in investment in subsidiary – – – 5 067
Equity-settled share option payment expense recognised  
in employee costs 5 480 6 124 3 757 2 451
Value of the equity-settled share options exercised during  
the year (689) – – –
Value of the equity-settled share options included in the share-
based payment reserve at year-end 16 336 11 545 13 803 11 545
Intrinsic value of the options 52 196 11 840 32 106 6 011

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 August 2013
continued
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MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders that are, directly and indirectly, beneficially interested in 5% or more of the company’s issued ordinary shares, as far as is 
known to the company are as follows:

2013 2012
Number

of shares
Percentage 

of shares
Number

of shares
Percentage 

of shares

Pan African Investment Partners II  27 726 429 20,69  27 726 429 23,33
Nala Empowerment Investment Company Proprietary Limited  13 000 000 9,70  13 051 643 10,98
PGR2 Investment Proprietary Limited  9 066 802 6,77  11 797 708 9,93
Yonbor Nominees (Global Capital)  7 179 483 5,36  7 179 483 6,04
Consolidated Power Holdings  7 021 451 5,24  11 321 451 9,53
Peregrine Equities Proprietary Limited – –  7 722 496 6,50

 63 994 165 47,76  78 799 210 66,31

PUBLIC AND NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

Number of
shareholders

Percentage of
shareholders

Number 
of shares

Percentage 
of shares

NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS
Directors and associates
2013
PAIP 11 1 0,07  27 726 429 20,69
Consolidated Power Holdings 1 0,07  7 021 451 5,24
Yonbor Nominees (Global Capital) 1 0,07  7 179 483 5,36
Sweetman Siluleko 1 0,07  2 765 482 2,06
Chantilly Trading 1 0,07  1 577 329 1,18
RBG Trust 1 0,07  1 366 359 1,02
Hooman Family Trust 1 0,07  623 107 0,47
Hambridge Family Trust 1 0,07  623 107 0,47
Raoul Gamsu 1 0,07  383 000 0,29
Ivor Klitzner Family Trust 1 0,07  300 000 0,22
Ivor Klitzner 1 0,07  153 000 0,11
Anthony Dixon 1 0,07  49 500 0,04
Frank Boner 1 0,07  18 600 0,01

 13 0,87  49 786 847 37,15
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS   
General public  1 479 99,13  84 212 601 62,85
Total  1 492 100,00  133 999 448 100,00

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS
as at 31 August 2013



CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013104

PUBLIC AND NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS continued

Number of
shareholders

Percentage of
shareholders

Number 
of shares

Percentage 
of shares

NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS
Directors and associates
2012
PAIP 11 1 0,07  27 726 429 23,33
Consolidated Power Holdings 1 0,07  13 051 643 10,98
Yonbor Nominees (Global Capital) 1 0,07  7 179 483 6,04
Sweetman Siluleko 1 0,07  3 665 482 3,08
Chantilly Trading 1 0,07  1 977 329 1,66
RBG Trust 1 0,07  1 366 359 1,15
Hooman Family Trust 1 0,07  623 107 0,52
Hambridge Family Trust 1 0,07  623 107 0,52
Raoul Gamsu 1 0,07  383 000 0,32
Ivor Klitzner Family Trust 1 0,07  300 000 0,25
Ivor Klitzner 1 0,07  153 000 0,13
Anthony Dixon 1 0,07  49 500 0,04
Frank Boner 1 0,07  18 600 0,02

 13 3,17  57 117 039 48,06
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS   
General public  397 96,83  56 523 890 49,74
Total  410 100,00  113 640 929 100,00

No change in directors’ interest occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of approval of the annual financial statements.

The direct and indirect, beneficial interests of the directors in the company’s securities as at the financial year-end, as far as could be 
determined is as follows:

2013 2012
Beneficial

 direct 
and indirect 

(including 
their

 associates)

Total 
beneficial

percentage

Beneficial
 direct 

and indirect 
(including 

their
 associates)

Total 
beneficial

percentage

B Berelowitz  4 840 675 3,61  6 840 675 5,76
R Gamsu  1 749 359 1,31  1 749 359 1,47
IM Klitzner  453 000 0,34  453 000 0,38
F Boner  557 061 0,42  557 061 0,47
AD Dixon  49 500 0,04  49 500 0,04

 7 649 595 5,71  9 649 595 8,12

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS
as at 31 August 2013
continued
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SHAREHOLDER SPREAD

Number 
of shares

Percentage 
of shares

Number of 
shareholders

Percentage of
 shareholders

STRATE
2013
 0 – 1 000  247 175 0,18 592 39,68
 1 001 – 10 000  2 146 615 1,60 631 42,29
 10 001 – 100 000  5 646 741 4,21 182 12,20
 100 000 – 500 000  9 555 026 7,13 40 2,68
 500 001 – 1 000 000  4 572 128 3,41 7 0,47
1 000 001 and more  111 818 025 81,21 27 1,81

 133 985 710 97,75  1 479 99,13

CERTIFICATED  
0  –   10 000 13 738 0,01 13 0,87
Total  133 999 448 100,00  1 492 100,00

STRATE
2012
 0 – 1 000  169 044 0,14 658 44,22
 1 001 – 10 000  1 559 809 1,31 413 27,76
 10 001 – 100 000  4 649 805 3,91 155 10,42
 100 000 – 500 000  9 703 262 8,16 41 2,76
 500 001 – 1 000 000  4 168 724 3,51 6 0,40
1 000 001 and more  98 573 207 82,95 18 1,21

 118 823 851 99,99  1 291 86,76

CERTIFICATED  
0  –   10 000 16 978 0,01 197 13,24
Total  118 840 929 100,00 1 488 100,00

Financial year-end  31 August 

Preliminary annual results announcement  31 October 2014 

Annual report posted February 2014

Annual general meeting  2 April 2014

Interim results announcement  April 2014 

SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2007/004935/06)
JSE share code: CIL ISIN: ZAE000153888
 (“CIG” or “the company”)

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Raoul Gamsu (chief executive officer) Frank Boner (chairman)
Ivor Klitzner (financial director) Alex Darko
Bernard Berelowitz Anthony Dixon
 Judi Nwokedi
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Robert Horton
Kofi Bucknor

 

Notice is hereby given that an annual general meeting of shareholders will be held at Commerce Square, Building 2, 39 Rivonia Road, 
Sandhurst at 11:00 on Wednesday, 2 April 2014 (the “annual general meeting” or “AGM”), for the purposes of:

A.  presenting, considering and adopting the directors’ report, the annual financial statements and the audit and risk committee report of 
the company for the year ended 31 August 2013 contained in the integrated annual report of the company for the same period (the 
“integrated annual report”). A copy of the integrated annual report will be posted to shareholders who have indicated that they would 
like to receive financial information in respect of the company together with this notice of annual general meeting. An electronic copy 
of the integrated annual report is available on the company’s website, www.ciglimited.co.za; 

B.  transacting any other business as may be transacted at an annual general meeting of shareholders of a company including the  
re-appointment of the auditors and re-election of retiring directors;

C.  considering and, if deemed fit, adopting with or without modification, the shareholder special and ordinary resolutions set out below, 
including without limitation those resolutions required to approve the adoption of the Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 
Share Plan (the details of which are set out in Annexure 1 to this notice of annual general meeting).

IMPORTANT DATES TO NOTE
 2014

Record date for receipt of notice purposes Friday, 21 February 
Last day to trade in order to be eligible to participate in and vote at the annual general meeting Thursday, 20 March
Record date for voting purposes (“voting record date”) Friday, 28 March
Last day to lodge forms of proxy by 11:00 on Monday, 31 March 
Annual general meeting held at 11:00 on Wednesday, 2 April
Results of AGM released on SENS Wednesday, 2 April

In terms of section 62(3)(e) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (the “Companies Act” or “Act”):
•  A shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or two or more proxies 

to attend and participate in and vote at the annual general meeting in the place of the shareholder, by completing the form of proxy in 
accordance with the instructions set out therein; and

•  A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company.

Kindly note that meeting participants (including proxies) are required to provide reasonably satisfactory identification before being entitled 
to attend or participate in a meeting. In this regard, all shareholders recorded in the registers of the company on the voting record date will 
be required to provide identification satisfactory to the chairman of the annual general meeting. Forms of identification include valid identity 
documents, driver’s licences and passports.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1: ADOPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“Resolved that the annual financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 August 2013, including the directors’ report and the 
report of the audit and risk committee, be and are received and adopted.”

In order for ordinary resolution number 1 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2: RE-ELECTION OF R HORTON AS DIRECTOR
 “Resolved that Robert Horton who retires in terms of the company’s existing Memorandum of Incorporation and who, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-election, be re-elected as a director of the company.”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out on page 25 of the integrated annual report.

In order for ordinary resolution number 2 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3: RE-ELECTION OF J NWOKEDI AS DIRECTOR
“Resolved that Judi Nwokedi who retires in terms of the company’s existing Memorandum of Incorporation and who, being eligible, offers 
herself for re-election, be re-elected as a director of the company.”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out on page 25 of the integrated annual report.

In order for ordinary resolution number 3 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4: RE-ELECTION OF K BUCKNOR AS DIRECTOR
“Resolved that Kofi Bucknor who retires in terms of the company’s existing Memorandum of Incorporation and who, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-election, be re-elected as a director of the company.”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out on page 25 of the integrated annual report.

In order for ordinary resolution number 4 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
“Resolved that the members of the company’s audit and risk committee set out below, being eligible, be and are hereby re-appointed, each 
by way of a separate vote, with effect from the end of this annual general meeting in terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act until the 
next annual general meeting of the company. The membership as proposed by the board of directors is:

5.1 A Dixon (chairperson);

5.2 AD Darko; and

5.3  F Boner, whose dual role as chairman of the board of directors and member of the audit and risk committee is hereby specifically 
approved,

all of whom are independent non-executive directors.”

A brief curriculum vitae of each of the above audit and risk committee members is set out on pages 24 and 25 of the integrated annual report.

In order for ordinary resolution number 5 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6: APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
“Resolved that Grant Thornton, which merged with PKF (Jhb) Inc. (appointed as the company’s auditors at the previous annual general 
meeting), together with Soné Kock be and are hereby appointed as the auditors of the company from the conclusion of this annual general 
meeting until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting.”

The audit and risk committee has nominated for appointment as auditors of the company under section 90 of the Companies Act,  
Grant Thornton. 

In order for ordinary resolution number 6 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 7: CONTROL OVER UNISSUED SHARES
“Resolved that the authorised but unissued shares of the company be and are hereby placed under the control of the directors of the 
company until the next annual general meeting, with the authority to allot and issue all or part thereof in their discretion, subject to the 
Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (the “Listings Requirements”).”

In order for ordinary resolution number 7 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 8: GENERAL AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES FOR CASH
“Resolved that, subject to the restrictions set out below and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements, 
the directors of the company be and are hereby authorised until this authority lapses at the next annual general meeting of the company, 
provided that this authority shall not extend beyond 15 months, to allot and issue shares of the company for cash on the following bases:
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
continued

a)  The shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue or, where this is not the case, must be limited 
to such shares or rights as are convertible into a class already in issue;

b)  The allotment and issue of shares for cash shall be made only to persons qualifying as “public shareholders”, as defined in the Listings 
Requirements, and not to “related parties”;

c)  Shares which are the subject of general issues for cash shall not exceed 19 million shares, being approximately 14,5% of the company’s 
listed shares as at the date of this notice of annual general meeting, provided that:

 (i)  any shares issued under this authority, prior to this authority lapsing, shall be deducted from the 19 million shares the company 
is authorised to issue in terms of this authority;

 (ii)  in the event of a sub-division or consolidation of shares prior to this authority lapsing, the existing authority shall be adjusted 
accordingly to represent the same allocation ratio;

d)  The maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of such shares measured over the 
30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the company and the party subscribing for the shares;

e)  After the company has issued shares in terms of this general authority to issue shares for cash representing on a cumulative basis 
within a financial year, 5% or more of the number of shares in issue prior to that issue, the company shall publish an announcement 
containing full details of that issue, including:

 (i) the number of shares issued;
 (ii)  the average discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the issue 

is agreed in writing between the company and the party/ies subscribing for the shares; and
 (iii)  the effects of the issue on the net asset value per share, net tangible asset value per share, earnings per share, headline earnings 

per share, and if applicable, diluted earnings and diluted headline earnings per share.”

In terms of the Listings Requirements, in order for ordinary resolution number 8 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total 
number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 9: ADOPTION OF THE 2014 SHARE PLAN
“Resolved that, the Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 Share Plan, a copy of which has been tabled at this meeting and 
initialled by the chairman for identification purposes, be and is hereby approved.”

In terms of the Listings Requirements, in order for ordinary resolution number 9 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total 
number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution. 

Further information regarding the Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 Share Plan is set out in Annexure 1 to this notice of 
annual general meeting. 

The Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 Share Plan will be available for inspection at CIG’s offices (Commerce Square,  
Building 2, 39 Rivonia Road, Sandhurst) from the date of issue of this notice of annual general meeting to the date on which the annual 
general meeting is held. 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 10: AMENDMENT TO THE 2007 SHARE SCHEME
WHEREAS
Prior to the listing of the company on the JSE Limited (“JSE”) on 28 November 2007 (the “listing”), a Share Option and Share Purchase 
Scheme was adopted on 9 November 2007 by the shareholders of the company at that time (the “2007 Share Scheme”). 

In accordance with clause 1.2.23.2 of the rules governing the 2007 Share Scheme, the purchase price in respect of an offer made or an 
option granted subsequent to the listing date is defined as:
  “...the weighted average sales price of a share (as shown by the official price list published by the JSE) over the 30 (thirty) business days immediately 

preceding the offer date or the option date, as the case may be, less 10% (ten per cent).” 

Following the listing, the company has consistently experienced low volumes of trading in its shares on the JSE resulting in a lack of any 
liquidity in the trading of CIG shares. As a result, the 30 trading day weighted average sales price of a CIG share on the JSE has never 
reflected an appropriate gauge for the market value attributable to a CIG share. Accordingly, the board of directors of CIG had determined 
that the purchase price in respect of an offer made or an option granted subsequent to the listing date should rather be defined as:
  “...the weighted average sales price of a share (as shown by the official price list published by the JSE) over the three calendar months immediately 

preceding the commencement of the company’s financial year during which the offer is made or the option granted.”

The primary reason for this proposed amendment is that in the opinion of the board of directors of CIG as a consequence of the low 
levels of trading on the JSE of a CIG share, a three calendar month weighted average sales price of a CIG share on the JSE reflects a more 
appropriate gauge for the market value attributable to a CIG share, 

Accordingly, the board of directors of the company proposes the following amendment to the rules governing the 2007 Share Scheme, with 
retrospective effect to and from the date of listing of the company, being 28 November 2007.

NOW THEREFORE
“Resolved that the rules governing the share option and purchase plan adopted by the company, dated 13 November 2007, be and are 
hereby amended with retrospective effect to and from date of listing of the company on the JSE Limited, being 28 November 2007, by the 
deletion of clause 1.2.23.2 in its entirety and the substitution of the following new clause 1.2.23.2 therefor:
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  “1.2.23.2  if an offer is made or an option granted subsequent to the listing date, the weighted average sales price of a share (as shown by the 
official price list published by the JSE) over the three calendar months immediately preceding the commencement of the company’s 
financial year during which the offer is made or the option granted.”

In terms of the Listings Requirements, in order for ordinary resolution number 10 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total 
number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution. 

The 2007 Share Scheme (together with the proposed amendment thereto) will be available for inspection at CIG’s offices (Commerce 
Square, Building 2, 39 Rivonia Road, Sandhurst) from the date of issue of this notice of annual general meeting to the date on which the 
annual general meeting is held. 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 11: APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION POLICY
“Resolved that, in accordance with the principles of the King III Report on Governance, and through a non-binding advisory vote, the 
company’s remuneration policy and the implementation thereof as further detailed on page 55 of the integrated annual report, be and is 
hereby approved.”

In order for ordinary resolution number 11 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1: SHARE REPURCHASES 
“Resolved that the company or any of its subsidiaries be and are hereby authorised by way of a general authority to acquire ordinary 
shares issued by the company, in terms of sections 46 and 48 of the Companies Act, and subject to the following provisions of the Listings 
Requirements: 
a)  Any acquisition of shares shall be implemented through the order book of the JSE and without prior arrangement;
b)  This general authority shall be valid until the company’s next annual general meeting, provided that it shall not extend beyond  

15 months from the date of passing this special resolution;
c)  The company (or any subsidiary) is duly authorised by its Memorandum of Incorporation to do so; 
d)  Acquisitions of shares in the aggregate in any one financial year may not exceed 20% (or 10% where the acquisitions are effected by a 

subsidiary) of the company’s issued ordinary share capital as at the date of passing this special resolution; 
e)  In determining the price at which shares issued by the company are acquired by it or any of its subsidiaries in terms of this general 

authority, the maximum premium at which such shares may be acquired will be 10% of the weighted average of the market value on 
the JSE over the five business days immediately preceding the repurchase of such shares; 

f)  At any point in time the company (or any subsidiary) may appoint only one agent to effect repurchases on its behalf;
g)  Repurchases may not take place during a prohibited period (as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the Listings Requirements) unless a 

repurchase programme is in place (where the dates and quantities of shares to be repurchased during the prohibited period are fixed) 
and full details thereof have been announced on SENS prior to commencement of the prohibited period; 

h)  An announcement will be published as soon as the company or any of its subsidiaries have acquired shares constituting, on a 
cumulative basis, 3% of the number of shares in issue prior to the granting of the repurchase authority and pursuant to which the 
aforesaid threshold is reached, and for each 3% in aggregate acquired thereafter, containing full details of such repurchases; 

i)  The board of directors of the company must resolve that the repurchase is authorised, the company and its subsidiaries have passed 
the solvency and liquidity test, as set out in section 4 of the Companies Act, and since that test was performed, there have been no 
material changes to the financial position of the Group; and

j)  The company’s sponsor shall confirm the adequacy of the company’s working capital for the purpose of undertaking the repurchase of 
shares in writing to the JSE prior to the company entering into the market to proceed with the repurchase.”

In accordance with the Listings Requirements the directors record that although there is no immediate intention to effect a repurchase of 
the shares of the company, the directors will utilise this general authority to repurchase shares as and when suitable opportunities present 
themselves, which may require expeditious and immediate action. 

The directors undertake that, after considering the maximum number of shares that may be repurchased and the price at which the repurchases 
may take place pursuant to the general authority, for a period of 12 months after the date of notice of this annual general meeting:
• the company and the Group will, in the ordinary course of business, be able to pay its debts; 
•  the consolidated assets of the company and the Group fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 

will exceed the consolidated liabilities of the company and the Group fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards; and 

•  the company’s and the Group’s share capital, reserves and working capital will be adequate for ordinary business purposes. 

The following additional information, some of which may appear elsewhere in the integrated annual report, is provided in terms of paragraph 
11.26 of the Listings Requirements for purposes of this general authority:
• Directors and management – pages 24 and 25; 
• Major beneficial shareholders – page 103;
• Directors’ interests in shares – page 104; and
• Capital structure of the company – page 85.
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LITIGATION STATEMENT
In terms of section 11.26 of the Listings Requirements, save as disclosed in the integrated annual report, the directors, whose names 
appear on pages 24 and 25 of the integrated annual report, are not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings including proceedings 
that are pending or threatened, that may have or have had in the recent past (being at least the previous 12 months) a material effect on 
the company’s financial position.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The directors whose names appear on pages 24 and 25 of the integrated annual report, collectively and individually accept full responsibility 
for the accuracy of the information pertaining to this special resolution and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are 
no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such 
facts have been made and that the special resolution contains all information required by the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements.

MATERIAL CHANGES
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the integrated annual report, there have been no material changes in the affairs  
or financial position of the company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the audit report for the financial year ended  
31 August 2013 and up to the date of this notice.

In order for special resolution number 1 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, 
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution. 

REASON FOR AND EFFECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
The reason for special resolution number 1 is to afford the directors of the company (or a subsidiary of the company) general authority to 
effect a repurchase of the company’s shares on the JSE. The effect of the resolution will be that the directors will have the authority, subject 
to the Listings Requirements and the Companies Act to effect repurchases of the company’s shares on the JSE.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RELATED AND INTER-RELATED PARTIES 
“Resolved that to the extent required by the Companies Act, the board of directors of the company may, subject to compliance with the 
requirements of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements, authorise the company 
to provide direct or indirect financial assistance, as contemplated in section 45 of the Companies Act by way of loans, guarantees, the 
provision of security or otherwise, to any of its present or future subsidiaries and/or any other company or corporation that is or becomes 
related or inter-related (as defined in the Companies Act) to the company for any purpose or in connection with any matter, such authority 
to endure for a period of not more than 2 years, and further provided that inasmuch as the company’s provision of financial assistance to 
its subsidiaries will at any and all times be in excess of one-tenth of 1% of the company’s net worth, the company hereby provides notice 
to its shareholders of that fact.” 

In order for special resolution number 2 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, 
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

REASONS FOR AND EFFECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
The company would like the ability to provide financial assistance, in appropriate circumstances and if the need arises, in accordance with 
section 45 of the Companies Act. This authority is necessary for the company to provide financial assistance in appropriate circumstances. 
Under the Companies Act, the company will, however, require the special resolution referred to above to be adopted, provided that the 
board of directors of the company are satisfied that the terms under which the financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and 
reasonable to the company and, immediately after providing the financial assistance, the company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity 
test contemplated in the Companies Act. In the circumstances and in order to, inter alia, ensure that the company’s subsidiaries and other 
related and inter-related companies and corporations have access to financing and/or financial backing from the company (as opposed to 
banks), it is necessary to obtain the approval of shareholders, as set out in special resolution number 2. Therefore, the reason for, and effect 
of, special resolution number 2 is to permit the company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance (within the meaning attributed to 
that term in section 45 of the Companies Act) to the entities referred to in special resolution number 2 above.

NOTICE IN TERMS OF SECTION 45(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Notice is hereby given to shareholders of the company in terms of section 45(5) of the Companies Act of a resolution adopted by the board 
authorising the company to provide such direct or indirect financial assistance as specified in the special resolution above:
a)  By the time that this notice of annual general meeting is delivered to shareholders of the company, the board will have adopted a 

resolution (“section 45 board resolution”) authorising the company to provide, at any time and from time to time during the period of 
2 years commencing on the date on which the special resolution is adopted, any direct or indirect financial assistance as contemplated 
in section 45 of the Companies Act to any 1 or more related or inter-related companies or corporations of the company and/or to any 
1 or more members of any such related or inter-related company or corporation and/or to any 1or more persons related to any such 
company or corporation;

b)  The section 45 board resolution will be effective only if and to the extent that the special resolution under the heading “special resolution 
number 2” is adopted by the shareholders of the company, and the provision of any such direct or indirect financial assistance by 
the company, pursuant to such resolution, will always be subject to the board being satisfied that (i) immediately after providing such 
financial assistance, the company will satisfy the solvency and liquidity test as referred to in section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, and 
that (ii) the terms under which such financial assistance is to be given are fair and reasonable to the company as referred to in section 
45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act; and
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c)  In as much as the section 45 board resolution contemplates that such financial assistance will in the aggregate exceed one–tenth of 
one percent of the company’s net worth at the date of adoption of such resolution, the company hereby provides notice of the section 
45 board resolution to shareholders of the company.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 3: APPROVAL OF FEES PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the following special resolutions by way of separate resolutions:

3.1  “Resolved, as a special resolution, that the fees payable by the company to non-executive directors for their services as directors (in 
terms of section 66 of the Companies Act) be and are hereby approved, for a period of two years from the passing of this resolution or 
until its renewal, whichever is the earlier, as follows:

Basis of fee Chairman Director

Board meetings fee per meeting  R37 450 R26 750
Audit and risk committee fee per meeting R37 450 R21 400
Social and ethics committee fee per meeting R21 400 R10 700
Remuneration and nominations committee fee per meeting R21 400 R10 700
General involvement monthly R5 350 R5 350

3.2  “Resolved, as a special resolution, that an annual increase not exceeding 10% of the fees payable by the company to the non-executive 
directors for their services as non-executive directors be and is hereby approved for a period of two years from the passing of this 
resolution or until its renewal, whichever is the earliest.”

In order for special resolutions numbers 3.1 and 3.2 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass those resolutions.

REASON FOR AND EFFECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 3.1
The reason for special resolution number 3.1 is to obtain shareholder approval by way of special resolution in accordance with section 66(9) 
of the Companies Act for the payment by the company of remuneration to each of the non-executive directors of the company for each 
non-executive director’s services as a non-executive director in the amounts set out under special resolution number 3.1. 

REASON FOR AND EFFECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 3.2
As the fees payable to non-executive directors are, from time to time, benchmarked to other companies with a similar market capitalisation 
taking into account the estimated time and the other requirements of directors, an annual increase note exceeding 10% is proposed for 
approval in the subsequent year. 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 4: ALLOTMENT AND ISSUE OF SHARES TO DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED 
OFFICERS
“Resolved that, to the extent required by section 41 of the Companies Act, the board of directors of the company may, subject to compliance 
with the requirements of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and the Companies Act, each as presently constituted and as 
amended from time to time, authorise the company to allot and issue shares in the company to directors, future directors, prescribed 
officers and future prescribed officers of the company pursuant to the Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 Share Plan which 
forms the subject matter of ordinary resolution number 9 as well as the share option and share purchase scheme adopted by the company, 
dated 13 November 2007.” 

In order for special resolution number 4 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, 
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

REASON FOR SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
The company would like to be able to allot and issue shares to directors and prescribed officers pursuant to the Consolidated Infrastructure 
Group Limited 2014 Share Plan as well as the share option and share purchase scheme adopted by the company, dated 13 November 2007.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 5: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE 2014 SHARE PLAN
“Resolved that, to the extent required by sections 44 and 45 of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (the “Companies Act”) and to the extent 
applicable, the board of directors of the company may, subject to compliance with the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the 
Companies Act and the Listings Requirements, each as presently constituted and as amended from time to time, authorise the company 
to provide:
a)  financial assistance, as contemplated in section 44 of the Companies Act to any person for the purpose of or in connection with the 

subscription of any options or any securities issued by the company or related or inter-related company; and
b)  financial assistance, as defined in section 45 of the Companies Act, to directors, future directors, prescribed officers and future 

prescribed officers of the company and any company within its group of companies,

identified by the remuneration committee of the board of directors of the company, as constituted from time to time, as participants, as 
defined in the 2014 Share Plan, which forms the subject matter of ordinary resolution number 9 (the “2014 Share Plan”) for the issue of 
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shares to any such person, director, future director, prescribed officer and future prescribed officer in accordance with the rules of the 
2014 Share Plan.

At the time of providing the financial assistance, as contemplated and defined in the Companies Act, to participants, as defined under 
the 2014 Share Plan, the board of directors of the company shall satisfy itself that immediately after providing the financial assistance, 
as contemplated and defined in the Companies Act, the company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test, as contemplated in the 
Companies Act, and that the terms under which the financial assistance, as contemplated and defined in the Companies Act, is given are 
fair and reasonable to the company.

Such authority to endure for two years after the adoption of this special number resolution 5.”

In order for special resolution number 5 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, 
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

REASON FOR SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
The company, to the extent applicable, would like the ability to provide financial assistance to employees and/or directors as participants 
under the 2014 Share Plan.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 12: SIGNATURE OF DOCUMENTATION 
 “Resolved that any director of the company or the company secretary be and is hereby authorised to sign all such documentation and do 
all such things as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of ordinary resolution numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 
and special resolution numbers 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 which are passed by the shareholders in accordance with and subject to the terms thereof.”

In order for ordinary resolution number 12 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by 
shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

QUORUM
A quorum for the purposes of considering the resolutions above shall consist of three shareholders of the company personally present 
(and if the shareholder is a body corporate, the representative of the body corporate) and entitled to vote at the annual general meeting. 
In addition, a quorum shall comprise 25% of all voting rights entitled to be exercised by shareholders in respect of the resolutions above. 

The date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services Proprietary Limited (Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg), for the purposes of being entitled to attend, participate in 
and vote at the annual general meeting is Friday, 28 March 2014.

VOTING AND PROXIES
A shareholder of the company entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who 
need not be a shareholder of the company) to attend, vote and speak in his/her stead. 

On a show of hands, every shareholder of the company present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll, every 
shareholder of the company present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote for every share held in the company by such 
shareholder. 

A form of proxy is attached for the convenience of any shareholder holding certificated shares who cannot attend the annual general 
meeting but who wishes to be represented thereat. Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the company’s registered office. 
The completed form of proxy must be deposited at; or posted to the office of the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services 
Proprietary Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107) to be received by not later 
than 11:00 on Monday, 31 March 2014. Any shareholder who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend 
and vote in person at the annual general meeting should the shareholder subsequently decide to do so.

Attached to the proxy form is an extract of section 58 of the Companies Act, to which shareholders are referred.

Shareholders who have already dematerialised their shares through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker and who 
wish to attend the annual general meeting must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary letter of representation to 
attend.

Dematerialised shareholders, who have elected “own–name” registration in the sub-register through a CSDP and who are unable to attend 
but who wish to vote at the annual general meeting must complete and return the attached form of proxy and lodge it with the transfer 
secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107 to be received by no later than  
11:00 on Monday, 31 March 2014.

All beneficial owners whose shares have been dematerialised through a CSDP or broker other than with “own-name” registration, must 
provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of their custody agreement should they wish to vote at the annual general 
meeting. Alternatively, they may request the CSDP or broker to provide them with a letter of representation, in terms of their custody 
agreements, should they wish to attend the annual general meeting. Such shareholder must not complete the attached form of proxy.

In terms of section 63(1) meeting participants will be required to provide identification to the reasonable satisfaction of the chairman of the 
annual general meeting and the chairman must be reasonably satisfied that the right of any person to participate in and vote (whether as 
a shareholder or as a proxy for a shareholder) has been reasonably satisfied. 
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ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
Shareholders or their proxies may participate in the meeting by way of telephone conference call. Shareholders or their proxies who 
wish to participate in the annual general meeting via the teleconference facility will be required to advise the company thereof by no 
later than 11:00 on Monday, 31 March 2014 by submitting, by email to Ronelle Adant at ronelle@ciglimited.co.za, or by fax to be faxed to  
0867489169, for the attention of Ronelle Adant relevant contact details including email address, cellular number and landline, as well as 
full details of the shareholder’s title to the shares issued by the company and proof of identity, in the form of copies of identity documents 
and share certificates (in the case of certificated shareholders), and (in the case of dematerialised shareholders) written confirmation from 
the shareholder’s CSDP confirming the shareholder’s title to the dematerialised shares. Upon receipt of the required information, the 
shareholder concerned will be provided with a secure code and instructions to access the electronic communication during the annual 
general meeting. 

Shareholders who wish to participate in the annual general meeting by way of telephone conference call must note that they will not be able 
to vote during the annual general meeting. Such shareholders, should they wish to have their vote counted at the annual general meeting, 
must, to the extent applicable, (i) complete the form of proxy; or (ii) contact their CSDP or broker, in both instances, as set out above.

By order of the board

Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited
Company secretary

Registered office of the company
Commerce Square, Building 2
39 Rivonia Road,
Sandhurst
(PO Box 651455, Benmore 2010)

27 February 2014
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ANNEXURE 1
INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF THE 2014 SHARE PLAN

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS
In this Annexure 1 attached to the notice of annual general meeting, unless inconsistent with the context, an expression which denotes a 
gender includes the other genders, a natural person includes a juristic person and vice versa, the singular includes the plural and vice versa 
and the expressions set out in the first column bear the meaning assigned to them in the second column.

“2014 Share Plan” The Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited 2014 Share Plan, the terms of which are embodied in 
the Rules and which entails participation therein through any or all of the Share Appreciation Method , 
the Performance Share Method and the Restricted Share Method as determined by the Board;

“Allocation” a conditional and notional award to an Eligible Employee, which may on Vesting result in the Settlement 
of Share Appreciation Rights to the Participant; 

“Allocation Date” the date on which an Allocation is made to an Eligible Employee, which date may not be made 
retrospective;

“Annexure 1” this Annexure 1 attached to the notice of annual general meeting;

“Applicable Laws” in relation to any person or entity, all and any statutes, subordinate legislation and common law, 
regulations, ordinances and by laws, accounting standards, the JSE Listings Requirements, the Takeover 
Regulations, directives, codes of practice, circulars, guidance notices, judgments and decisions of any 
competent authority, compliance with which is mandatory for that person or entity;

“Award” a conditional and notional award to an Eligible Employee which may on Vesting result in the Settlement 
of Performance Shares to the Participant;

“Award Date” the date on which an Award is made to an Eligible Employee, which date may not be made retrospective;

“Board” the board of directors of CIG;

“Change of Control” all circumstances where a party (or parties acting in concert), directly or indirectly obtains:
•  beneficial ownership of the specified percentage or more of the company’s issued Share capital; 

or
•  control of the specified percentage or more of the voting rights at meetings of the company; or
•  the right to control the management of the company or the composition of the Board; or
•  the right to appoint or remove directors holding a majority of voting rights at Board meetings; or
•  the right to control the business or undertaking of the company through a merger or consolidation 

with any other business or entity, or upon a sale of the whole or a major part of the company’s 
assets or undertakings;

“CIG” or the “company” Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited (registration number 2007/004935/06), a public company 
incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa and listed on the JSE;

“Eligible Employee” a person eligible for participation in the 2014 Share Plan, namely an executive, senior manager and/
or key employee of any member company of the Group, including any present or future executive 
director holding salaried employment or office, which executive, manager and/or employee shall be 
selected by the Board from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion, but excluding any non-
executive director;

“Employer Company” that member company of the Group that is the employer of a particular Participant;

“Exercise” the exercising by a Participant of any of his Vested Share Appreciation Rights;

“Fair Market Value” in relation to a Share on any particular day, shall be the volume weighted average price of a Share on 
the JSE over the 10 (ten) Trading Days immediately prior to the day in question, with the proviso that 
in the case of an Allocation, the Board may in its sole discretion specify in the Allocation letter for that 
Allocation a longer period, not exceeding 90 (ninety) Trading Days;

“Grant” a conditional and notional grant to an Eligible Employee which may on Vesting result in the Settlement 
of Restricted Shares to the Participant;

“Grant Date” the date on which a Grant is made to an Eligible Employee, which date may not be made retrospective;

“Group” CIG and its subsidiaries, from time to time;

“JSE” JSE Limited (registration number 2005/022939/06), a public company incorporated in accordance with 
the laws of South Africa and licensed as an exchange under the Financial Markets Act, 2012 (Act 19 of 
2012), as amended;

“notice of annual general 
meeting” 

the notice convening the annual general meeting of shareholders, to which this Annexure 1 is 
attached;

“Participant” an Eligible Employee to whom an Allocation, Award or Grant has been made, and who has accepted 
such Allocation, Award or Grant, and includes the executor of the Participant’s deceased estate where 
appropriate;
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“Performance Criteria” the performance criteria for the Share Appreciation Method, the Performance Share Method, and the 
Restricted Share Method as may be determined by the Board from time to time, and as communicated 
to Participants in the Allocation, Award or Grant letter;

“Performance Share Method” the method of participation in the 2014 Share Plan detailed in paragraph 3.3 of this Annexure 1;

“Performance Shares” Shares which may become Settled to a Participant in terms of the Performance Share Method;

“Restricted Shares” Shares which may become Settled to a Participant in terms of the Restricted Share Method; 

“Restricted Share Method” the method of participation in the 2014 Share Plan detailed in paragraph 3.4 of this Annexure 1;

“Retirement Date” the date on which, or age at which a Participant:
• can be required to retire by any Employer Company; or
• has agreed to take early retirement;

“Rules” or “2014 Share Plan 
Rules”

the rules of the 2014 Share Plan, as amended from time to time;

“Settled” in relation to a an Exercised Share Appreciation Right, Vested Performance Share or Vested Restricted 
Share, shall mean:
•  if the company so elects at any time prior to the Vesting Date, the acquisition by an Employer 

Company (or duly authorised third party) of Shares on the JSE and the transfer of such Shares into 
the name of a Participant; or

•  the use of the services of a treasury company, script lender or any other external third party to 
trade and thereby Settle Shares on behalf of an Employer Company; or

•  the allotment and issue by the company of Shares into the name of a Participant, it being specifically 
recorded, that the relevant Employer Company will be liable to pay the issue price of such Shares; 
or

•  in the sole discretion of the company or an Employer Company, as an alternative to the delivery 
or issue of Shares to which a Participant may become entitled pursuant to the Vesting of an 
Allocation, Grant or an Award, the payment by the company and/or an Employer Company of a 
cash bonus equal to the Fair Market Value of such Shares, calculated on the Vesting Date,

“Shares” ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the company;

“Share Appreciation Method” the method of participation in the 2014 Share Plan detailed in paragraph 3.1 of this Annexure 1;

“Share Appreciation Right” Shares which may become Settled to a Participant in terms of the Share Appreciation Method;

“Trading Day” any day on which the Shares are traded on the JSE;

“Vest”, “Vesting” and “Vested” when used in relation to:
•  a Share Appreciation Right shall mean that such Share Appreciation Right shall become Exercisable 

in accordance with the Rules;
•  a Performance Share shall mean that such Performance Share shall immediately become capable 

of being Settled;
•  a Restricted Share shall mean that such Restricted Share shall immediately become capable of 

being Settled;

“Vesting Date” in relation to:
•  an Allocation, the date from which Share Appreciation Rights Vest and may be Exercised by 

Participants, which date shall, be the following:
 –    one third of the Allocation no earlier than the third anniversary of the Allocation Date;
 –    a second third of the Allocation no earlier than the fourth anniversary of the Allocation Date; and
 –    the final third of the Allocation no earlier than the fifth anniversary of the Allocation Date;
•  an Award, the date on which Performance Shares may be Settled to a Participant, which date shall 

be no earlier than three years from the Award Date; and
•  a Grant, the date on which Restricted Shares Vest, which date shall be no earlier than three years 

from the Grant Date;

provided that if any of the above dates falls on a date which, or during a period in which, 
•  by virtue of any Applicable Laws or any policy of the Group (including any corporate governance 

policy) it is not permissible to Settle Shares to a Participant; or
•  by virtue of any Applicable Laws or any policy of the Group (including any corporate governance 

policy) it is not permissible for a Participant to receive or otherwise deal or trade in Shares, 

the Vesting Date shall be the second Trading Day after the date on which it becomes permissible to 
Settle Shares to a Participant and/or for the Participant to receive or deal or trade in Shares.
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ANNEXURE 1
INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF THE 2014 SHARE PLAN
continued

1. PURPOSE
  The purpose of the 2014 Share Plan is to attract, retain, motivate and reward executives and managers who are able to influence the 

performance of CIG and its subsidiaries on a basis which aligns their interests with those of the company’s shareholders.

2. INTRODUCTION
  CIG has worked with consultants to design an appropriate long-term (share-based) incentive plan which is in line with global best 

practice, and emerging South African practice, and which serves to reward the required attributes of shareholder alignment, retention 
of key talent and long-term, sustained performance, all in what may become an increasingly more difficult and volatile market.

3. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE 2014 SHARE PLAN
  Under the 2014 Share Plan executives and selected managers of the company and its subsidiaries will be offered annually a weighted 

combination from:
 • Allocations of Share Appreciation Rights (equity settled), 
 • conditional Awards of (full value) Performance Shares, and
 • Grants of (full value) Restricted Shares.

  The adoption of the 2014 Share Plan will allow a more flexible form of appreciation scheme and will allow the advent of full value (free) 
Shares. 

 Full value (free) shares to be offered in two variations, namely:
 • Performance Shares which require a future performance of the company, and 
 •  Restricted Shares that reflect the recent past performance and/or commitment of individuals, by either the matching of the prior 

year calculated cash bonus or, additionally, the elective deferral and matching of a portion of the cash bonus calculation.

 3.1 SHARE APPRECIATION METHOD
   Annual Allocations of Share Appreciation Rights will be made to executives and selected managers. Share Appreciation Rights 

will Vest and thus become Exercisable in equal thirds on the 3rd, 4th and 5th anniversaries of the Allocation Date but need not 
be Exercised until the 7th anniversary of the Allocation Date, at which time they must be Exercised or they will lapse. 

   Upon the Exercise by a Participant of any Vested Share Appreciation Rights, Settlement will take place. Settlement will be via 
Shares which Shares may be allotted and issued, or acquired by or on behalf of the company at Fair Market Value on the Exercise 
Date and transferred to Participants, or by the offering of a cash bonus of equivalent value. On Settlement, the value accruing to 
Participants will be the appreciation of CIG’s Share price. 

   Performance Criteria will be stipulated in which the number of Share Appreciation Rights Vesting in relation to the full number 
allocated is reduced if company financial performance targets are not met. At this juncture CIG is considering continuing with 
the vesting criteria governing its existing scheme, as quoted herein below.

   The actual number of Share Appreciation Rights Vesting will be determined based on a pre- determined cumulative year-on-year 
growth rate in pre-tax earnings per share excluding profit and losses on the sale of assets, depreciation and amortisation and 
any unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses. The number of Share Appreciation Rights that Vest in any performance period 
will decrease linearly if the pre-determined growth rate is not achieved.

 3.2 FULL VALUE SHARES
   When a Participant Exercises a Share Appreciation Right the value that accrues to him is the positive gain (appreciation) of the 

underlying Share above the strike price. Full value Shares differ in that there is no strike price; the full value of the Share accrues 
to a Participant on Vesting. As such full value Shares are not so reliant on Share price growth, and not so sensitive to the volatility 
of Share prices, the timing of offers and the external factors that can drive Share prices more so than company performance.

 3.3 PERFORMANCE SHARE METHOD
   Annual conditional Awards of Performance Shares will be made to executives. Performance Shares will Vest on the 3rd 

anniversary of their Award, to the extent that the company has met specified performance criteria over the intervening period. 
Essentially the value per Share that Vests is the full value of the Share (there is no strike price), but the number of Shares that will 
Vest will depend on whether the company’s performance over the intervening three year period has been, on target, an under 
performance, or an over performance, against the target(s) set at the Award Date. 

   The Board will dictate the Performance Criteria for each Award. At this juncture CIG is envisaging that Vesting will be determined 
in terms of the company’s comparative Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) in relation to a comparator group. TSR is defined as the 
increase in market value of a portfolio of shares on the assumption that dividends are reinvested.

   The design intention is to select a comparator group which represents an alternative portfolio of investments that the 
shareholders of CIG could have made, and which in aggregate are likely to be similarly affected by the same external influences.
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   An illustration of performance Vesting is shown below in Table 1, using the INDI 30 as a comparator group.

   If at the Vesting Date when measurement is required and the comparator group looks different to the original selection (i.e. new 
companies listed, delisted etc.), it will depend on the circumstances, but as long as there is not a major delisting of companies 
(unlikely), then the departing company is just taken out of the comparator group. New companies are not considered for past 
Awards. Mergers of two companies already in the list are usually left in, and given a common TSR score.

   The performance curve above illustrates the following relationships:
  •  If CIG’s TSR over the three year period places it in 15th position (approx. median), then the targeted number (one third of the 

maximum number) of Performance Shares Awarded will Vest.
  •  If CIG’s TSR over the three year period places it in 5th position (approx. upper quartile) or better, then the maximum number 

(three times the targeted number) of Performance Shares Awarded will Vest.
  •  If CIG’s TSR over the three year period places it in 25th position (approx. lower quartile) or worse, then all Performance 

Shares Awarded will be forfeited.
  •  If CIG’s performance over the three year period lies between any of the above points, then a prorated number of Performance 

Shares will Vest.

   Although comparative performance is an effective way of targeting performance and shareholder alignment, and negating the 
influence of external factors, CIG may also elect to adopt absolute financial targets (earnings growth or return on capital targets). 
Noteworthy is that the Performance Criteria that govern the vesting of Performance Shares will not be those that govern the 
Vesting of the Share Appreciation Rights.

   No retesting against the Performance Criteria will be allowed. Any Performance Shares which do not Vest at the end of the three 
year period will be forfeited.

   Performance Shares closely align the interests of shareholders and executives by rewarding superior shareholder and financial 
performance in the future. Performance Shares will be Awarded predominantly to senior executives who can influence and 
impact long-term strategic performance.

 3.4 RESTRICTED SHARE METHOD
   On an annual basis, executives and senior managers will receive a Grant of Restricted Shares. The value of Restricted Shares 

Granted will be linked to the annual cash bonus scheme, in one of, or a combination of:

  • Bonus Matching
   –  Matching, according to a specified ratio, the actual annual cash incentive accruing to the executive. 
   –  Standard matching ratios will be set for each grade, based on:
    –  The on target bonus percentage for the grade, and
    –   The required balance within the offers of full value shares between Performance Shares and Restricted Shares.

   Note the standard matching ratio (although designed in relation to the on target bonus) will be applied to the actual bonus 
achieved, irrespective of how this relates to on target bonus. 

  • Deferred bonus – co-investment plan
   –   A prior year end election to invest in CIG Shares utilising a portion (25%, 33% or 50%) of an individual’s bonus calculation 

and its immediate conversion into Restricted Shares, with 1 for 1 matching with additional Restricted Shares.
   –   As the individual is effectively opting to put an element of a cash bonus that would otherwise accrue to him at risk, this 

sub–element of the Plan may be referred to as a “co-investment plan”. 
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   Restricted Shares will Vest after three years, and will provide shareholder alignment and Share based retention to those 
senior managers who through their performance on an annual basis have demonstrated their value to the company. A claw-
back provision will be in place that will allow for the number originally Granted to be adjusted downwards for unsatisfactory 
performance prior to the Vesting Date.

   Restricted Shares will be predominantly Granted to high performing senior managers to assist in their retention, with the co-
investment opportunity being offered to senior executives.

 3.5 THE COMBINED ELEMENTS OF THE HYBRID SHARE PLAN
   It is firmly believed that the combining of the Share Appreciation Method (a variation of CIG’s 2007 Share Option and Share 

Purchase Scheme) with a full value share plan element (in its two variations, namely Performance Share Method and Restricted 
Share Method) will serve to reward the required attributes of shareholder alignment, retention of key talent and long-term, 
sustained performance, as well as share price growth.

   Offers under the 2014 Share Plan will be governed by CIG’s reward philosophy and strategy (pay mix), in which, inter alia, the 
“target reward” of incentive reward is set for defined categories of executives and senior management. 

    Target Reward is defined as the present value of the future reward outcome of an Allocation/Award/Grant, given the targeted 
future performance of the company and of its share price. It should not be confused with the term “fair value” which is used when 
establishing the accounting cost for reflection in a company’s financial statements. Neither should it be confused with the term 
“face value” which is used to define the current value of the underlying share at the time of Allocation/Award/Grant.

   It is envisaged that the combined, weighted implementation of the above long-term incentive elements will allow CIG to remain 
competitive in annual and share-based incentives, and ensure that executives share a significant level of personal risk with the 
company’s shareholders.

4. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN
  The Remuneration Committee, acting on behalf of the Board, will ultimately be responsible for the administration of the Plan, but may 

delegate these functions to the Human Resources Department and/or the company secretary.

5. SETTLEMENT
  It is envisaged that Settlement will be via Shares (equity settlement) for all methods, although the 2014 Share Plan allows for either 

equity or cash settlement at the Board’s discretion. In equity settlement, the 2014 Share Plan allows for settlement to be via allotment 
and issue of Shares (incurring shareholder dilution) or acquisition and transfer of Shares (requiring the purchase of Shares in the open 
market).

6. ELIGIBILITY 
  Any executive or manager of CIG or its subsidiaries may be selected by the Board to be Participants in the 2014 Share Plan. It is 

envisaged that all executives and senior managers will receive on an annual basis, Allocations in terms of the Share Appreciation 
Method and Awards in terms of the Performance Share Method. Additionally, Grants in terms of the Restricted Share Method will be 
made to the extent that the affected Participant is actually entitled to receive, or elects to defer, any part of an annual incentive bonus 
in respect of the immediately preceding financial year.

7. LEGAL AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS
  The 2014 Share Plan Rules will govern the rights, entitlements and responsibilities of all parties once the 2014 Share Plan has been 

approved and offers have been made. The most material ones are summarised below.

 7.1 LIMITATION
   The maximum number of Shares which may be acquired by Participants under the 2014 Share Plan is an aggregate of  

5 000 000 (five million) Shares; and for any one participant in terms of the 2014 Share Plan is not to exceed 1 250 000 (one 
million two hundred and fifty thousand) Shares. In the determination of the above limits, Shares which have been acquired 
through the JSE and transferred to Participants shall not be taken into account. 

 7.2 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT
   Termination of employment is based on the definition of no fault termination versus that of fault termination. No fault termination 

is the termination of employment of a Participant by the company by reason of:
  • death;
  •  injury, disability or ill health, in each case as certified by a qualified medical practitioner nominated by the relevant Employer 

Company;
  • Dismissal based on Operational Requirements as contemplated in the Labour Relations Act;
  • Change of control;
  • Retirement on or after his Retirement Date;
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  • a mutually agreed termination of employment; or
  • the Employer Company by which he is employed ceasing to be a member company of the Group;

  Fault termination will be a dismissal for misconduct, poor performance or a resignation by the participant.

  The following provisions will apply under circumstances of termination:

  • Share appreciation method
    If employment is terminated for no fault reasons prior to the Settlement of Share Appreciation Rights, all Share Appreciation 

Rights Allocated, whether Vested or not, will immediately be Settled.

    If a Participant ceases to be employed by reason of a fault termination, all Share Appreciation Rights not previously Settled 
shall be deemed to have been cancelled, unless the Board determines otherwise.

  • Performance share method
    If employment is terminated for no fault reasons, then the Performance Shares will be prorated for the time period until the 

termination date and, unless the Board at its sole discretion wishes to regulate this, as if the target Performance Criteria had 
been met at date of termination, and then settled.

   If employment is terminated for fault reasons, then the Performance Shares will be cancelled.

  • Restricted share method
   If employment is terminated for no fault reasons, then the Restricted Shares will be settled in full.

   If employment is terminated for fault reasons, then the Restricted Shares will be cancelled.

 7.3 CHANGE OF CONTROL
  “Change of Control” is defined as all circumstances where a party (or parties acting in concert), directly or indirectly, obtains:
  • beneficial ownership of the specified percentage of 35% or more of CIG’s issued Shares; or
  • control of the specified percentage or more of the voting rights at meetings of the company; or
  • the right to control the management of the company or the composition of the Board; or
  • the right to appoint or remove directors holding a majority of voting rights at Board meetings; or
  •  the right to control the business or undertaking of the company through a merger or consolidation with any other business 

or entity, or upon a sale of the whole or a major part of the company’s assets or undertakings.

   If the company undergoes a Change of Control, then the rights (whether conditional or otherwise) in and to any outstanding 
Allocations or Awards will, to the extent necessary, be treated as if for a no fault termination.

 7.4 CONSIDERATION PAYABLE BY PARTICIPANTS
  There shall be no consideration payable by participants for any Allocation, Award or Grant.

 7.5 DEFINITION OF “FAIR MARKET VALUE”
   Fair Market Value in relation to a Share on any particular day, shall be the volume weighted average price of a Share on the JSE 

over the 10 (ten) Trading Days immediately prior to the day in question, with the proviso that in the case of an Allocation of Share 
Appreciation Rights, the Board may in its sole discretion specify in the Allocation letter for that allocation a longer period, not 
exceeding 90 (ninety) Trading Days.

 7.6 VOTING AND DIVIDEND RIGHTS
   No Shares (or rights associated thereto) shall be transferred or issued to Participants pursuant to an Allocation, Award or Grant, 

nor shall a Participant earn any dividends (or other distributions made) and shall have no right to vote in respect of any offer, 
unless and until Vesting, Exercise or Settlement occurs.

 7.7 BASIS UPON WHICH OFFERS ARE MADE
   Offers under the 2014 Share Plan will be governed by CIG’s reward philosophy and strategy, taking into consideration, inter alia, 

a Participant’s current status, his role and current remuneration, and the company’s declared Remuneration Policy, which is 
approved and managed by the Company’s Remuneration Committee and approved by shareholders in general meeting on an 
annual basis. The basis of any specific Allocation/Award/Grant will be set out in the Allocation/Award/Grant letters signed by a 
Participant at the time the offer under the 2014 Share Plan is made.

 7.8 ADJUSTMENTS
  If the company undertakes:
  •  a sub-division or consolidation of securities adjustments shall be made to the maximum number of shares that may be 

acquired by all Participants as well as any one Participant under the 2014 Share Plan and to the number of unexercised 
Share Appreciation Rights, or unvested Performance Shares or Restricted Shares held by Participants; or
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  •  a capitalisation issue, a special distribution, a rights issue or reduction of capital affecting the rights of its shareholders, 
adjustments shall be made to the maximum number of shares that may be acquired by all Participants under the 2014 
Share Plan and to the number and/or the Allocation Price of unexercised Share Appreciation Rights, or the number of 
unvested Performance Shares or Restricted Shares held by Participants,

   as may be determined by the Board to be fair and reasonable in order to give a Participant the entitlement to the same 
proportion of the share capital as he was previously entitled to, provided that any adjustments shall be in accordance with 
Schedule 14 of the JSE Listings Requirements and with the Rules and shall be confirmed by the auditors to the company and to 
the JSE in writing at the time the adjustment is finalised. 

   Should any Participant be aggrieved by such adjustment, he may utilise the prescribed dispute procedures. Any adjustment 
made must be reported on in the company’s annual financial statements in the year during which the adjustment is made.

   Any Shares which are not subsequently issued to any Participant, for example as a result of a forfeiture, shall revert back to the 
Plan.

   No adjustments shall be required in the event of the issue of equity securities as consideration for an acquisition, the issue of 
securities for cash and the issue of equity securities for a vendor consideration placing

 7.9 ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
   Over and above the above provisions the 2014 Share Plan Rules, which are available for inspection at CIG’s head office, make 

provision for the following:
  • Administration of the 2014 Share Plan;
  • Definition of Fair Market Value;
  • Implementation summary in annual accounts;
  • Share availability for settlement;
  • Funding of costs;
  • Participants’ right in the event of the company’s insolvency;
  • Poor performance and disciplinary procedures;
  • Transfer of Participant rights to family entities;
  • Cancellation of Participant rights;
  • Participant tax liability;
  • Listing and legal requirements, and compliance;
  • Amendment of the 2014 Share Plan rules;
  • Strate;
  • Disputes; and
  • Profits and losses and termination of the Plan.
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FORM OF PROXY

CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2007/004935/06)
JSE share code: CIL ISIN: ZAE000153888
 (“CIG” or “the company”)

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Raoul Gamsu (chief executive officer) Frank Boner (chairman)
Ivor Klitzner (financial director) Alex Darko
Bernard Berelowitz Anthony Dixon
 Judi Nwokedi
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Robert Horton
Kofi Bucknor

 

Where appropriate and applicable the terms defined in the notice of annual general meeting to which this form of proxy is attached and 
forms part of bear the same meanings in this form of proxy.

For use by shareholders of the company holding certificated shares and/or dematerialised shareholders who have elected “own name” 
registration, nominee companies of Central Securities Depository Participant’s (“CSDP”) and brokers’ nominee companies, registered as 
such at the close of business on Friday, 28 March 2014 (the “voting record date”), at the annual general meeting to be held at  Commerce 
Square, Building 2, 39 Rivonia Road, Sandhurst at 11:00 on Wednesday, 2 April 2014 (the “annual general meeting”) or any postponement 
or adjournment thereof.

If you are a dematerialised shareholder, other than with “own name” registration, do not use this form.  dematerialised shareholders, other 
than with “own-name” registration, should provide instructions to their appointed CSDP or broker in the form as stipulated in the agreement 
entered into between the shareholder and the CSDP or broker. 

I/We (FULL NAMES IN BLOCK LETTERS PLEASE)

of (address)

being the holder/s of                                                     shares hereby appoint:

1.            or failing him/her

2.            or failing him/her

3. the chairman of the annual general meeting,

as my/our proxy to attend and speak and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting and at any adjournment 
or postponement thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be 
proposed at the annual general meeting, and to vote on the resolutions in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s), in 
the following manner:
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FORM OF PROXY
continued

Number of votes

Shares

*For *Against *Abstain

Ordinary resolution number 1: Adoption of annual financial statements

Ordinary resolution number 2: Re-election of R Horton as director

Ordinary resolution number 3: Re-election of J Nwokedi as director

Ordinary resolution number 4: Re-election of K Bucknor as director

Ordinary resolution number 5: Re-appointment of the members of the audit and risk committee:-

5.1 A Dixon (chairperson)

5.2 A Darko

5.3 F Boner

Ordinary resolution number 6: Re-appointment of the auditors

Ordinary resolution number 7: Control over unissued shares

Ordinary resolution number 8: General authority to issue shares for cash 

Ordinary resolution number 9: Adoption of the 2014 Share Plan

Ordinary resolution number 10: Amendment to the 2007 Share Scheme

Ordinary resolution number 11: Approval of remuneration policy

Special resolution number 1: Share repurchases

Special resolution number 2: Financial assistance to related and inter-related parties 

Special resolution number 3: Approval of fees payable to non-executive directors: 

3.1 Fees payable to non-executive directors 

3.2 Annual increase not exceeding 10% for a period of two years

Special resolution number 4: Allotment and issue of shares to directors and prescribed officers

Special resolution number 5: Financial assistance under the 2014 Share Plan

Ordinary resolution number 12: Signature of documentation

* One vote per share held by shareholders recorded in the register on the voting record date.
* Mark “for”, “against” or “abstain” as required. If no options are marked the proxy will be entitled to vote as he/she thinks fit.

Unless otherwise instructed, my/our proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he/she thinks fit.

Signed this       day of         2014

Signature

Assisted by (where applicable)

(State capacity and full name)

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, vote and speak in his/her 
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company. Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and, 
on a poll, vote in place of that shareholder at the annual general meeting.

Forms of proxy must be deposited at Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 
or posted to PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107 so as to arrive by no later than 11:00 on Monday, 31 March 2014.

Please read the notes alongside.
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NOTES
1. This form of proxy is only to be completed by those ordinary shareholders who are:

 a) holding ordinary shares in certificated form; or

 b) recorded in the sub-register in electronic form in their “own name”,

  on the date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries, Computershare 
Investor Services Proprietary Limited, in order to vote at the annual general meeting being Friday, 28 March 2014, and who wish to 
appoint another person to represent them at the annual general meeting.

2.  Certificated shareholders wishing to attend the annual general meeting have to ensure beforehand with the transfer secretaries of the 
company (being Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited) that their shares are registered in their name.

3.  Beneficial shareholders whose shares are not registered in their “own name”, but in the name of another, for example, a nominee, 
may not complete a proxy form, unless a form of proxy is issued to them by a registered shareholder and they should contact the 
registered shareholder for assistance in issuing instruction on voting their shares, or obtaining a proxy to attend, speak and, on a poll, 
vote at the annual general meeting.

4.  A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space, with 
or without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who 
is present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

5.  A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by means of a tick or a cross in the appropriate box provided. However 
if you wish to cast your votes in respect of a lesser number of shares than you own in the company, insert the number of shares in 
respect of which you desire to vote. If: (i) a shareholder fails  to comply with the above; or (ii) gives contrary instructions in relation to 
any matter; or any additional resolution(s) which are properly put before the meeting; or (iii) the resolution listed in the proxy form 
is modified or amended, the shareholder will be deemed to authorise the chairman of the annual general meeting, if the chairman 
is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the annual general meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to abstain 
from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat. If however 
the shareholder has provided further written instructions which accompany this form of proxy and which indicate how the proxy 
should vote or abstain from voting in any of the circumstances referred to in (i) to (iii) above, then the proxy shall comply with those 
instructions.

6.  The forms of proxy should be lodged at Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg, 2001 or posted to PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107 so as to be received by not later than 11:00 on Monday,  
31 March 2014.

7.  The completion and lodgement of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the annual general 
meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such shareholder 
wish to do so.  In addition to the aforegoing, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by (i) cancelling it in writing, or making 
a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and (ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy, and to the company. 
The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the 
shareholder as at the later of the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or the date on which the revocation instrument was 
delivered in the required manner.

8.  The chairman of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received, other than 
in compliance with these notes provided that, in respect of acceptances, he is satisfied as to the manner in which the shareholder(s) 
concerned wish(es) to vote.

9. Any alteration to this form of proxy, other than a deletion of alternatives, must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

10.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached 
to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company or Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited or waived 
by the chairman of the annual general meeting.

11.  A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are produced 
or have been registered by Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited. 

12. Where there are joint holders of shares:

 12.1 any one holder may sign the form of proxy; and

 12.2  the vote of the senior (for that purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names of shareholders appear 
in the register of members) who tenders a vote (whether in person or by proxy) will be accepted to the exclusion of the vote(s) 
of the other joint holder(s) of shares.

13.  If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are shareholders of the company having shares registered in their 
own name may, instead of completing this form of proxy, appoint a representative to represent them and exercise all of their rights at 
the meeting by giving written notice of the appointment of that representative. This notice will not be effective at the annual general 
meeting unless it is accompanied by a duly certified copy of the resolution or other authority in terms of which that representative is 
appointed and is received at Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, at Ground Floor Marshall Street, Johannesburg, to 
reach the company by no later than 11:00 on Monday, 31 March 2014.

14.  This form of proxy may be used at any adjournment or postponement of the annual general meeting, including any postponement 
due to a lack of quorum, unless withdrawn by the shareholder.

15.  The aforegoing notes contain a summary of the relevant provisions of section 58 of the Companies Act, 2008 (the “Companies Act”), 
as required in terms of that section. In addition, an extract from the Companies Act reflecting the provisions of section 58 of the 
Companies Act, is attached to this form of proxy.
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EXTRACT FROM THE COMPANIES ACT
“58. Shareholder right to be represented by proxy

 (1)  At any time, a shareholder of a company may appoint any individual, including an individual who is not a shareholder of that company, 
as a proxy to:

 (a) participate in , and speak and vote at, a shareholders meeting on behalf of the shareholder; or

 (b) give or withhold written consent on behalf of the shareholder to a decision contemplated in section 60.

 (2) A proxy appointment:

 (a) must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder; and

 (b) remains valid for:

  (i) one year after the date on which it was signed; or

  (ii)  any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment,

 unless it is revoked in a manner contemplated in subsection (4)(c), or expires earlier as contemplated in subsection (8)(d).

 (3) Except to the extent that the Memorandum of Incorporation of a company provides otherwise:

 (a)  a shareholder of that company may appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies, and may appoint more than one proxy 
to exercise voting rights attached to different securities held by the shareholder;

 (b)  a proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any restriction set 
out in the instrument appointing the proxy; and

 (c)  a copy of the instrument appointing a proxy must be delivered to the company, or to any other person on behalf of the company, 
before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a shareholders meeting.

 (4) Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy: 

 (a)  the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly and in person in the 
exercise of any rights as a shareholder.

 (b) the appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise; and

 (c) if the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by: 

  (i) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and

  (ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy, and to the company.

 (5)  The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the 
shareholder as of the later of:

 (a) the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or

 (b) the date on which the revocation instrument was delivered as required in subsection (4)(c)(ii).

(6)  If the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies has been delivered to a company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any 
notice that is required by this Act or the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation to be delivered by the company to the shareholder 
must be delivered by the company to:

 (a) the shareholder; or

 (b) the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has:

  (i) directed the company to do so, in writing; and 

  (ii) paid any reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so.

 (7)  A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of the shareholder without direction, except to the extent 
that the Memorandum of Incorporation, or the instrument appointing the proxy, provides otherwise.

 (8)  If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by the company as a proxy, or supplies a 
form of instrument for appointing a proxy : 

 (a)  the invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled to notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to be 
exercised;

 (b) the invitation, or form of instrument supplied by the company for the purpose of appointing a proxy, must - 

  (i) bear a reasonably prominent summary of the rights established by this section;

  (ii)  contain adequate blank space, immediately preceding the name or names of any person or persons named in it, to enable 
a shareholder to write in the name and, if so desired, an alternative name of a proxy chosen by the shareholder; and

  (iii)  provide adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointed proxy is to vote in favour of or against any 
resolution or resolutions to be put at the meeting, or is to abstain from voting;

 (c) the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable; and

 (d)  the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the meeting at which it was intended to be used, subject to  
subsection (5).

(9)  Subsection (8)(b) and (d) do not apply if the company merely supplies a generally available standard form of proxy appointment on 
request by a shareholder.”  

FORM OF PROXY
continued



 

DEFINITIONS AT CIG

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Country of incorporation and domicile
South Africa

Nature of business and principal 
activities
Turnkey constructor for the electricity 
supply industry and supplier of heavy 
building materials to the construction 
industry

Directors 
RD Gamsu (Chief executive officer)
IM Klitzner (Financial director)
B Berelowitz (Chairman of Consolidated 
Power Projects)
F Boner (Chairman)*
K Bucknor#

AD Dixon*
A Darko*#

R Horton*
J Nwokedi*

Registered office
Commerce Square, Building 2
39 Rivonia Road, Cnr Melville Road
Sandhurst 2196
PO Box 651455, Benmore 2010

Company secretary
Probity Business Services Proprietary 
Limited
Registration number 2000/002046/07
11 Cradock Avenue, Rosebank 2196

Auditors
Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.
Chartered Accountants (SA) 
Registered Auditors
Registration number 1994/001166/21
42 Wierda Road West, Wierda Valley 
2196

Sponsor
Java Capital Trustees and Sponsors 
Proprietary Limited
Registration number 2006/005780/07
2 Arnold Road, Rosebank 2196

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services 
Proprietary Limited
Registration number 2004/003647/07
70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg 2001

* Independent
# Ghanaian

Infrastructure  At CIG we define infrastructure as support services for companies in the following sectors: Civils; Power; Oil and Gas; Mining; Transport; Telecomms and 
Water, as well as the acquisition of related assets in these areas.

O&M  Conco Operations and Maintenance, a division of Conco established in 2012 to provide long-term operational and maintenance services to wind farms, solar 
parks, municipalities and utilities

P&A  Protection and Automation, a division of Conco (2002) which will develop into a standalone business. P&A provides services to control power delivery 
systems so as to reduce the occurrence and shorten the duration of power outages.

DEFINITIONS
ABET Adult Basic Education and Training
AES  Angola Environmental Serviços Limitada, in which a 30,5% 

stake was acquired by CIG in December 2012, and transferred 
to CIG post year-end

ASPASA  Aggregate and Sand Producers Association of Southern Africa
Big 5 +1   South Africa, Angola, Ghana, Nigeria, Saudi Arabia, East Africa 
CIDB  Construction Industry Development Board
CIG or Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited, listed on  
Conco  Consolidated Power Projects Proprietary Limited, CIG’s core 

business generating 85% of revenue and a prominent high-
voltage construction company in South Africa

CSI Corporate Social Investment
the current year The year ending 31 August 2013
DSS  Drift Super Sand Proprietary Limited, part of the Building 

Materials division and supplies aggregates
EPC Engineering, procurement and construction
Exco  Executive committee of Consolidated Infrastructure Group 

Limited
GRI Global Reporting Initiative
the Group  Consolidated Infrastructure Group Limited and its subsidiaries 
IDC Industrial Development Corporation (of South Africa)
IFC International Finance Corporation
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
IoDSA Institute of Directors South Africa
JSE  JSE Limited incorporating the Johannesburg Securities 

Exchange, the main bourse in South Africa
King III Report  King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa, 2009
LTIFR Lost time injury frequency rate
LDC Long duration contractors
LTI Lost time injury
LTIP Long-term incentive plan

MI Material issue
OEM Original Equipment Manufacturer
PIDA Programme for Infrastructure Development in Africa
PPE Personal protective equipment
REIPPP  South African Renewable Energy Independent Power 

Producer Procurement Programme launched in 2011 aimed at 
stimulating the renewable industry in South Africa

SABS South African Bureau of Standards
SAIEE South African Institute of Electrical Engineers
SANAS South African National Accreditation System
SAT Site Assessment Testing
SHE Safety, Health and Environment
SHE Plan Safety, Health and Environment Management Plan 
SHERQ Safety, health, environment, risk and quality
STIP Short-term incentive plan
the board  The board of directors of Consolidated Infrastructure Group 

Limited
the company  Main Board JSE in the Electrical Equipment sector
the Companies Act South African Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended
the previous year The year ended 31 August 2012
the year under review  The year ended 31 August 2013
UASA United Association of South Africa
WECB  West End Claybrick Proprietary Limited, part of the 

Consolidated Building Materials division and manufactures a 
range of clay bricks, cement bricks and roof tiles

FINANCIAL DEFINITIONS
EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and 
amortisation
HEPS Headline earnings per share
VWAP Volume weighted average price

EditorialDesign and
production
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